Public Document Pack

You can view the agenda
online by using a smart
phone
camera
and
scanning the code below:

15 February 2022
Dear Councillor,
The next Meeting of the Council will be held on Wednesday, 23 February 2022
in the Council Chamber - Moorlands House, Leek at 6.30 pm.
The Agenda for the Meeting is attached at Appendix ‘A’.
Tea and Coffee will be served in the Churnet Room between 6:00pm and
6:25pm.
Yours faithfully,
M. Trillo
Executive Director & Monitoring Officer

NOTE

Councillors using the Car Park at the rear of the Council Offices are requested to
indicate on their car that it is being used by a Councillor whenever they use the Car
Park, otherwise they may be challenged by the Council’s Car Park Attendant.

www.staffsmoorlands.gov .uk
Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ. Tel: 0345 605 3010

APPENDIX A

Prayers will be offered prior to the commencement of the meeting.
1.

Apologies for absence, if any.

2.

Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 5 - 8)

3.

Urgent items of business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman).

4.

Declarations of interest
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. Other Interests

5.

Chairman's or Leader's announcements and correspondence, if any.

6.

Receipt of petitions, if any.

7.

To consider and debate any recommendations from the Cabinet, Overview and
Scrutiny Panels and Committees, if any.
7 .1

Cabinet - 2022/23 Budget & Medium Term Financial Plan 2022/23 to
2025/26 (Pages 9 - 108)

7 .2

Audit and Accounts Committee - Treasury Management Update (Pages 109
- 116)

7 .3

Audit and Accounts Committee - Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23
(Pages 117 - 146)

8.

Recommendations from meetings in the interim period prior to the Council Meeting,
if any.

9.

Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 (Pages 147 - 166)

10.

Setting the Council Tax

11.

Notices of Motion in accordance with Procedure Rule No. 8, if any.
11 .1 Prescription Charges - Cllr. L Malyon
“With regard to the suggested increase in prescription charges and
introduction of charges for the over 60s I would like to ask this Council to
write to our MPs and ask them to lobby the Government that this will not
happen. It will affect many of our residents in the Staffordshire Moorlands
and across the country and may even deter people from having the
medication that they need.”
11 .2 Planning Requirements for Children's Care Homes - Cllr. P Wilkinson
“There is great concern about the emergence of children’s care homes in the
Staffordshire Moorlands. These are often large private houses, purchased
by entrepreneurs who then convert them into children’s homes without a
change of use planning consent.
The position at the moment is that a dwelling (use class C3) included use for
up to six persons living together as a single household where care is
provided and it is considered that there is no change of use and planning
permission is not required.

This is wrong because these are businesses in every sense and planning
permission should be obtained as there is a change of use from dwelling
house (C3) to children’s home(C2) and full consultation should be
undertaken with relevant stakeholders.
Could I request that a Notice of Motion be considered by the Authority calling
for planning permission for the change of use of a private dwelling (C3) to
children’s home (C2) and if it is felt worthy of support then I request that it
goes directly to Mr Nadhim Zahawi MP Secretary of State for Education with
copies to all Staffordshire Moorlands MPs asking for their support.”
12.

To answer questions asked under Procedure Rule No. 10, if any.
(At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in
accordance with Procedure Rule 11.3.)

13.

To consider any political group appointments or changes to membership, if any.

14.

Exclusion of the Press and Public:
The Chairman to move:“That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the
public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in
Section 100 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the
public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.”

15.

To consider and debate any recommendations from the Cabinet, Overview and
Scrutiny Panels and Committees, if any.

16.

To answer questions asked under Procedure Rule No. 10, if any.
At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in
accordance with Procedure Rule 11.3.)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2.
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

COUNCIL MEETING
Minutes
WEDNESDAY, 8 DECEMBER 2021
PRESENT:

Councillor P Roberts (Chairman)
Councillors J Aberley, C J S Atkins, G Bond, M Bowen, C Brady,
B Cawley, S Coleman, J Davies, M Deaville, S Ellis, B Emery,
E Fallows, K Flunder, M Gledhill, A Hart, N Hawkins, G Heath,
I Herdman,
T Holmes,
K Hoptroff,
B A Hughes,
A Hulme,
P Jackson, B Johnson, J T Jones, I Lawson, K Martin, L Page,
I Plant, H Plimley, J Porter, D Price, S E Ralphs MBE, J Redfern,
T Riley,
P Routledge,
J Salt,
D Shaw,
H Sheldon MBE,
L Swindlehurst, P Taylor, E Wain, R Ward, P Wilkinson, P Wood,
M Worthington and N Yates

APOLOGIES:

Councillors R Alcock, G Bentley, T Hall, K J Jackson, L D Lea,
L A Malyon, T McNicol and S Scalise

Prayers were offered by Reverend Nigel Irons.
29

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED:
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 13 October 2021 be
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

30

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
The following declarations were made:Agenda Item

Any matters relating to
finance.

Agenda Item 8.1 –
Climate Change Notice
of Motion

Members Declaring
Interest

Nature of Interest

Cllrs. Aberley, Deaville, Other Interest - receipt of
Flunder, Johnson, Price, Covid business support
Wain and Wilkinson
grant.

Cllr. J Porter

Page 5

Other Interest - employed by
UK100

31

CHAIRMAN'S OR LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE, IF
ANY.
The Chairman announced that he planned to hold a bottle tombola at his Charity Ball
and any donations would be gratefully received. It was also reported that the Poppy
Appeal had raised nearly £33,000 in Leek and the Chairman expressed his thanks to
all those involved on behalf of the Council.

32

TO CONSIDER AND DEBATE ANY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE CABINET,
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANELS AND COMMITTEES, IF ANY.

32a

AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE - TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE
RESOLVED:
That the Treasury Management position as at 30 th September 2021 be noted.

32b

AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE - PROCESS FOR APPOINTING THE
EXTERNAL AUDITOR
RESOLVED:
That the Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led option
for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government bodies for five
financial years from 1 April 2023 be accepted.

33

SCRUTINY REVIEW
Councillors considered the response to the feedback provided by the Centre for
Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) following completion of their recent review of the
Council’s Scrutiny arrangements. It was clarified members of Cabinet would attend
of the Overview and Scrutiny Programming Group as required. Members also
suggested that future considerations should be given to written responses to
questions, the timing of meetings and budget scrutiny.
RESOLVED:
1. That the outcome of the Scrutiny Review from CfGS as detailed in Appendix A be
noted.
2. That the comments from members as detailed in Appendix B and section 10.2 of
the report be noted.
3. That the suggested response to the recommendations set out in Appendix C and
section 11 of the report be agreed.

34

NOTICES OF MOTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH PROCEDURE RULE NO. 8, IF ANY.

35

CLIMATE CHANGE - CLLR N. YATES
“That this Council will lobby our two Members of Parliament to ask them to:
i)

raise with the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
the need to make it a Statutory Duty for all local authorities to create and
Page
deliver a climate change action
plan 6

ii)

to give local authorities the powers and resources to deliver these plans [in
line with national policies].”

Councillors discussed the previous climate emergency notice of motion, the
Council’s subsequent Climate Change Strategy, the Staffordshire Sustainability
Board, the aims of the Corporate Plan and partnership working with the County
Council and parish councils.
RESOLVED:
Having been SECONDED, upon being put to the vote, the MOTION was
CARRIED unanimously in the terms set out above.
35a

LOCAL PLAN - CLLR D. PRICE
“That this Council re-opens the relevant sections of the Local Plan and reviews it at
the earliest opportunity in order that it can meet it's clear and pressing climate
change emergency commitments.”
Members debated the motion in considerable detail. This included the ability to
review individual aspects of the Local Plan, the need to deliver the current Local
Plan, the Government review of the planning framework and supplementary planning
documents.
RESOLVED:
Having been SECONDED, upon being put to the vote, the MOTION was
LOST.

36

TO ANSWER QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER PROCEDURE RULE NO. 10, IF ANY.
1. Question to the Leader of the Council received from Councillor Lyn
Swindlehurst:
“The decision regarding the Leek Wednesday Market to relocate stalls from Derby
Street to the Market Place has clearly not been successful to date. During November
the number of traders operating from Market Place has declined to 2 only plus the
extension to the existing greengrocers. According to The Leek Post and Times,
these long standing traders have suffered 70% drop in trade and may not survive
beyond Christmas. Can The leader tell us in a written answer what she proposes to
do to rectify this situation?”
Response:
The Leader of the Council explained that a regeneration project with the indoor and
outdoor market had started that included taking outdoor market on Derby Street
back onto the Market Place. This would take time to complete and that one or two
traders were not able to stay until the Spring. Two people have moved indoors , two
people were seasonal and some had taken the opportunity to take an extended
holiday. It would be the markets in Leek that would, post-Covid, bring custom and
prosperity to the local economy in Leek.
In response to supplementary questions with the Leader of the Council clarified the
webcast would act as a record of the reply to the question and that two traders
Page
asked if they could relocate to Sparrow
Park,7two had opted to move into the Trestle

Market until Spring. One trader wished to stay on Derby Street. A number of people
had contacted the Leader to express their enthusiasm for the market to return to the
Market Place. Consultation had also taken place during the pandemic with regards
to the Market Hall project and that actions were now required.
37

TO CONSIDER, IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 85 OF THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT ACT 1972, REQUESTS FOR A GRANT OF DISPENSATION TO
COUNCILLORS FROM ATTENDING MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL AND ITS
CONSTITUENT BODIES DUE TO THEIR PRESENT CIRCUMSTANCES.
RESOLVED:
That in accordance with Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972 Councillors
Lawson, Lea, McNicol, Martin and Plimley be granted a dispensation from attending
meetings of the Council and its constituent bodies for the period whilst they are
incapacitated.

The meeting closed at 7.58 pm

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date

Page 8

Agenda Item 7.1
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Cabinet
8 February 2022
TITLE:

2022/23 Budget & Medium Term Financial
Plan 2022/23 to 2025/26

PORTFOLIO HOLDER

Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Leader

CONTACT OFFICERS :

Keith Pointon – Head of Finance

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendix Attached
 Appendix A (Medium Term Financial Plan 2022/23 to 2025/26)
 Appendix B (Capital Strategy 2022/23)
 Appendix C (Fees & Charges 2022/23)
 Appendix D (Procurement Forward Plan 2022/23)

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of the report is to present the proposed Budget for 2022/23,
updated Medium-Term Financial Plan 2022/23 – 2025/26, Capital Strategy
2022/23, proposed Fees and Charges for 2022/23 and Procurement Forward
Plan 2022/23.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That Cabinet support the following recommendations to Council:


Approves the General Fund Budget for 2022/23 as detailed in Appendix A
(section 9)



Approves the revised Medium-Term Financial Plan (2022/23 to 2025/26)
as detailed in Appendix A, including the revised Capital Programme
(attached at Annex A)



Approves the Capital Strategy 2022/23 as set out in Appendix B



Approves the proposed Fees and Charges for 2022/23 as detailed in
Appendix C

Page 9



Approves the proposed Procurement Forward Plan for 2022/23, providing
the authority to procure based on procurement activity detailed in
Appendix D



Approves a Band D Council Tax of £163.14 for 2022/23 (an increase of
2.99% from 2021/22)



Approves a Band D Council Tax of £52.92 for Leek and £10.64 for
Biddulph for 2022/23 (no increase from 2021/22) in respect of Special
District Expenses



Notes the Chief Finance Officer's view that the level of reserves are
adequate for the Council based on this budget and the circumstances in
place at the time of preparing it (Appendix A Annex E)

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

This report makes recommendations to Council for the budget and the level of
Council Tax for 2022/23. The report also provides an update on the Council’s
medium-term financial position through to 2025/26. Additionally, it establishes
an overarching Capital Strategy, sets out the fees and charges that are
proposed for 2022/23, and details the Procurement Forward Plan 2022/23.

3.2

The budget setting and medium term financial planning process provides the
Council with the opportunity to plan its delivery of public services in
accordance with local priorities. There are also risks around the outcomes of
national funding reviews (i.e. fair funding; business rates retention; and new
homes bonus) which may have a detrimental impact on the future financial
position.

3.3

The current four year MTFP was updated in September 2021 to reflect further
Covid-19 related pressures and updated economic forecasts in order to begin
to understand the medium term financial impact.

3.4

This version of the MTFP updates the September forecasts, based on the
provisional settlement information released in December, latest economic
forecasts, assumptions around the timing and level of capital and revenue
expenditure and income and the impact of the recovery from Covid-19.

3.5

The 2022/23 local government finance settlement was better than anticipated
in the MTFP, but contained one-off monies or greater uncertainty and it was
also a one-year settlement, which isn’t good for medium term service planning.

3.6

The Council received £117k of Lower Tier Services Grant, which wasn’t
expected, as it was announced as a one-off grant last year. The assumption in
setting the MTFP is that it won’t recur. The Council also received £180k in the
form of a new Services Grant. The Secretary of State has said that the
Government “will then take the time to fully consider its future distribution”. So
this grant looks set to continue, but the Council’s future share is unknown. The
Council also received an allocation of £63k in Rural Services Delivery Grant,
this is assumed to be on-going throughout the life of the plan.

Page 10

3.7

Lastly, the Council received £255k in New Homes Bonus for 2022/23, which
was anticipated and is
positive news. In the finance settlement, the
Government stated it would reform New Homes Bonus to improve
how housing growth is incentivised, but it didn’t say how this would be done.
So, in the MTFP, it is prudent to revise downwards the Council’s current
reliance on it to balance in the medium term.

3.8

In terms of costs, the Council will incur costs higher than originally anticipated
when setting the MTFP last year. The pay award for this year (2021/22) will be
at least 1.75% and probably at least 2% next year. The current MTFP had
anticipated 1.0% on the basis of a Government announced squeeze on public
sector pay. General inflation will also be higher than anticipated last year, with
an average consolidated rate in the 2022/23 budget of 3.5%, rather than 1.0%.

3.9

This leaves a balanced 2022/23 budget on both the revenue and capital side,
but with greater uncertainty and risk in the MTFP for future years. Particularly
so, as the outcomes from Government’s business rates review, fair funding
review, or new homes bonus review are all unknown.

3.10

The current efficiency strategy ends this year (2021/22). Any savings from recommissioning and re-procurement during the year will be taken. It is
recommended that underspends at year end are put into a financial resilience
reserve, which will provide a buffer if national reviews have negative impacts
for the Council. And for the same reasons, work should begin on a new
efficiency strategy during 2022/23.

3.11

The financial settlement allows for a 2% or up to £5 increase in Council Tax. It
should be noted that Treasury’s published figures do assume all Authorities
maximise the increase. The way capping (or “referendum limits”) works, if the
maximum increase isn’t taken then that opportunity is lost forever (there’s no
way to catch up in subsequent years).

3.12

Having completed the annual budget exercise, a balanced budget for 2022/23
has been achieved. The final General Fund budget proposal for 2022/23
provides for a net budget of £10,792,890 and a Council Tax increase of £4.74
on a Band D equivalent property (2.99%) with the Special District Expenses
remaining at £52.92 (Leek) and £10.64 (Biddulph) respectively

3.13

A new financial year (2025/26) has been added to the MTFP and the overall
financial assumptions have been updated for the four years. It must be
stressed that there is a great deal of uncertainty in regard to this position, both
from the coronavirus pandemic and the outcomes of national funding reviews
(i.e. fair funding; business rates retention; and new homes bonus), which
remain unknown at this stage.

3.14

The forecast predicts a balanced budget position by 2025/26 – on the basis
the Country has fully recovered from the Coronavirus pandemic at that point
and the Council can once again become self-sustainable (without reliance on
reserves) – albeit it with the risks identified above.

Page 11

3.15

The Capital Strategy and the Capital Programme have been updated and
allow for additional investment in priority areas. The Medium Term Financial
Plan includes an updated Capital Programme of £27,948,070 over the period
2021/22 – 2025/26.

3.15

The Procurement Forward Plan sets out details of the expected activity during
2022/23.

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the
effective management of financial resources, which is the subject of this
report.

5.

Options and Analysis
This report recommends a Council Tax level and associated budget, Medium
Term Financial Plan, Capital Strategy (and future capital programme) and
Fees & Charges for 2022/23 designed to best deliver the Council’s corporate
priorities within a balanced budget. Other options are feasible, but any
alternatives would need to robustly identify the service and financial
implications, in order to satisfy the Council’s Section 151 Officer (under the
Local Government Finance Act 1988, section 114) of the need to deliver a
balanced budget.

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
None.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and
Diversity policies.
An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken on the
Corporate Plan, which feeds into budget plans.

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the
report.

6.5

Legal
The Local Government Act 2000 states that it is the responsibility of the full
Council, on the recommendation of the executive, to approve the budget and
related council tax demand. The Local Government Act 2003, section 25
requires the council’s Section 151 officer to report to the council on the
robustness of the estimates made and the adequacy of the proposed
financial reserves assumed in the budget calculations. The Local

Page 12

Government Finance Act 1988, section 114 requires the Section 151 officer
to report to all of the Authority’s councillors if there is likely to be an
unbalanced budget.
16.6

Sustainability
An earmarked reserve has been established to support with climate change
related activities. Climate Change considerations are indirectly included in
many aspects of the MTFP – including capital programme projects focused
on Council buildings and vehicle purchases, as well as being a consideration
in procurement activity reflected in the Forward Plan. These are highlighted,
wherever possible, in the MTFP report itself.

6.7

External Consultation
The Council’s budget plans have been subject to a consultation via the
Council’s website.

Risk A Risk Assessment
6.8
A full risk analysis has been undertaken which is contained within the plan

JOHN BETTS
Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits
Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

Various background working papers

Moorlands House

John Betts

John.betts@highpeak.gov. uk
07581 010628
Keith Pointon
Head of Finance
01538 395400 Ext. 4193

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN
2022/23 to 2025/26

February 2022

Page 15

INDEX
1

Introduction

2

Strategic Priorities

3

Current Spending Levels

4

Coronavirus Pandemic

5

Transformation Programme
5.1
Introduction
5.2
Capital Strategy
5.3
Capital Programme
5.4
Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
5.5
Major Contracts
5.6
Member Priority Projects

6

Financial Forecasts
6.1
Introduction
6.2
Interest Rates
6.3
Inflationary Projections
6.4
Budgetary Demand
6.5
Budget Growth
6.6
Pensions

7

Funding & Income Generation
7.1
Introduction
7.2
Council Tax
7.3
Business Rates Retention
7.4
Collection Fund
7.5
Income from Government Grants
7.6
Fees & Charges

8

Risks, Contingencies & Use of Reserves

9

Budget 2020/21

10

General Fund Revenue Financial Position

11

Consultation

Annex A
Annex B
Annex C
Annex D

Proposed Capital Programme
MTFP Principal Risks
Chief Finance Officer Review of Contingencies / Reserves
Proposed Revenue Budget

Page 16

1.

Introduction

1.1.

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a key element of the Council’s budget
and policy frameworks. It ensures resources are targeted towards delivery of the
Council’s Corporate Plan. It describes the financial direction of travel for the
Council for planning purposes and outlines the financial pressures the Council is
likely to face over the next 4 years.

1.2.

The medium-term financial planning process establishes how resources will be
allocated to services in line with the Council’s priorities, which have been
determined following consultation with residents, councillors and other
stakeholders. The process facilitates the prudent management of the Council’s
finances, whilst building resilience to provide for the needs of residents over the
medium and longer term.

1.3.

The MTFP is updated regularly as part of the budget setting cycle. This review of
the MTFP builds on the existing plan and updates assumptions to reflect known
changes to income, costs and funding. The plan incorporates revenue and capital
financial projections over the four years 2022/23 to 2025/26. It also includes an
assessment of key risks and a presentation of longer-term financial issues which
have the potential to impact on the Council.

2.

Strategic Priorities

2.1.

The Medium Term Financial Plan is driven by local priorities. The Council’s
spending strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by members of
the Council.

2.2.

Following the elections in May 2019, there was a fundamental review of the
Corporate Plan focussing on the period 2019-2023 (up to the end of the current
political administration). The Corporate Plan was agreed by Council on 16 th
October 2019 and establishes the Council’s vision, corporate objectives and key
priorities for the medium term. It establishes the Council’s commitment in the
delivery of service and community leadership to the residents of the Staffordshire
Moorlands.

2.3.

The delivery of the Corporate Plan is measured through the Performance
Framework. A set of local performance indicators and targets will be established
in preparation for the start of the financial year 2022/23 to help monitor delivery.
The Medium Term Financial Plan has been updated to reflect the contents of the
plan and to ensure that resources are directed towards key priorities.

2.4.

The Council’s vision is expressed as:
“Achieving Excellence in the delivery of high quality services that meet the needs
and aspirations of our communities”
This vision is articulated further by four aims:-:


Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live
and work

Page 17




2.5.

Effective use of resources and provide value for money
Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns
and villages
Protect and improve the environment and respond to the climate
emergency

These aims are supported by a number of objectives which also provide the
framework for the delivery of service plans. The Council’s objectives are
summarised below:
Aim

1

2

3

4

Help create a safer
and healthier
environment for our
communities to live
and work
Effective use of
resources and
provide value for
money

Help create a strong
economy by
supporting further
regeneration of
towns and villages
Protect and improve
the environment and
respond to the
climate emergency






















Objectives
Increased supply of good quality affordable homes
Develop a positive relationship with communities
Effective relationship with strategic partners
Effective support of community safety arrangements including CCTV
Provision of sports facilities and leisure opportunities focused upon
improving health
Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for
money
Ensure services are easily available to all our residents in the
appropriate channels and provided “right first time”
A high performing and well motivated workforce
More effective use of Council assets
Effective procurement with a focus on local business
Effective use of ICT
Encourage business start-ups and enterprises
Flourishing town centres that support the local economy
Encourage and develop tourism
High quality development and building control with an “open for
business” approach
Effective recycling and waste management
Meeting the challenge of climate change
Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and
environmental health
Provision of quality parks and open spaces
Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of residents,
businesses and visitors

2.6.

The Council is committed to playing the lead role in championing the local area. In
doing so the Council recognises its community leadership role. Fulfilling this role
effectively means influencing partners in a number of areas such as supporting the
police and other partners to reduce crime; ensuring effective health provision
particularly for the elderly; working with partners to improve the provision of bus
services and continuing to support the Churnet Valley Railway with their plans to
bring trains back to Leek.

2.7.

The Plan identifies key priority outcomes, which will be the highest priority in the
development of performance targets and key actions. A significant proportion of
the Council’s resources will be directed towards achieving them:-

Page 18

Aim

Objectives

Help create a safer and healthier
environment for our communities
to live and work
Effective use of resources and
provide value for money
Help create a strong economy by
supporting further regeneration of
towns and villages
Protect and improve the
environment and respond to the
climate emergency





Increased supply of quality affordable homes
Improved health
Improved community safety




Council services provide value for money
High level of resident and customer
satisfaction
Sustainable towns and rural communities
Increased economic growth
Increased tourism
High recycling rates
Reduction in carbon emissions







2.8.

The Council maintains a Strategic Alliance with High Peak Borough Council,
formed around the principle of shared services in the pursuit of efficiency and
realisation of savings. The Strategic Alliance has enabled the implementation and
transformation of a joint management structure and services, consequently
realising significant efficiency savings. The Council intends to continue to drive
savings and service improvements through collaboration with its Alliance partner.

3.

Current Spending Levels

3.1.

The starting point for the development of the MTFP is the current level of spending
and the approved capital expenditure commitments.

3.2.

The Council’s current year (2021/22) General Fund budget can be summarised as
follows:
Income and Expenditure

2021/22
Budget
£

Employees

6,320,320

Premises

2,202,120

Transport

141,260

Supplies & Services

7,591,880

Benefits

5,010

Borrowing

224,580

Financing Costs

231,380
16,716,550

Total Expenditure
Fees and Charges / Other Income

(5,739,900)

Interest Receipts

(20,710)

Ascent LLP Income

(522,880)

Net Expenditure

10,433,060

Page 19

3.3.

The net expenditure is financed as follows:
2021/22
Budget
£

Financing

Council Tax

(5,679,150)
(3,801,300)

Business Rates Retention
New Homes Bonus

(121,880)

Covid-19 Funding

(639,400)

Collection Fund (Surplus)/ Deficit

4,061,790

Earmarked Reserves / Balances

(4,253,120)

Total Financing

(10,433,060)

General Fund Capital Budget

3.4.

The medium-term projection for capital commitments approved by Members in
February 2021 is detailed below: -

Service Area

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£
775,640
790,000
116,610
986,130
408,850

£
663,160
1,515,650
141,900
1,716,940
651,920

£
1,404,360
1,500,000
50,000
100,000

£
915,490
1,500,000
50,000
301,640
41,920

£
1,081,390
1,500,000
50,000
50,000

£
4,840,040
6,805,650
408,510
3,004,710
1,252,690

Total Revised Programme
Financed by:External Contributions
Capital Receipts
Capital Reserve
Earmarked Reserves
Borrowing

3,077,230

4,689,570

3,054,360

2,809,050

2,681,390

16,311,600

795,000
110,000
557,000
220,850
1,394,380

1,512,390
25,000
3,152,180

1,500,000
77,500
1,476,860

1,500,000
1,309,050

1,500,000
1,181,390

6,807,390
212,500
557,000
220,850
8,513,860

Total Revised Financing

3,077,230

4,689,570

3,054,360

2,809,050

2,681,390

16,311,600

Asset Management Plan
Housing Grants
ICT Strategy
Fleet Management
Other Schemes

2020/21

Total

Reserves
3.5.

The forecast general fund reserves position over the life of the current approved
MTFP was estimated to be:-

Contingency reserve
Balance at year end
Minimum requirement
Headroom

2020/21
(Budget)
£
3,480,790
1,107,000
2,373,790

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£
£
£
£
3,224,710 2,917,060 2,730,350 2,724,380
1,480,000 1,480,000 1,480,000 1,480,000
1,744,710 1,437,060 1,250,350 1,244,380

Page 20

4.

Coronavirus Pandemic

4.1.

The Coronavirus pandemic has had, and is likely to continue having, an impact on
the Council’s financial position.
The financial impact includes additional
expenditure in dealing with the crisis both externally and organisationally and lost
income. This version of the MTFP updates the forecasts included in the
September 2021 refresh for the latest coronavirus pandemic response and
recovery impact and assumptions around the timing and level of capital and
revenue expenditure and income. The forecast use of reserves required to
balance the MTFP position in February 2021 (as a result of the pandemic) has
remained steady and it not envisaged that further contributions will be necessary.

4.2.

The Council has established a Covid-19 earmarked reserve specifically to support
with the financial impact of Covid-19 totalling £600,000.

5.

Transformation Programme

5.1.

Introduction

5.1.1. The Council’s ‘transformation programme’ incorporates all major projects which
meet the strategic priorities of the authority and have significant financial
implications, including: The Capital Programme
 Treasury management implications
 The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
 The Council’s major contracts
 Member Priority Projects
5.1.2. The delivery of transformation programme projects is monitored by the
Transformation Board made up of Directors, along with key Heads of Service and
officers. A Director is allocated as ‘project executive’ and a full business case
appraisal is completed for each project.
5.1.3. The progress and current financial projections of the transformation programme is
explored below along with any potential revenue and capital consequences. Any
further work required to identify the financial implications of the programme are
discussed and will feed into future MTFP updates.
5.2.

Capital Strategy

5.2.1. In accordance with the requirements of the 2017 edition of the Chartered Institute
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code for Capital Finance
in Local Authorities, the Capital Strategy has been updated for 2022/23.
5.2.2. The Strategy, which is being presented to members along side this report, explains
how capital expenditure and investment decisions are taken in line with the
Council’s Corporate Plan and service objectives, taking account of stewardship,
value for money, prudence, risk management, sustainability and affordability.
5.2.3. The Capital Strategy is detailed in APPENDIX B.

Page 21

5.3.

Capital Programme

5.3.1. The Capital Programme presented to Members in February 2021 has been
reviewed, re-profiled and updated to reflect the latest position in terms of capital
projections to 31st March 2026. Some projects have inevitably been delayed due
to the lockdown periods, social distancing measures and contractor availability.
5.3.2. Consequently, the five-year capital programme (including 2020/21) is forecast at
£27,948,070. The latest capital projections, specifically identifying the major
schemes, are summarised in the table below. Full detail is attached in ANNEX A.
Service Area

2021/22
£
508,660
1,523,200
10,000,000
122,000
1,062,630
740,890

2022/23
£
734,260
1,500,000
20,000
774,070
473,000

2023/24
£
1,509,790
1,500,000
50,000
320,000
171,920

2024/25
£
717,700
1,500,000
50,000
15,000
170,000

2025/26
£
2,824,390
1,500,000
40,560
120,000

Total
£
6,294,800
7,523,200
10,000,000
282,560
2,171,700
1,675,810

Total Revised Programme
Financed by:External Contributions
Capital Receipts
Revenue Reserves
Earmarked Reserves
Borrowing

13,957,380

3,501,330

3,551,710

2,452,700

4,484,950

27,948,070

1,519,940
3,215,750
1,200,000
1,185,650
6,836,040

1,500,000
71,000
1,930,330

1,500,000
16,000
2,035,710

1,500,000
11,000
941,700

1,500,000
2,984,950

7,519,940
3,313,750
1,200,000
1,185,650
14,728,730

Total Revised Financing

13,957,380

3,501,330

3,551,710

2,452,700

4,484,950

27,948,070

Asset Management Plan
Housing Grants
Housing
ICT Strategy
Fleet Management
Other Schemes

5.3.3. The capital projections above include the carry forward of £141,620 capital
budgets from 2020/21. Further detail on the capital schemes are provided below.

Asset Management Plan (AMP)

5.3.4. It is essential that the Council maintains an asset base, which delivers the
ambitions of the Corporate Plan – however, this needs to be affordable. The
Capital Strategy sets out the proposed outcomes and actions, including the
potential capital and revenue financial implications of maintaining the Council’s
current property assets over a 30 year period, as summarised below:-

Page 22

SMDC AMP Capital Investment & Revenue
Consequence
(AS AT SEPT 2016)

2016-17 –
2019-20
£

Public Buildings
Car Parks
Public Conveniences
Waterways & Infrastructure Assets
Leisure Centres
Depots and Parks Buildings
Industrial Units
TOTAL
Revenue Consequences (cost of borrowing)

2020-21 –
2045-46
(26 years)
£

TOTAL
£

1,010,850
754,000
181,400
479,361
310,000
97,070
80,380
2,913,061

2,761,600
4,293,431
415,800
448,761
10,005,995
2,355,714
392,050
20,673,351

3,772,450
5,047,431
597,200
928,122
10,315,995
2,452,784
472,430
23,586,412

115,959

943,653

1,059,612

5.3.5. The table below reflects the updated capital investment requirements as at
February 2022, adjusted for 2020/21 actual outturn, any in-year re-profiling that
has taken place in 2021/22 and changes to spending plans. This amends the
overall forecast capital spend by £966,592 over the 30 years from the original
position.
SMDC AMP Capital
Investm ent
2016-17
(Actuals)
£
Public Buildings
Car Parks
Public Conveniences
Waterways/Infrastructure
Leisure Centres
Depot/Parks/ Cemeteries
Industrial Units
Total

Revenue
Cons equences

2026-27
to 204647

MTFP
2017-18
(Actuals)
£

2018-19
(Actuals)
£

2019-20
(Actuals)

2020-21
(Actuals)

£

£

202122 to
2024-25
£

202526

TOTAL

(20
Years)

£

£

£

70,020
5,270
1,700
76,990

410,000
1,290
3,280
261,090
95,170
770,830

387,460
4,660
1,790
5,090
1,650
3,810
404,460

12,120
394,620
31,310
84,640
2,410
3,920
58,580
587,600

99,890
67,170
14,500
539,910
6,340
727,810

601,560
671,950
166,780
217,580
853,210
959,330
3,470,410

603,220
441,350
1,279,050
360,060
140,710
2,824,390

2,008,770
3,368,207
297,000
343,761
6,293,763
1,176,629
269,200
13,757,330

4,093,150
4,981,967
565,540
928,631
9,070,303
2,507,929
472,300
22,619,820

-

11,250

30,700

22,300

14,410

192,570

54,270

635,020

960,520

5.3.6.

The Council is developing an Asset Management Strategy to ensure the future
delivery of efficient asset management. This work will be progressed once the
condition surveys have been undertaken and the updated 30 year costs of
maintaining the general fund asset stock are known. The above will then be
reset.

5.3.7.

Any positive revenue implications of the asset management strategy, for
example, reduced annual maintenance and utility costs due to fewer and/or more
efficient buildings and income receipts from shared accommodation partners will
be taken towards the efficiency programme.
Housing

5.3.8. A capital loan of £10million is being made to Your Housing Group for the
maintenance of and provision of affordable housing within the Staffordshire
Moorlands District. This is anticipated at the end of January 2022.

Page 23

5.3.9. This follows the cessation of the Council’s joint venture housing company, Ascent
Housing LLP, with Your Housing during the same time period; and the return of
the £14million loan facility and £3.14m impaired debenture facility.
5.3.10. The new loan will be financed in part by the capital receipt from the debenture of
£3.14m; £1.1m from an earmarked reserve previously set up to offset the
impairment in the debenture; with the remainder being financed by borrowing.

Housing Grants
5.3.11. The District Council is the duty holder under the Housing Grants, Construction
and Regeneration Act 1996 for mandatory Disabled Facilities Grant (DFGs) and
this status remains despite changes to funding arrangements. All eligible
applicants are entitled to receive mandatory funding for certain major
adaptations to their properties.
5.3.12. The funding for these adaptations had previously been given directly to the
council but from 2015/16, the funding has been incorporated into the Better Care
Fund and paid to the County Council.
5.3.13. The Better Care Fund is a single pooled fund for all health and social care
provision and covers the whole range of services including public health, social
care services and clinical commissioning groups
5.3.14. Government funding has increased each year since 2015/16. Based on current
information (as at Quarter Three), the allocation for 2021/22 will not be fully
utilised to support the current year’s grants programme; this will bring the
Disabled Facility reserve up to £4.2m at year end.
ICT Strategy
5.3.15. An updated IT Strategy is currently being developed, alongside a Organisational
Development Strategy and Access to Services Strategy. The aim is to drive a
change in culture and deliver the systems, processes and skills required in an
environment where information is shared seamlessly though connected
systems. This will potentially reduce costs of services through optimisation,
improving online services and enabling customers to self-serve. This will also
reduce manual administrative tasks, removing paper processes and allowing
Officers to focus on high-value tasks.
5.3.16. Consequently, estimated requirements have been included within the MTFP.
There are other projects currently at initial business case or procurement stage.
More accurate costings of these will be developed as business cases progress.
5.3.17. There is also £225,000 set aside in an earmarked reserve which was established
specifically to support with the implementation of the ICT Strategy

Page 24

Fleet Management
5.3.18. The Council’s Fleet management service is now provided by Alliance
Environmental Services (AES) including procurement, whereas the responsibility
for funding fleet acquisitions remains with the Council. The capital programme
contains a forward plan of fleet replacement requirements based on estimates of
the useful lives of the existing fleet and future business needs.
5.3.19. For the purposes of this report, it has been assumed that all replacement vehicle
requirements over the next four years will be funded via direct capital purchase,
but this will be subject to further funding options appraisals prior to purchase.
5.3.20. The proceeds from the sale of vehicles will be used to fund future purchases and
where possible, funds are set aside and held within an earmarked reserve for
the purpose of funding short-life capital purchase such as fleet. This further
reduces the overall cost of financing the vehicle fleet by reducing borrowing
costs.
New/Other Capital Commitments –
5.3.21. The below provides details and estimated costs of new capital schemes which
the Council is aiming to progress during the 4 year MTFP period, as well as any
other potential schemes currently being developed where further work is required
to estimate costings:
- Market Town Regeneration - £373,000
Initiative towards enhancing and supporting investment.
-

Moorlands Partnership grant funding - £50,000
Moorlands partnership annual contribution; to support the board’s work in
awarding grants to improve historic buildings and structures.

In addition, there is £140,000 set aside as the remaining committed contribution
to support the refurbishment and upgrade of Cheadle Town Council facilities (first
tranche was allocated to play facilities), the Council is currently awaiting detailed
proposals of these plans.
Financing the Capital Programme
5.3.22. The capital programme can be funded from a number of options which include
external grants and contributions from third parties comprising of Government
and lottery funding; capital receipts from asset sales as part of the asset
management plan; earmarked revenue reserves and borrowing.
5.3.23. The main area of spending within the current programme which is expected to be
funded from external resources is support towards Disabled Facilities Grants.
Estimated capital receipts of £3.31m will be available over the next five years
(subject to a review of surplus assets). Revenue and capital reserves of £2.39m
are forecast (at this stage) to be applied over the period.
5.3.24. Where no other resources can be applied, borrowing becomes the funding option
for the programme. The Council’s estimated borrowing requirement over the 4
years is shown below:-

Page 25

Borrowing Requirement

2022/23
£
99,310

Total

2023/24
£
160,780

2024/25
£
184,470

2024/25
£
254,500

5.3.25. The Treasury Management Strategy then considers whether this is funded
externally or internally - both options have a consequence on revenue either
through reduced investment income or increased external interest liability as
highlighted in the table in 5.3.27.
5.3.26. It is proposed to utilise reserves allocated for capital spend (where possible)
where an options appraisal on the acquisition of short-life assets such as
vehicles, plant and equipment has been carried out and suggests that the most
financially viable option is to outright purchase.
Revenue Consequences of the Capital Programme
5.3.27. The capital investment proposals above will result in estimated revenue
consequences as follows:
Revenue Consequence
(changes year-on-year)

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

£

£

Investment Income
Ascent LLP windup **
Borrowing Costs

£
(5,170)
522,880
139,970

£
5,010
39,960

900
37,110

370
21,530

Total

657,680

44,970

38,010

21,900

** Disposal of capital assets and termination of associated loan / debenture

5.4.

Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy

5.4.1. The current Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy was approved by Members in
February 2017 and is due to finish in 2021/22. It had the effect of both reducing
expenditure and increasing income. The need to grow income is now more of a
priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing (that is, not
reliant on direct government funding such as revenue support grant).
5.4.2. The strategy was developed with the underlying principles of protecting frontline
service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable the
Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the established
priorities set out in the Corporate Plan. It focused primarily on major
procurements, the asset management plan, growth, income generation and
rationalisation.
5.4.3. The current strategy is now largely delivered and any remaining targets will be
rolled inro 2022/23. A notional target of £100k has been incorporated into this
iteration of the plan, largely reflecting good housekeeping around new
procurements and recommissioning and delivery is not until 2025/26. However,
any further savings or income generation opportunities identified will be factored

Page 26

into MTFP updates and work will begin on developing a new efficiency
programme during 2022/23, to provide capacity to respond to any negative
funding outcomes arising from central Government reviews of local government
funding.
5.5.

Major Contracts

5.5.1. One of the major cost pressures as a result of Covid-19 has been the impact on
some of the Council’s major contracts. However, there are also other potential
pressures, as well as potential savings that need to be reflected in the MTFP
forecast.
Alliance Environmental Services
5.5.2. Alliance Environmental Services (AES) delivers waste, fleet, street cleansing and
grounds maintenance services to both High Peak Borough and Staffordshire
Moorlands District Councils. The company has three shareholders: Staffordshire
Moorlands District Council, High Peak Borough Council and Ansa, which is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East Council.
5.5.3. The contract fee for 2022/23 has been established following discussions between
the Council and AES. The contract fee has been calculated based on the base
2021/22 contract fee plus future inflation/growth items less forecast savings
achieved.
5.5.4. Change demand items flagged by AES which will affect the management fee
from 2022/23 include: hydrotreated vegetable oil (HVO) introduction; an
improvement on recycling markets basket of goods prices; organic contract
savings; tonnage changes; drivers pay and hours changes; and National
Insurance increase.

Leisure Centres
5.5.5.

Financial support was provided in respect of the Council’s leisure centres during
the various lockdown and recovery periods in both 2020/21 and 2021/22. A
£272,000 growth item was built into the MTFP in 2021/22 and this is reversed
back out from 2022/23 onwards, on the working assumption of a return to pre
COVID-19 levels.
Facilities Management

5.5.6. The Council are currently exploring an alternative delivery model for the operation
of Facilities Management via establishing a trading company in partnership with
Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. and Norse Commercial Services (wholly owned by
Norfolk County Council) This is subject to conclusion and approval of the
business case. No financial consequences of this arrangement have been built
into the MTFP at this stage, but it is expected that service improvements and
client functions will be delivered within existing budget constraints. Proposals for
a new depot should contribute towards a response to the Climate Change crisis
by provision of charging points, more efficient vehicles and heating systems.

Page 27

5.6.

Member Priority Actions / Projects

5.6.1.

During the development of the Corporate Plan a number of priority actions have
been identified and prioritised by members. These are as follows:
Financial Implications
Member Priority Actions / Projects

(y/n)

Leader
Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative ways of
generating income

Firm - in
plans

Costs
understood not in plans

Costs
not yet
known

Y



Support the development of Cornhill and improved rail links

Y



Develop a masterplan for bringing redundant mills back into use

Y



Support the development of Cornhill and improved rail links

Y



Refresh the Council’s Communications Strategy in order to ensure that
there is a more effective dialogue with residents

N

Implement the Council’s Growth Strategy to bring about the
regeneration of towns and rural communities

N

Develop a new Organisational Development Strategy to ensure that our
workforce is developed effectively
Leisure and Sports

Y

Identify and implement an approach to reduce the cost of country parks

Y

Review the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy in order to integrate the
communities and sports clubs into the delivery of its objectives

N





Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the transfer of services to Alliance
Environmental Services Ltd, to deliver ground maintenance services on
behalf of the Council in order to achieve improved performance and
value for money outcomes

Y

Develop a plan to improve Brough Park and John Hall Gardens

Y



Y



Y



Develop and implement an ongoing indoor leisure facilities
improvement plan focussed on improving the health and wellbeing of
residents
Develop and implement an outdoor leisure facilities improvement plan
focussed around the “sports village” concept

Page 28



Financial Implications
Member Priority Actions / Projects

(y/n)

Firm in
plans

Costs
understood not in plans

Costs
not yet
known

Customer Services
Continue to embed good information management practices through the
ASSURED framework

N

Develop a new ICT Strategy to enhance and support the delivery of services

Y

Develop a new Procurement Strategy with a focus on spending money locally

N

Develop an Access to Services to ensure that Council services are accessible
to all
Environment

Y





Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the transfer of services to Alliance
Environmental Services Ltd to deliver street cleansing services on behalf of the
Council in order to achieve improved performance and value for money
outcomes

Y



Review the Council’s waste & recycling arrangements to increase recycling
and to respond to the emerging new national strategy

Y



N



Review the Environmental Enforcement Policy in order to take steps to further
environmental crime



Climate Change
Develop a Climate Change Strategy and an action plan of response to a
declared climate emergency



Y

Communities
Complete the review of the CCTV system and implem ent the agreed
recommendations

Y

Develop a strategy for further development of affordable and s pecialist housing

Y

Develop a Private Sector Housing Strategy to improve conditions for
homeowners and private tenants

N

Develop a Tourism Strategy to maximise the pos itive impact to our
communities

N

Review the Council’s community support arrangements in order to maintain
strong partnerships with community groups
Planning & Property

N

Refresh and im plement the Asset Management Plan, including a review of
public estate, and ensure adequate facilities management arrangements are in
place

Y

Develop and implement plans to improve the public market operations

Y

Adopt a new Local Plan

Y



Develop a new Parking Strategy to ensure that our car parks meet the needs
of residents and visitors

Y



Page 29








5.6.2. Any costs or revenue associated with these actions will need to be included in
the MTFP. The impact of a number of them is already included in this iteration
of the plan but additional work will need to be undertaken to develop a number
of the actions further and at the same time identify any financial implications.
6.

Financial Forecasts

6.1.

Introduction

6.1.1. A review of financial forecasts includes: Updated interest rate forecasts
 Updated inflationary projections
 Any pensions impact relating to economic changes
 Estimation of any budget demand or growth items that have been
incorporated into the MTFP
6.2.

Interest Rates

6.2.1. The Bank of England base rate increased from 0.10% to 0.25% in December
2021. The Council’s advisors, Link, forecast a slow but stead increase in average
earnings over the period of the medium term financial plan, reaching 0.75% by the
end of 2022/23, with a quarter % increase each year thereafter up to 1.25% at the
end of 2025/26. PWLB borrowing rates are also seeing an increase over the
period with 5 year rates, for example, increasing from 1.5% to 2%.
6.2.2. Based on the current forecasts, changes in investment income and borrowing
costs (based on interest rate changes) are highlighted below:Changes to treasury estimates
based on interest rate changes

Changes in Investment Income
Changes in Borrowing costs

2022/23
£
(53,510)
(265,240)*

2023/24
£
(100,980)
21,510

2024/25
£
(50,650)
(11,420)

2025/26
£
(38,560)
46,500

*income from the housing capital loan is netted off the borrowing costs

6.2.3. The forecast budget for borrowing costs and investment income are shown
below:Treasury Budgets – Borrowing
costs and investment Income

Borrowing Costs
Investment Income

6.3.

2022/23
£
99,310
(79,390)

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

£
160,780
(175,360)

£
186,470
(225,110)

£
254,500
(263,300)

Inflationary Projections

6.3.1. The Retail Price Index (RPI) and Consumer Price Index (CPI) 12 month rate, as at
December 2021, stood at 7.5 % and 5.4% respectively. Inflation forecasts are

Page 30

made reflecting the composition of the Council’s expenditure, resulting in an
inflation rate specific to the Council.
6.3.2. This includes the impact on staff pay, supplies and services, premises related
costs and transport. The current high levels of inflation arising out of effects of
Covid, supply chain pressures, and increased utility prices will feed through the
system as increased service costs as contracts are renewed and uplifted.
6.3.3. The MTFP has been updated to reflect the latest forecasts on inflation and to roll
forward a further 12 months to include the 2025/26 financial year. The full costs to
the Council arising from inflation are forecast in the table below.
Expenditure/Income

6.4.

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

£

£

£

£

Employee Costs
Premises Costs
Transport
Supplies and Services

330,600
110,110
0
224,090

151,330
92,490
1,410
197,180

125,640
48,090
1,430
135,080

127,770
49,060
1,440
140,570

In-Year Inflation Pressure

664,800

442,410

310,240

318,840

Budgetary Demand

6.4.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan presented to Council in February 2021 analysed
and projected forward both income and expenditure. This has been revised to
reflect known changes in budgetary demand.
6.4.2. The current changes in budgetary demand, included in this iteration of MTFP, are
highlighted below:-

Increased / (Reduced) Budget Demand

Uniforms – Customer Services
Car Park income - Covid effect reversal
Leisure Centre Support reversal

2022/23
£

2,500

2023/24
£

(2,500)

(81,000)
(272,000)
(53,000)

Regeneration - Market Stalls Arrangements

134,000

(134,000)

(100,000)

5,000

BioDiversity Strategy

25,000

(25,000)

ICT - Customer Services software

11,000

(11,000)

Car Parks - LED Lighting upgrade
Write-back Excess budget

Page 31

2024/25
£

2,500

2025/26
£

(2,500)

Community Funding

20,000

(10,000)

Assets - Asbestos & Legionella surveys

(2,500)

Assets - H&S Path Maintenance
Assets - Asbestos works

25,000

Assets - Bus shelter maintenance

(5,000)

Assets - CCTV upgrade Moorlands House

20,000

Assets - Warslow WC grant
Local Plan - Revision & Maintenance
AES - Hydrotreated Vegetable Oil (HVO) fuel
AES - Green Waste contract saving

(25,000)

(20,000)

4,000
(20,000)

35,000

20,000

150,000

15,900

300

300

300

6,200

6,600

6,900

(25,000)

(25,000)

4,400

129,700

(136,800)

AES - NIC increase

18,700

AES - HGV Driver costs

81,300

AES - Waste tonnage changes

(20,000)

(53,000)

AES - Recycling markets improvement

(208,500)

AES - contract sum planned reduction

(25,000)

(25,000)

Elections Reserve adjustment

(15,000)

15,000

(558,900)

(266,500)

Total

6.4.3. In the table above the following items merit further explanation:

Leisure centres – removal of the one-year contractor support of £272,000
added to the budget in 2021/22.

Car parks - reversal of the £81,000 Covid income loss adjustment added
into the budget in 2021/22

Waste Collection - Recycling cost reduction arising out of increased
tonnages (£53,000); green waste gate fees savings (£136,800) and
material sale values (£208,500).

Local Plan – Build up of costs in maintaining and revising the Plan

Car Park – Introduction of energy saving LED lighting to the Council Car
Parks
6.4.4. In addition to the above, there may be a requirement to include upfront increased
budget demand in relation to climate change related projects in future years.
Some of these costs may already be included with the MTFP forecast – for
example, schemes within the asset management plan and fleet purchase

Page 32

programme where environmental impact will be a significant consideration.
However, any additional costs will be assessed and included within future MTFP
iterations once known and the business case has been developed.
6.4.5. It may also be necessary to include increased budget provision as a result of the
completion of service plans and in accordance with the Organisational Strategy –
which is scheduled to be reviewed in line with Corporate Plan objectives.
Additional staff resource or expertise may be necessary to deliver specific
projects. This will be reviewed by the Transformation Board as part of the
business case process for each project.

6.5.

Budget Growth

6.5.1. In previous years, very few additions in respect of budget growth have been
included in the MTFP. It is assumed in light of the financial pressures faced by the
Council, that any local issues that necessitate budget growth will be financed by
internal spending reductions elsewhere. Occasionally, however, it is necessary to
include budget growth to meet spending commitments. No such items are
included in this iteration of the MTFP.
6.6.

Pensions

6.6.1. The Pension Fund triennial valuation, which took place in 2019, fixed the Council’s
contributions for the first 2 years of this plan. A further valuation is to take place in
2022, which will set the contributions payable up until 2025/26.
6.6.2. At this stage the plan assumes no further increase in contributions will be
necessary arising out of the 2022 valuation. At the 2019 valuation the Staffordshire
Moorlands portion of the Pension Fund had a funding level of 84%.
6.6.3. The impacts of Covid19 are not expected to have an effect on pension contribution
rates at this stage. The long term nature of Pension Fund forecasting means the
impacts of short term financial shocks are mitigated. This situation will continue to
be monitored following the outcome of this next valuation.
7.

Funding & Income Generation

7.1.

Introduction

7.1.1. The key areas of funding and income generation include:

Council Tax and Business Rates collection

Income from Government Grants

Longer term impact on fees and charges income
7.2.

Council Tax

7.2.1. The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax levels, following the abolition of
capping. However the Council’s ability to increase Council Tax by more than a
certain percentage is subject to referendum. For 2022/23, this percentage has

Page 33

been confirmed as 2%, but alternatively, lower tier Authorities have the option to
increase the Band D by up to £5 – whichever is higher.
7.2.2. The MTFP assumes that a 2.99% increase is applied in 2022/23 (which equates to
£4.74 on Band D) with 1.9% assumed from 2023/24 onwards (as Government
consultation is currently ongoing regarding future years).
7.2.3. Provision has been included within the Plan to reflect anticipated growth in Council
Tax base over the next 4 years. The figures included are shown in the table
below:
Increased Council Tax Income

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

£

£

£

£

Council Tax increase
Revenue from future tax base
TOTAL
growth

(203,100)
(203,100)

(111,760)
(46,380)
(158,140)

(114,770)
(47,260)
(162,030)

(117,850)
(48,160)
(166,010)

Council Tax Income Budget

(5,882,250)

(6,040,390)

(6,202,420)

(6,368,430)

7.2.4. There is an increased risk associated with non-payment as a result of the on-going
impact of Covid-19, with some households potentially struggling to meet
instalments. However, the financial impact will only be felt by the Council if
outstanding debts are not collected in the medium term and are subsequently
written off.
7.3.

Business Rates Retention

7.3.1. Under the 50% Business Rates Retention system, the Authority retains 40% of
Business Rates income less a tariff that is payable into a pool made up of
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Authorities. This amount is then compared to a
Funding Baseline (estimated at £2,622,420 for 2022/23); any amount in excess of
this Baseline is subject to levy, or conversely if the amount of retained Business
Rates is below this Baseline, the loss is capped by a safety net payment. The
MTFP does not anticipate the Council falling below the Baseline.
7.3.2. As part of the Staffordshire Pool, the levy or the safety net payment is made to or
from the Pool instead of Central Government. If the Council was not in the
Staffordshire Pool it would have to pay 50p in the £1 to the Government as a levy,
effectively limiting the income the Council can gain from business rates growth.
However, as part of the Pool, the Council retains 40% of this levy plus 20% or a
minimum amount (currently £192,000); meaning that for every £1 achieved above
the baseline at least 60% is retained by the Council with the remainder going to
the Pool to be distributed within Staffordshire. The benefit to the Council of being
part of the Pool arrangement is estimated to be £542,100 in 2022/23.
7.3.3. Whilst central government continues to review business rates, the MTFP forecasts
the Council’s income from Business Rates Retention under the current system
throughout the plan. Changes in the level of the Council’s business rates will be

Page 34

impacted by a range of factors, including the Staffordshire Pool’s success in
generating new and retaining existing business within its area. At this stage,
predicted levels of business rates income are based on known and expected
changes to the current business rates listing.
7.3.4. Where collectible income is suppressed due to the award of reliefs announced by
the government (including increased small business rate relief, caps on inflation to
the multiplier, extended rural relief, public convenience relief, retail discount,
supporting small businesses and extended transitional relief), the council is
compensated with funding received under Section 31 of the Local Government Act
2003. The MTFP assumes equivalent Section 31 grants will continue on any
extension to reliefs announced by the Government.
7.3.5. Risks to the Council’s funding associated with non-payment of business rates
which may occur following the effects of Covid-19 on businesses are
accommodated for through an increased provision for bad debts: in the recent
past this has been calculated as 0.6% of collectible income; this was increased to
1% for the 2021/22 budget. As things begin to recover, this is reduced to 0.75%
for the first two years of the MTFP plan, then back to the original level of 0.6% in
the final two years.
Business Rates Retention

In year:
Baseline Funding
Achievement against Baseline
Section 31 Grant
Total
Change between years:
Business Rates retained
Section 31 Grant
Total

7.4.

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

£

£

£

£

(2,622,420)

(2,665,170)

(2,708,610)

(2,752,760)

643,620

(104,910)

(159,100)

(208,760)

(2,366,150)
(4,344,950)

(1,698,170)
(4,468,250)

(1,740,590)
(4,608,300)

(1,783,660)
(4,745,180)

478,470

(791,280)

(97,630)

(93,810)

(1,022,120)
(543,650)

667,980
(123,300)

(42,420)
(140,050)

(43,070)
(136,880)

Collection Fund

7.4.1. The Council maintains a Collection Fund to record the receipt of Council Tax and
Business Rates and their distribution to precepting authorities. Any surplus or
deficit generated is distributed or recovered from the preceptors in subsequent
years.
7.4.2. The Staffordshire Moorlands’ share of a surplus, in respect of Council Tax, to be
distributed in 2022/23 is £61,320.
7.4.3. The Staffordshire Moorlands’ share of the business rates deficit to be distributed in
2022/23 is £906,580. This largely relates to the award of Extended Retail Relief,
Nursery discount and Covid-19 Addition Relief Fund announced by the
Government in response to the Covid crisis. The Council will ringfence the

Page 35

associated s31 grant funding received in 2021/22 to offset this deficit distribution in
2022/23.
7.4.4. These and future year movements are set out in the table below:
Changes in Collection
Fund Income

Council Tax
Business Rates
Total

7.5.

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

£

£

£

£

(133,770)

31,280

(1,410)

(1,480)

(3,082,760)
(3,216,530)

(906,580)
(875,300)

0
(1,410)

0
(1,480)

Income from Government Grants
New Homes Bonus (NHB)

7.5.1. In the provisional Local Government financial settlement released in December,
the Government confirmed that during 2022/23, it would be consulting on a
replacement for the New Homes Bonus scheme (originally planned for 2020/21,
but delayed due to Covid-19). The new housing incentive scheme will reflect a
more targeted approach that rewards local government where they are ‘ambitious’
in delivering housing growth. At this stage, there is no further detail on what form
the new scheme will take.
7.5.2. The allocation of New Homes Bonus is secure for 2022/23 with the Council
receiving £255,050 in funding; beyond that no commitment is made for future
years.
7.5.3. The recent tendency towards one-off annual awards with no associated legacy
payments, has further eroded the base income received by the Council from this
funding source.
7.5.4. In the absence of any further information, this iteration of the MTFP assumes that
the Council will continue to receive funding from New Homes Bonus in future
years albeit on a reducing basis. The Plan assumes funding of £100,000 in
2023/24 (Year 2) reducing further to £75,000 for years 3 and 4. This reduces the
inherent funding risk associated with the uncertainty of this income source.
Other Grant Support
7.5.5.

As part of the spending review announcement in December 2021, it was
confirmed that Government support would be provided into 2022/23, including the
following grant awards:



Lower Tier Services Grant (£117,630)
New Services Grant (£180,780)
Rural Services Delivery Grant (£63,440)

Page 36

7.5.6.

At this stage, it is assumed that the Rural Services Delivery Grant will be on-going
throughout the life of Plan; the New Services Grant will reduce to 75% of that
received in 2022/23; and the Lower Tier Services Grant will not be awarded in
2023/24 or thereafter.

Summary of Income from Government Grants
7.5.7.

The table below summarises the movement in Government funding over the
MTFP period:
Government Grant (gain) / loss
of funding

2021/22
(Budget)

2022/23
(forecast)

2023/24
(forecast)

2024/25
(forecast)

2025/26
(forecast)

New Homes Bonus
Covid Support Grant
Lower Tier Service Grant
New Services Grant
Rural Services Delivery Grant
Local Council Tax Scheme Grant

£
(121,880)
(435,880)
(111,680)
-)
(91,840)
(761,280)

£
(255,050)
(117,630)
(180,780)
(63,440)

£
(100,000)
(135,580)
(63,440)

£
(75,000)
(135,580)
(63,440)

£
(75,000)
(135,580)
(63,440)

(616,900)

(299,020)

(274,020)

(274,020)

-

144,380

317,880

25,000

-

(Gain)/ Loss in Govt Funding

7.6.

Fees and Charges

7.6.1. Charging for local services makes a significant contribution to the Council’s
finances. The Council also uses charging to influence individual choices and
behaviour, and to bring other benefits to local communities. The Council’s
Charging Policy sets out the following principles for establishing the level of fees
and charges:
 The cost of providing services should be fully met by income
 There is a standard approach to concessions for those on low incomes
 Where a subsidy is agreed, this should be used to support the development of
Council services in accordance with priorities
 Subsidies should be reconfirmed annually
7.6.2. Charges are set in line with the categories below
Charging Policy

Policy Objective

Full commercial

Service is promoted to maximise revenue within an overall objective of generating a
surplus from the service

Fair charging

Service is promoted to maximise income but subject to defined policy constraints
including commitments made to potential customers on an appropriate fee structure

Cost recovery

Service generally available to all but without a subsidy

Subsidised

Service is widely accessible, but users of the service should make some contribution
from their own resources

Nominal

Service to be fully available and a charge is made to discourage frivolous usage

Free

Service fully available at no cost

Statutory

Charges are set in line with legal obligations

Page 37

7.6.3.

The proposed fees and charges for 2022/23 are presented in APPENDIX C to this
report.

7.6.4.

The Medium Term Financial Plan would normally project that the Council will
increase fees and charges (and other income) broadly in line with inflation. Whilst
recognising that certain income streams (such as car parking, planning receipts)
may not increase each year and that other income streams (such as grants and
rental income) are fixed or subject to periodic review.

7.6.5.

However, the assumed general increase in base income was suspended for years
1 and 2 of the current plan, whilst fees and charges income levels recovered from
the effects of Covid19; meaning that no inflationary increase is assumed for
2022/23.

7.6.6.

The underlying annual total expected from inflationary increases to fees and
charges from 2023/24 onwards has reverts to £25,000 per annum.

7.6.7.

In 2022/23, additional revenue reflects an increase in car park charges arising out
of a review of the Parking Strategy conducted over the last 2 years.

7.6.8.

The projected revenue from increased fees and charges (and other income) is
summarised in the table below:
Increased Fees and Changes

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

£

£

£

£

Revenue from increased Fees and Charges
Revenue from Car Park charge increase*

(85,000)

(25,000)
-

(25,000)
-

(125,000)
-

Total

(85,000)

(25,000)

(25,000)

(125,000)

(5,905,900)

(5,930,900)

(5,995,900)

(6,080,900)

Total budgeted Income from Fees & Charges
*subject to the outcomes of the Park ing Strategy review

8.

Risks, Contingencies & Use of Reserves

8.1.

Contingencies

8.1.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is underpinned by a number of assumptions.
These assumptions have been made in the light of currently available information.
New information, when it emerges, may require the Council to alter its
assumptions with a consequential effect on the Council’s financial position.
8.1.2. Key risk areas will be closely monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis and
remedial action taken. Members will receive quarterly updates on performance
against the budget.
8.1.3. The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks cannot be
fully mitigated. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief

Page 38

Finance Officer (CFO) to report on the robustness of the estimates included in the
budget and the adequacy of the reserves that the budget provides.
8.1.4. While there is no detailed guidance on calculating the level of general reserves the
Council is encouraged to take into account the strategic, operational and financial
risks facing the Council. These amounts are then moderated to acknowledge the
likelihood of all risk events occurring together. The table below presents the
analysis undertaken by the Council last year in calculating the minimum level of
general reserve required.
Risk Item

Calculation Factor

Value

Reserve
Requirement

£’m

£

Expenditure Items (gross) – Employee Related

3% of value

6.33

190,000

Expenditure Items (gross) – Other

3% of value

10.39

312,000

Housing Benefits

0.25% of value

11.50

29,000

Fees and Charges

5.5% of value

5.10

281,000

Interest Receipts/Payments

50% fall in average rate

0.02

10,000

Efficiency Provisions

50% of value

0.70

352,000

Council Tax Collection

2.5% of value

5.68

142,000

Business Rates Retention

6% of value

3..80

228,000

Development Services Income

6% of value

0.50

30,000

Local Land Charges

6% income fall

0.14

8,000

New Homes Bonus

50% income fall

0.12

61,000

Total Requirement all events
Moderation

1,643,000
10% reduction

Total Requirement

(164,300)
1,478,700

8.1.5. These factors all remain valid, so it is proposed that the minimum general reserve
contingency balance should remain at £1,478,000 to meet unforeseen expenditure
and/or shortfalls in income.
8.1.6.

The level and utilisation of reserves is determined formally by the Council, having
received the advice and judgement of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). The Chief
Financial Officer’s advice is:
“In the view of the Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer (Section 151
Officer), the budget includes estimates which take into account circumstances
and events which are reasonably foreseeable at the time of preparing the budget.
The view is therefore held, that the level of reserves are adequate for the Council
based on this budget and the circumstances in place at the time of preparing it.”
[Note: A formal record of the Chief Finance Officer’s advice is recorded in the
minutes of the Council meeting. In the unusual event that a Chief Finance

Page 39

Officer’s advice is not accepted by a Council, the rejection by a Council of the
Chief Finance Officer’s advice must be recorded in the minutes].
8.1.7.

Further detail of the CFO’s determination in regard to contingency balances and
reserves is detailed in ANNEX C.

8.2.

Use of Reserves and Balances

8.2.1.

When setting the Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan in February 2021, the
general fund contingency reserves balance as at 31st March 2021 was estimated
to total £3.481 million.

8.2.2.

Following the 2020/21 outturn position and after other earmarked reserves
movements, the general fund contingency balance as at 31st March 2021
improved to £4.087m.

8.2.3.

The updated MTFP shows a forecast cumulative surplus position of £5,340 over
the four years – which represents the required use of reserves in order to balance
the 4 year plan. The annual changes in the contingency reserve as well as other
earmarked reserves where it is planned to draw funding, are shown in the table
below:

8.2.4.

With effect from 2022/23, the MTFP reflects a £5,340 contribution to Contingency
reserves over the next 4 years (2022/23 £120,230 contribution; 2023/24 £63,900
usage; 2024/25 £50,990 usage; and 2025/26 £0 usage).

Reserve
Contingency
Section 106 Monies
Business Rates s31 Reserve
Total Contribution / (Usage)
Change in use of reserves

2021/22
(Budget)
£
(256,080)
(7,700)
(3,989,340)
(4,253,120)

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

£
120,230
(7,700)
(906,580)
(794,050)
3,459,070

£
(63,900)
(7,700)
0
(71,600)
722,450

£
(50,990)
(7,700)

£
0
(7,700)

(58,690)
12,910

(7,700)
50,990

8.2.5. The table below shows the revised level of contingency reserves over the life of
the Medium Term Financial Plan:
Contingency reserve

2021/22
(Budget)
£

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

£

£

£

£

As at February 2022:
Balance at year end

5,522,300

5,642,530

5,578,630

5,527,640

5,527,640

Minimum requirement (8.1)
Headroom

1,480,000
4,042,300

1,480,000
4,162,530

1,480,000
4,098,620

1,480,000
4,047,630

1,480,000
4,047,630

Page 40

8.2.6. At the end of year 4 of the plan (2025/26) there would be an estimated balance of
£5.528million in General Fund Contingency reserves – which would be £4.048
million above the required £1.48 million minimum balance.
8.3.

Risk Identification and Management

8.3.1. The early identification and management of risks is critical to the Budget and
Medium Term Financial Planning process. Risks are assessed, mitigated and
actively managed to ensure that the Council delivers its services effectively within
the funding at its disposal. The principal risks to the Medium Term Financial Plan
are summarised in ANNEX B.
8.3.2. Risk areas will be closely monitored and reviewed on an on-going basis and
remedial action taken as appropriate. Risks associated with specific projects will
be identified within the project methodology documents and reviewed monthly by
the Transformation Board.
8.3.3. The table overleaf highlights specific financial risks that are embedded within this
Medium Term Financial Plan:
Revenue Risks

Capital Risks

 Inflationary assumptions
 Interest rates
 Revenue consequences of
capital
 Housing benefits
 Fees and charges
 Universal Credit
 Business Rates Retention
scheme
 Council Tax collection
 New Homes Bonus
 Financial benefits from
partnerships / shared services
 Pension costs
 Insurance costs
 Waste management costs
 Brexit implications














Interest rates
External funding
Capital receipts
Capacity to deliver capital
programme
Project overspend
Project overrun
External factors (e.g.
planning objections, judicial
reviews etc. leading to
project delay)
Housing Joint Venture
Suppliers / Contractors /
Contract Management
Weather
Brexit implications

8.3.4. In addition, there are a number of Covid-19 related financial risks to the MTFP to
be regularly reviewed and considered:



The impact that a recession may have on Council Tax and Business Rates
collection and increased risk of non-payment which is not subsequently
collected
The period of recovery is prolonged which has further cost pressure
consequences for the Council – especially in regard to the operation of leisure
centres
Fees and Charges income levels do not return to pre-Covid levels as forecast

Page 41





The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic problems
in town centres and the broader economy, as well as community safety issues,
which lead to increased cost pressures
Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic support.
Further national lockdowns / tiered systems imposed which leads to further
pressures on businesses and households and additional costs to the Council
in providing support

9.

Budget 2022/23

9.1.

Budget preparation work has now been completed and an overall balanced budget
position has been reached with the inclusion of a projected contribution into
reserves of £120,230.

Proposed Budget
9.2.

The proposed 2022/23 Budget is detailed below:Budget Heading
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies & Services
Benefits
Borrowing
Total Expenditure
Fees and Charges / Other Income
Interest Receipts
Net Expenditure
Council Tax
Business Rates Retention
Government Funding
New Homes Bonus
Earmarked Reserves
Contingency Balances
Collection Fund
Total Financing

2022/23
£
6,650,920
2,312,230
141,260
7,569,450
5,010
99,310
16,778,180
(5,905,900)
(79,390)
10,792,890
(5,882,250)
(4,344,950)
(361,850)
(255,050)
(914,280)
120,230
845,260
(10,792,890)

Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)

0

Efficiency Requirement

0

In Year Deficit / (Surplus)

0

Page 42

Council Tax Requirement 2022/23
9.3.

The table below illustrates the Council Tax requirement for 2022/23:2022/23
Net Expenditure

£
10,792,890

Efficiency Target
New Homes Bonus
Government Funding
Business Rates Retention
Use of Reserves
Collection Fund

0
(255,050)
(361,850)
(4,344,950)
(794,050)
845,260

Net Requirement from Council Tax

5,882,250

9.4.

Members will be aware that the Council has adopted the following items of
expenditure as Special District Expenses (SDEs) to be levied on specific parishes:
 Leek – Brough Park, Birch Gardens, Recreation Grounds and Leek Cemetery;
and
 Biddulph – Recreation Grounds.

9.5.

Estimated net expenditure for 2022/23 in respect of Special District Expense items
is set out in the table below:
Special District Expense

Net Cost
£

Leek
Brough Park
Recreation Grounds
Birch Gardens
Cemetery
Total

100,340
81,920
30,730
135,010
348,000

Biddulph
Recreation Grounds
Total

67,430
67,430

TOTAL LEVY

415,430

9.6.

Members should note that overall Special District Expenses have been adjusted to
stay within the 2.99% overall increase, to accord with the Council’s strategy for
District Council Tax levels in 2022/23.

9.7.

The overall Council Tax requirement contained within these proposals is
summarised in the table below.

Page 43

Budget
Requirement Tax Base
£
District Council Tax

Band D
Increase/
Council Tax (Decrease)
£
%

5,466,820

33,510

163.14

2.99%

348,000
67,430

6,576
6,337

52.92
10.64

0%
0%

Special District Expense
Leek
Biddulph

10.

MTFP General Fund Revenue Position

10.1. The medium term general fund revenue position is as set out in the table below,
which summaries the impact of the discussions in the previous sections of the
report:Summary Revenue Position

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

£

£

£

£

657,680

44,970

38,010

21,900

(318,750)

(79,470)

(62,070)

7,940

664,800

442,410

310,240

318,840

(558,900)

(266,500)

4,400

129,700

0

0

0

0

Increased Council Tax Income (section 7.2.3)

(203,100)

(158,140)

(162,030)

(166,010)

Business Rates Retention (section 7.3.5)

(543,650)

(123,300)

(140,050)

(136,880)

(3,216,530)

(875,300)

(1,410)

(1,480)

Reduction in Government Grant (section 7.5.7)

144,380

317,880

25,000

0

Additional Fees and Charges (section 7.6.8)

(85,000)

(25,000)

(25,000)

(125,000)

3,459,070

722,450

12,910

50,990

In Year Change in Position

0

0

0

100,000

Efficiency & Rationalisation Plan (section 5.4.7)

0

0

0

(100,000)

Budget (Surplus) / Deficit

0

0

0

0

Revenue Consequences of Capital Spend (section 5.3.27)
Interest Rate Changes (section 6.2.2)
Inflation Pressures (section 6.3.3)
Increased / (Reduced) Budget Demand (section 6.4.2)
Budget Growth (section 6.5.1)

Changes in Collection Fund Surplus (section 7.4.4)

Contribution to/(Use of) Reserves & Balances (section 8.2.4)

Page 44

10.2. The table above table shows a balanced position over the life of the Medium Term
Financial Plan assuming Efficiency Programme savings of £100,000 are achieved.
10.3. The above position includes the contribution of £5,340 into contingency reserves
during the life of the plan.
10.4. ANNEX D shows the indicative detailed revenue budget for the period 2022/23 –
2024/25.
11.

Consultation

11.1

The Council is committed to consulting with residents and other stakeholders to
help inform the budget setting process and spending priorities/non-priorities. The
Council already holds comprehensive information gathered about residents’
spending priorities. Normal processes of consultation have been hampered by
Covid, so the consultation process for the 2022/23 Budget was undertaken via an
online communication on the Council’s website. With significant uncertainty and
risk around the MTFP (particularly around Government funding reviews), it has
been extremely difficult to undertake meaningful consultation. This will be
enhanced again for next year’s budget setting and MTFP process.

Page 45

ANNEX A
Proposed Capital Projections (2021/22 to 2025/26)

Capital Schemes

Asset Management Plan
Public Buildings
Car Parks
Public Conveniences
Infrastructure/Waterways
Leisure Centres
Depots & Park Buildings
Industrial Units

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

Total

£

£

£

£

£

£

100,000
2,240
247,730
158,690
508,660

50,000
400,000
64,900
9,360
60,000
150,000
734,260

183,340
99,640
208,220
373,080
645,510
1,509,790

368,220
171,950
172,400
5,130
717,700

603,220
441,350
1,279,050
360,060
140,710
2,824,390

1,204,780
1,113,300
166,780
217,580
2,132,260
1,319,390
140,710
6,294,800

23,200

-

-

-

-

23,200

Loan - Housing Company

10,000,000

-

-

-

-

10,000,000

Disabled Facilities Grants

1,500,000

1,500,000

1,500,000

1,500,000

1,500,000

7,500,000

122,000

20,000

50,000

50,000

40,560

282,560

1,062,630

774,070

320,000

15,000

-

2,171,700

53,520
150,000
251,720
85,650
200,000
740,890

50,000
373,000
50,000
473,000

41,920
130,000
171,920

50,000
120,000
170,000

50,000
70,000
120,000

245,440
373,000
200,000
571,720
85,650
200,000
1,675,810

13,957,380

3,501,330

3,551,710

2,452,700

4,484,950

27,948,070

1,519,940

1,500,000

1,500,000

1,500,000

1,500,000

7,519,940

12,437,440

2,001,330

2,051,710

952,700

2,984,950

20,428,130

Private Housing Grants

ICT Projects
Fleet Management
Other Schemes
Conservation
Market Town Regeneration
Outdoor Sports Facilities
Public Parks/Play Facilities
CCTV
Community Facilities

TOTAL PROGRAMME
CONTRIBUTIONS
NET PROGRAMME

Page 46

ANNEX B
Medium Term Financial Plan – Principal Risks
Risk Category

Risk

Mitigation and Controls

Financial
Implications

Robustness of financial
assumptions within Efficiency
and Rationalisation Strategy

Structured project management
arrangements have been put in place with
detailed business cases for each initiative –
these will be strengthened in the service
review process

Financial
Implications

Additional financial pressures
emerge – cost & income

The strategy is kept under constant review
and adjustments will be made where
necessary.

Service
Continuity

Interruptions to key services or
performance standards

Resource implications and impact are
identified as part of the business case
process. Service continuity and
maintenance of standards of service are
key requirements of any new proposals.

Corporate
Governance

Maintaining stakeholder
confidence; lack of clarity on
accountability

Ongoing review of standards of internal
control (e.g. Financial Procedure Rules
reviewed and updated). Internal Audit Plan
takes into account the new approach.

Management of
Change

Management of corporate and
local, cultural change;
behavioural risks; residual
effects of aggregation;
proposed changes to
organisational structure, roles
& responsibilities

Progress with achievement of aims will be
monitored through an effective performance
management structure. Investment has
been made in a new approach to
Organisational Development.

People Risks

Impact of cultural changes;
assessment of skills;
recruitment & retention;
capacity issues

Continuing communications process for the
delivery of transformation programme

Key Projects &
Partnerships

Managing changes to shared
service delivery arrangements

The project management methodology
provides for an adequate transition where
there are changes in service delivery

Performance
Management

Adequacy of framework to
monitor transition

Risk management processes are
embedded

Reputation and
Relationship
Risks

Maintaining existing partner
confidence

Continuing communications process for the
delivery of transformation programme

Programme

Delays in implementation of

Effective governance arrangements in place

Page 47

Risk Category
Delivery

Risk

Mitigation and Controls

efficiency savings

to monitor plans.
Executive Directors and Senior Managers
own delivery of efficiencies.
Chief Executive Director acts as
programme director.

Programme
Delivery

A number of the efficiency /
rationalisation initiatives are
not achieved

Structured project management approach is
in place for delivery including effective
exception reporting
The strategy is kept under constant review
Identification of further efficiency /
rationalisation opportunities through
benchmarking / effective member working
groups

Political Support

Lack of Members support for
Plan.

Regular reporting and member briefings
including effective scrutiny arrangements

Page 48

ANNEX C
Chief Finance Officer’s Review of Contingencies / Reserves
Chief Finance Officer’s Section 25 Review
The purpose of this statement is to provide councillors with information on the robustness
of the estimates and the adequacy of reserves in the Medium Term Financial Plan
(MTFP).
Background
The Council sets in budget in February each year. In setting the budget the level of
Council Tax and other fees and charges are established. Decisions are based on a
budget that sets out estimates of what the Council plans to spend on each of its services
in the forthcoming year.
The decision on the level of the income is taken before the financial year begins and it
cannot be changed during the year, so allowance for risks and uncertainties that might
increase service expenditure above that planned, must be made by:



Making prudent allowance in the estimates for each of the services; and
Ensuring that there are adequate reserves to draw on if the service estimates turn out
to be insufficient.

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires that the Council’s Chief Finance
Officer reports to Full Council when it is considering its Budget for the forthcoming
financial year. The report must deal with the robustness of the estimates and the
adequacy of the reserves allowed for in the budget proposals, so that councillors have
professional, authoritative advice available to them when they make their decisions.
Section 25 also requires members to have regard to this report in making their decisions.
Robustness of Spending Forecasts
Heads of Service in conjunction with the Council’s Head of Finance monitor detailed
budgets throughout the year. This enables additional service pressures to be identified
on an on-going basis.
Reports are presented on a quarterly basis to the Corporate Select Scrutiny Committee
and Executive. These reports highlight all variances between spending and budgets.
The proposal for the 2022/23 Budget and updated MTFP are based on analysis and
assurances from Heads of Service and their finance support staff. Executive Portfolio
Holders have worked with their respective Executive Directors throughout the process.
Corporate Select members scrutinised the progress of spending throughout the year and
received a report on the draft MTFP in September 2021.
Extensive work has also been carried out to produce the MTFP. A range of broad
assumptions have been utilised and robustly challenged as part of the process.

Page 49

Forecasts take account of the financial commitments that emerge from the Council’s
Corporate Plan.
The Council has taken all reasonable and practical steps to identify and make provision
for the Council’s commitments in 2022/23 in order to achieve a balanced budget.
Robustness of Income Forecasts
The level of Council Tax has been established with reference to the maximum increase
allowed without requiring a referendum. A £5 (Band D equivalent) increase has been
provided for in 2022/23, followed by a 1.9% increase in years 2-4 of the MTFP.
The forecasts of the business rates that will be retained by the Council have been
calculated in line with the current Business Rates Retention Scheme. The forecasts
taken account of the following:







The baseline income set by government;
Prudent forecast of the financial benefits of being a member of the Derbyshire pool
arrangements;
The award of reliefs and the receipt of Section 31 grants to compensate;
Adequate provision to meet the impact of successful appeals; and
Predicted levels of business rates income are based on known and expected changes
to the business rates listing.
Impact of Covid-19 on collection and debts

The level of fees and charges has been assessed in conjunction with Heads of Service.
The proposed levels for 2022/23 take account of the following factors in line with the
Council’s Charging Policy:






The cost of providing services should be fully met by income;
There is a standard approach to concessions for those on low incomes;
Where a subsidy is agreed, this should be used to support the development
of Council services in accordance with priorities; and
Subsidies should be reconfirmed annually.
Impact on demand for services in light of Covid-19

Key Budget Risks
The Government is expected to consult on a number of national reforms which will
impact of the Council’s finances. These include:




Fair funding review;
The Business Rates Retention Scheme including resetting the baseline income;
Replacement of the New Homes Bonus Scheme.

These changes will have a significant impact on the Council’s finances.
The national economic situation remains unpredictable. The coronavirus pandemic has
and will continue to impact on the Council in terms of both the response phase and
subsequent recovery phase. The economic position remains volatile and there is a risk
that a number of local and national drivers such as inflation, interest rates, the valuation

Page 50

of assets and liabilities and the demand for and funding of services will be affected. In
response to this, the Council will set up a financial resilience reserve in 2022/23 and start
planning for a new efficiency programme.
Adequacy of Reserves
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Local Authority
Accounting Panel (LAAP) has a guidance note on Local Authority Reserves and
Balances (LAAP Bulletin 77) to assist local authorities in this process. This guidance is
not statutory, but compliance is recommended in CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the
Finance Director in Local Government. It is best practice to follow this guidance.
The guidance however states that no case has yet been made to set a statutory
minimum level of reserves, either as an absolute amount or a percentage of budget.
Each Local Authority should take advice from its Chief Finance Officer and base its
judgement on local circumstances.
Reserves should be held for three main purposes:




A working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows and avoid
unnecessary temporary borrowing – this forms part of general reserves;
A contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or emergencies – this also
forms part of general reserves;
A means of building up funds known as ‘earmarked reserves’, to meet known or
predicted funding requirements.

The CIPFA Guidance highlights a range of factors, in addition to cash flow requirements,
that Councils should consider including:






The treatment of inflation;
The treatment of demand led pressures;
Efficiency savings;
Partnerships; and
The general financial climate, including the impact on investment income.

The guidance also refers to reserves being deployed to fund recurring expenditure and
indicates that this is not a long-term option. If the Council chooses to use reserves as
recommended within the Budget, appropriate action will need to be factored into the
MTFP to ensure that this is addressed over time.
The risk assessment process has identified a number of key risks which could impact on
the Council’s resources. The Council continues to face significant funding reductions and
on-going budget pressures.
With these risks in mind, it is recommended that the Council adopts a policy for reserves
as follows:


Set aside sufficient sums in earmarked reserves that it considers prudent. These
reserves are established as are required and are reviewed regularly for both
adequacy and purpose and levels are reporting appropriately in line with the
established reporting processes; and

Page 51



General Reserves are maintained to be at least at the level of the contingency
requirement calculated with reference to LAAP Bulletin 77 and reported to Council as
part of the approved MTFP.

Earmarked reserves have been established to provide resources for specific purposes.
CIPFA Resilience Indicators
In 2019 CIPFA produced a Financial Resilience Index. This is a comparative analytical
tool that may be used by Chief Finance Officers to support good financial management,
providing a common understanding within a council of their financial position.
The index shows a council’s position on a range of measures associated with financial
risk. The selection of indicators has been informed by the extensive financial resilience
work undertaken by CIPFA over the past four years, public consultation and technical
stakeholder engagement.
The index is made up of a set of indicators. These indicators take publicly available data
and compare similar authorities across a range of factors. There is no single overall
indicator of financial risk, so the index instead highlights areas where additional scrutiny
should take place in order to provide additional assurance. The indicators where the
Council is showing higher risk are associated with the use and level of reserves and – in
particular\r – earmarked reserves. In response to this, the Council has increased its level
of earmarked reserves by £1,293,000 as well as adding £1,668,000 to Contingency as
part of the 2020/21 outturn.
Opinion
In my professional view, if the Council were to accept the current MTFP then the level of
risks identified in the budget process, alongside the Council’s financial management
arrangements suggest that the level of reserves is adequate.
John Betts
Interim Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer

Page 52

ANNEX D
Proposed Revenue Projections (2022/23 to 2025/26)

2022/23
Projection
£
6,650,920
2,312,230
141,260
7,569,450
5,010
99,310
0
16,778,180

2023/24
Projection
£
6,802,250
2,404,720
142,670
7,500,130
5,010
160,780
0
17,015,560

2024/25
Projection
£
6,927,890
2,452,810
144,100
7,639,610
5,010
186,470
0
17,355,890

2025/26
Projection
£
7,055,660
2,501,870
145,540
7,909,880
5,010
254,500
0
17,872,460

Fees and Charges / Other Income

(5,905,900)

(5,930,900)

(5,955,900)

(6,080,900)

Interest Receipts
Recharges
Net Expenditure

(79,390)
0
10,792,890

(175,360)
0
10,909,300

(225,110)
0
11,174,880

(263,300)
0
11,528,260

Council Tax

(5,882,250)

(6,040,390)

(6,202,420)

(6,368,430)

(361,850)

(199,020)

(199,020)

(199,020)

(4,344,950)

(4,468,250)

(4,608,300)

(4,745,180)

New Homes Bonus

(255,050)

(100,000)

(75,000)

(75,000)

Earmarked Reserves

(914,280)

(7,700)

(7,700)

(7,700)

Contingency Balances

120,230

(63,900)

(50,990)

0

Collection Fund

845,260

(30,040)

(31,450)

(32,930)

(10,792,890)

(10,909,300)

(11,174,880)

(11,428,260)

Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)
Efficiency Requirement (cumulative)

0
0

0
0

0
0

100,000
(100,000)

Deficit / (Surplus)

0

0

0

0

Budget Heading

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies & Services
Benefits
Borrowing
Financing Costs
Total Expenditure

Covid-19 Grant Funding
Business Rates Retention

Total Financing

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX B

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

CAPITAL STRATEGY
2022/23

Page 55

1

Introduction & Background

1.1

The 2017 edition of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities
requires local authorities to produce a ‘Capital Strategy’ from 2019/20. The
purpose of the Capital Strategy is to demonstrate that the Council’s capital
expenditure and investment decisions are taken in line with corporate
priorities and properly take account of the following:






Stewardship;
Value for money;
Prudence;
Sustainability; and
Affordability.

1.2

The Capital Strategy is intended to give a high level overview of how capital
expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to
the provision of services along with an overview of how associated risk is
managed and the implications for future sustainability. It allows authorities to
give greater weight to local circumstances and explain their approach to
borrowing and investment.

1.3

The Strategy forms part of the Council’s integrated revenue, capital financial
planning and sets out the long term context in which capital expenditure and
investment decisions are made. It is an integral component of the Medium
Term Financial Plan (MTFP) and is aligned with the Council’s:





Corporate Plan
Asset Management Strategy;
Growth Strategy; and
Treasury Management Strategy

1.4

The strategy will provide for a balanced, sustainable capital programme over
the medium term planning period ensuring that limited resources are applied
in the most effective, efficient and economical way to contribute to the
achievement of the Council’s Corporate Plan.

1.5

The strategy sets out how the Council will prioritise its capital spending plans
within the resources available and indicates the action to be taken to
maximise resources for capital spending. The strategy is strategic in nature
and will focus upon the process for determining capital investment priorities.

1.6

The strategy sets out the strategic approach to the management of debt and
borrowing. The detailed implications of this are contained within the Treasury
Management Strategy (TMS) which is updated annually. .

1.7

The Capital Strategy will be updated annually alongside the Council’s MTFP.
There will also be a fundamental review of the strategy alongside a revision of
the Corporate Plan.

Page 56

2.

Corporate Priorities

2.1

The Capital Strategy is driven by local priorities. The Council’s spending
strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by the Council.

2.2

Following the elections in May 2019, there was a fundamental review of the
Corporate Plan focussing on the period 2019-2023 (up to the end of the
current political administration). The Corporate Plan was agreed by Council
on 16th October 2019 with 2020/21 representing the first full year of the new
Corporate Plan.

2.3

The Council’s 4-year Corporate Plan (2019-2023) establishes the Council’s
vision, corporate objectives and key priorities for the medium term. It in effect
establishes the Council’s commitment in the delivery of service and
community leadership to the residents of the Staffordshire Moorlands.

2.3

The Council’s vision is restated as:
“Achieving Excellence in the delivery of high quality services that meet the
needs and aspirations of our communities”

2.4

This vision is articulated further by four aims:





2.5

Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live
and work
Effective use of resources and provide value for money
Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns
and villages
Protect and improve the environment and respond to the climate
emergency

These aims are supported by a number of objectives which also provide the
framework for the delivery of service plans. The Council’s objectives are
summarised below:
Aim

1

2

Help create a safer
and healthier
environment for our
communities to live
and work

Effective use of
resources and
provide value for
money

Objectives












Increased supply of good quality affordable homes
Develop a positive relationship with communities
Effective relationship with strategic partners
Effective support of community safety arrangements including
CCTV
Provision of sports facilities and leisure opportunities focused
upon improving health
Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for
money
Ensure services are easily available to all our residents in the
appropriate channels and provided “right first time”
A high performing and well motivated workforce
More effective use of Council assets
Effective procurement with a focus on local business
Effective use of ICT

Page 57

Aim

3

4

Objectives

Help create a strong
economy by
supporting further
regeneration of towns
and villages
Protect and improve
the environment and
respond to the climate
emergency






Encourage business start-ups and enterprises
Flourishing town centres that support the local economy
Encourage and develop tourism
High quality development and building control with an “open for
business” approach





Effective recycling and waste management
Meeting the challenge of climate change
Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and
environmental health
Provision of quality parks and open spaces
Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of residents,
businesses and visitors




2.6

The Council is committed to playing the lead role in championing the local
area. In so doing the Council recognises its community leadership role.
Fulfilling this role effectively means influencing partners in a number of key
areas in order to ensure that services are shaped and delivered around the
needs and aspirations of citizens.

2.7

The Council’s influencing role is focused in the following areas:

Support the police and other partners to reduce crime, the fear of crime
and anti social behaviour

Ensure there is effective health provision particularly for the elderly

Ensure that there an effective provision of waste and recycling centres
across the district

Work with Staffordshire County Council to provide accessible on-street
parking

We will work with partners to improve the provision of bus services which
connect our villages with our three market towns for services, shopping
and leisure.

Expand the Growth Deal partnership with Staffordshire County Council
on the will be expanded to provide inward investment

Work to combat illegal money lenders such as loan sharks

Continue to support the Churnet Valley Railway with their plans to bring
trains back to Leek

Work with Staffordshire County Council

2.8

The Plan identifies key priority outcomes, which will be the highest priority in
the development of performance targets and key actions. A significant
proportion of the Council’s resources will be directed towards achieving them:
Aim

Objectives

Help create a safer and healthier
environment for our communities
to live and work





Increased supply of quality affordable homes
Improved health
Improved community safety

Effective use of resources and
provide value for money




Council services provide value for money
High level of resident and customer
satisfaction

Page 58

Aim

Objectives

Help create a strong economy by
supporting further regeneration of
towns and villages





Sustainable towns and rural communities
Increased economic growth
Increased tourism

Protect and improve the
environment and respond to the
climate emergency




High recycling rates
Reduction in carbon emissions

3.

Capital Spending Priorities

3.1

The Council’s capital investment priorities are determined by the corporate
priorities set out above. The key capital investment priorities for the Council
are therefore as follows:
Corporate Property – the Council will invest in maintaining the properties
that support the delivery of services direct to residents.
Other Corporate Assets – the Council will invest in other assets that support
the delivery of services e.g. transport fleet.
Affordable Housing & Private Sector Housing Renewal – the Council will
support the development of affordable housing and investment in the
improvement in housing conditions throughout the district
Enabling Growth – the Council will support the growth of business and
employment opportunities within the district in addition to housing
development in line with the commitments set out in the Local Plan
Service Transformation – the Council will invest in projects that improve
service performance or reduce service expenditure on an “invest to save”
basis the will include investment in ICT

4.

Asset Management Planning

4.1

The overriding objective of asset management is to ensure that the Council
maintains a portfolio of property assets that is appropriate, fit for purpose and
affordable.

4.2

The council’s property portfolio consists of the following:

4.3



Operational property i.e. assets that support core business and service
delivery



Investment properties held to support economic growth and / or to
provide a financial return to the Council e.g. industrial units



Community assets e.g. parks, playgrounds and open spaces.

Asset management is an important part of the council’s management
arrangements and is crucial to the delivery of value for money services. The
Council through production of its Asset Management Plan (AMP) is committed
to:

Page 59





Optimise the Council’s land and property portfolio through proactive estate
management and effective corporate arrangements for the acquisition and
disposal;
A regular review of the condition of retained properties including a longterm (30-year) assessment of the necessary investment to maintain the
assets fit for purpose; and
Realise the value of any properties that have been declared surplus to
requirements in a timely manner, having regard to the market conditions.

5.

Commercial Activities

5.1

The Council currently undertakes and will continue consider commercial
activities. These are in two forms:
Alternative service delivery arrangements – where the Council has a stake
in a company which is established for the delivery of Council services
Commercial investments - investments taken for mainly financial reasons these may include:



5.2

Investments explicitly taken with the aim of making a financial surplus for
the Council.
Commercial investments also include fixed assets which are held primarily
for financial benefit or to support economic growth.

The reasons for commercial investments are:





Financial returns to fund services to residents;
Reductions in service spending;
Pursuing the Council’s Growth Strategy; and
Economic development and regeneration activity in the district

5.3

The Council will continue to invest prudently on a commercial basis and to
take advantage of opportunities as they present themselves, supported by our
robust governance process.

5.4

Such investments do not always give priority to security and liquidity over
yield. In these cases, such a decision will be explicit, with the additional risks
set out and the impact on financial sustainability identified and reported.
Before considering any such investments the Council will ensure:



5.5

That it has the appropriate legal powers to undertake such investments;
and
That any investment is proportionate of all investments in order to avoid an
excessive level of risk.

The commercial investments may involve the acquisition of property. The
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) define
investment property as property held solely to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Historically, property has provided strong investment
returns in terms of stable income. Property investment is not without risk as
property values can fall as well as rise and changing economic conditions
could cause tenants to leave with properties remaining vacant. These risks
will continue to be identified and managed through the Council’s Risk
Management Framework.

Page 60

5.6

The council may fund commercial investments by borrowing. The revenue
returns should exceed the cost of repaying the borrowed money each year.

6.

Loans to Third Parties

6.1

The council has discretion to grant loans to third parties for a number of
reasons. These loans are treated as capital expenditure. In making loans the
Council is exposing itself to the risk that the borrower defaults on repayments.
The Council, in making these loans, will therefore ensure they are prudent
and that the risks have been identified and fully considered.

6.2

The Council will periodically review its loan portfolio in order to ensure that the
cumulative exposure of the Council is proportionate and prudent.

6.3

The Council will ensure that a full due diligence exercise is undertaken for
each individual loan and will ensure that adequate security is in place. The
business case for each loan will consider all of the benefits and the risks.

6.4

It will be necessary to assess the level of risk attached to the provision of
each individual loan and consequently build in a ‘risk premium’ into the
interest rate charges to account for this. The factors taken into account in
determining this premium:





6.5

the level of security;
financial position and credit rating;
the overall term of the loan; and
the value of the loan.

The step by step process undertaken is outlined below:-

STEP 1 – Assessing In liaison with the Council’s Advisors, the interest rate the third
available market rates party would be expected to pay if accessing funding from the
market (based on amount/loan term etc) is estimated. This is to
ensure the rate the Council is offering is competitive and not
undercutting the market. Reference is also made in this
consideration to subsidy (formerly known as state aid)
implications.
STEP 2 – Assessing The next consideration is credit quality – which may then
credit quality
consequently reduce/increase the rate. Factors that are taken
into account include:- credit ratings (if applicable), the financial
position of the borrower, what security is available etc.
STEP 3 – Assessment Finally, there is an overall assessment of the purpose of the third
of Corporate Plan party loan and linking this to the Council’s Corporate Plan
objectives
objectives – local factors based on the outcomes of the loan
may have an influence on the rate charged.
6.6

All loans are agreed by full Council in line with the Council’s constitution. All
loans will also be subject to regular monitoring.

7

Capital Expenditure

Page 61

7.1

Capital spending decisions will appropriately reflect the aspirations and
priorities included within the Corporate Plan and its supporting strategies.

7.2

Any scheme / project to be added to the Capital Programme will be subject to
a ‘gateway’ process and prioritised according to availability of resources and
the longer-term impact on the council’s financial position. The ‘gateway’
process will be undertaken in line with the Council’s agreed project
management methodology with a robust business case being developed at
the critical stages of project approval and initiation. This process will be
overseen by the Council’s Transformation Board.

7.3

The business case will include the following considerations:



A clear assessment of the cost of financing the capital scheme, net of
revenue benefits, profiled over the lifetime of each scheme; and
Commissioning and procuring for capital schemes will comply with the
requirements set out in the Council’s Procurement Procedure Rules.

7.4

The Capital Strategy and the Capital Programme will be agreed by the
Council in February each year as part of the budget setting process. The
Medium Term Financial Plan, Asset Management Plan and Treasury
Management Strategy will be considered at the same time. In year variations
of spend (subject to budget tolerance levels) and the re-profiling of schemes
will be considered and approved by Cabinet.

7.5

The Cabinet and the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel receive capital
monitoring reports as part of the quarterly performance and financial
monitoring reports.

7.6

Cabinet considers and approves new bids for inclusion in the capital
programme. Approval to spend on individual capital schemes will only be
given once this approval has been achieved.

7.7

Each approved scheme will be included in the Council’s Transformation
Programme and one of the Council’s Alliance Management Team (AMT) will
be assigned as Project Executive and will be responsible / accountable for the
delivery of the scheme.

7.8

Wherever possible the Council will take a long term view of plans in order to
assess affordability and the demand on future capital resources. It is essential
for example to consider the lifespan and fitness for purpose of assets. This
will be considered through asset management planning (condition surveys)
and wider service based exercises e.g. leisure centre provision evaluation.

7.9

There is a clear demand for long term planning for capital and treasury
management purposes. The council’s current debt portfolio contains loans
that mature up to 2023. The debt repayment profile needs to be managed
alongside the longer term expectations for capital expenditure and funding
forecasts.

7.10

Long-term forecasts are not easily predicted and the accuracy of all financial
estimates will be limited. However, long-term forecasting is valuable in

Page 62

informing strategic plans taking account of the cumulative sustainability and
affordability of existing and planned investments which will need to be repaid
over future periods. For major projects and investment the funding and
financial implications need to be planned well in advance.
8

Resourcing Capital Expenditure

8.1

In order to fund its capital investment, the Council will have access to limited
sources of funding. The main sources of funding are as follows:


Capital Receipts

These will be yielded from the disposal of land and property. A programme of
disposal will be agreed by the Cabinet. This will be informed by the asset
management planning process. In considering disposals the Council will take
account of the following:
o Potential loss of income from investment properties
o Projected saving in running costs, and capital costs of major investment
required
o Assessment against fitness of premises for purpose and current patterns
of need
The Secretary of State has allowed the flexible use of capital receipts. It is
considered that individual local authorities will be best placed to decide which
projects will be most effective for their area. The key criteria to use when
deciding whether expenditure can be funded by the capital receipts flexibility
is that it is forecast to generate ongoing savings. If the Council plans to use
this funding option a proposal will be prepared setting out the planned use,
listing the projects and the expected savings and / or improvements in service
outcomes for each project, and the impact on the Council’s prudential
indicators.


Borrowing

Capital projects that cannot be funded from any other source can be funded
from borrowing. Local Authorities can borrow to fund schemes where it is
prudent to so. They need to consider their ability to pay for the borrowing. The
levels of borrowing are determined by using the indicators set out in the
Prudential Code. The borrowing repayment and interest charges on the loan
need to be met from existing revenue budgets or identify them as new growth
in the annual budget setting process and factor them into the MTFP.
The Chief Finance Officer will make an assessment of the overall prudence,
affordability and sustainability of the total borrowing requested and the impact
of the Council’s borrowing will be reported in the Treasury Management
Strategy alongside the Prudential Indicators required by CIPFA’s Prudential
Code for Capital Finance.
The Chief Finance Officer will also determine whether the borrowing should
be from internal resources or whether to enter into external borrowing. This

Page 63

decision making will be undertaken in line with the Council’s Treasury
Strategy and will be reported to the Audit & Accounts Committee as part of
the monitoring of treasury management activity.


Revenue Funding

The Council may use revenue budgets to fund capital expenditure. This may
be via a capital reserve which has been established to finance capital
expenditure as an alternative to external borrowing.
The Council will formally review such reserves and their application both as
part of the budget setting process and at finalisation of the annual accounts.


S106 contributions

The principal purpose of S106 agreements is to support individual planning
applications in line with the Council’s planning policies. Wider contributions
are constrained by legislation and have to be negotiated and justified.
The Council will ensure these are where possible focussed towards corporate
priorities subject to the legislative constraints.


External Grant Funding

The Council has a history of success in bidding for grants from a number of
sources. There is a risk of reacting to funding opportunities informed by
external priorities rather than chasing those that match the Council’s priorities
/ needs.
The Council will seek to ensure that bids are submitted to support investment
that is directed to the commitments made in the Corporate Plan.


Partnership Funding

There are a number of examples where the Council has attracted third party
funding from partners e.g. leisure centre investment from long-term
contractor.
The Council is aware of the need to be innovative and to work closely with the
private, public and voluntary Sectors to deliver outcomes in line with the
Corporate Plan priorities at a time when there will be reduced levels of capital
resources.
Any such investments will be considered only if they are more cost effective
than the Council investing directly.

9

Forecast Expenditure and Resources

Page 64

9.1

The forecasted spend over the current financial planning period (2021/22 to
2025/26) is as follows:

Service Area
Asset Management Plan
Housing Grants
Housing
ICT Strategy
Fleet Management
Other Schemes

2021/22
£
508,660
1,523,200
10,000,000
122,000
1,062,630
740,890

2022/23
£
734,260
1,500,000
20,000
774,070
473,000

2023/24
£
1,509,790
1,500,000
50,000
320,000
171,920

2024/25
£
717,700
1,500,000
50,000
15,000
170,000

2025/26
£
2,824,390
1,500,000
40,560
120,000

Total
£
6,294,800
7,523,200
10,000,000
282,560
2,171,700
1,675,810

Total Revised Programme

13,957,380

3,501,330

3,551,710

2,452,700

4,484,950

27,948,070

9.2

The individual projects that are included in the above include:


Asset Management Plan (AMP) – the costs identified in ensuring the
Council’s property portfolio remain fit for purpose. This includes: - Public Buildings
- Car Parks
- Public Conveniences
- Waterways & Infrastructure assets
- Leisure Centres
- Depots & Parks Buildings



Housing Grants – the District Council is the duty holder for the mandatory
Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s). All eligible applicants are entitled to
receive mandatory funding for certain major adaptations to their properties.
Funding for this scheme is provided through the Better Care Fund via the
County Council



Housing - A capital loan of £10million is being made to Your Housing
Group for the maintenance of and provision of affordable housing within
the Staffordshire Moorlands District. This is anticipated at the end of
January 2022.



ICT Strategy – the key priorities of the ICT Strategy are to provide the
technological infrastructure to support joint working, new ways of workings
and improve access to services for the Council’s customers



Fleet Management – the estimated costs of the replacement fleet
programme are included within the capital programme. However, options
appraisals are undertaken prior to purchase to determine the most cost
effective method of financing.
Therefore, other funding models, for
example, contract hire or leasing may be undertaken for some vehicles
categories



Other schemes – include schemes such as park and play facility
improvements, community facility improvements, conservation grants,
CCTV equipment

Page 65

9.3

Further detail of the above capital schemes is included within the main body
of the Medium Term Financial Plan.

9.4

The resources that are to be used to finance the Capital Programme are as
follows:

Service Area
External Contributions
Capital Receipts
Revenue Reserves
Earmarked Reserves
Borrowing
Total Revised Financing

9.5

2022/23
£
1,500,000
71,000
1,930,330

2023/24
£
1,500,000
16,000
2,035,710

2024/25
£
1,500,000
11,000
941,700

2025/26
£
1,500,000
2,984,950

Total
£
7,519,940
3,313,750
1,200,000
1,185,650
14,728,730

13,957,380

3,501,330

3,551,710

2,452,700

4,484,950

27,948,070

The commercial investments held by the Council can be summarised as
follows:




9.6

2021/22
£
1,519,940
3,215,750
1,200,000
1,185,650
6,836,040

Industrial units – commercial units available for small and medium sized
organisations to rent for the operation of their business
Property rentals – rental streams generated from sharing Council
properties with partners/external organisations
Alliance Environment Services (AES) – company established in
partnership with ANSA (wholly owned company of Cheshire East Council)
to deliver waste, streets, fleet and grounds maintenance.

The following investments are currently being considered:





Investment in key strategic land to enable housing and business
development
The purchase of additional investment property
An alternative funding model working with Your Housing to further
enhance the provision of affordable housing
Alternative service delivery arrangements for the delivery of trading
services

10

Long-term Considerations

10.1

There a number of functions where there are long term capital spending
liabilities have been identified.
Asset Management Plan

10.2

In line with the commitment made in this strategy, asset condition surveys
were last completed for the Council’s property portfolio in 2016. A new
conditions survey is currently in progress. These ascertain the overall
condition of the properties and establish the necessary capital investment
required to ensure that they are maintained to an appropriate standard.

10.3

The indicative capital investment required at that stage can be summarised
as follows:

Page 66

SMDC AMP Capital Investment & Revenue
Consequence
(AS AT SEPT 2016)
Public Buildings
Car Parks
Public Conveniences
Waterways & Infrastructure Assets
Leisure Centres
Depots and Parks Buildings
Industrial Units
TOTAL

2016-17 –
2019-20
£
1,010,850
754,000
181,400
479,361
310,000
97,070
80,380
2,913,061

2020-21 –
2045-46
(26 years)
£
2,761,600
4,293,431
415,800
448,761
10,005,995
2,355,714
392,050
20,673,351

TOTAL
£
3,772,450
5,047,431
597,200
928,122
10,315,995
2,452,784
472,430
23,586,412

*The latest update of the 30year plan is presented in the Medium Term Financial Plan report Appendix A

10.4

The overall outcomes of the surveys can be summarised as follows:






A number of the Council’s operational assets are dated in appearance and
require investment;
The Council’s car parks require capital investment;
There are structural issues associated with a number of the Council’s
buildings which require resolution;
There are urgent works related to health and safety requirements that
need to be resolved; and
Investment is required to the electrical and mechanical infrastructure of a
number of buildings.

10.5

The results from these surveys have informed the development of the
Council’s four-year Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). Adjustments have
been made to exclude any major investment in the Council’s leisure centres
and operational depots where it is assumed that investment will be deferred
pending the major decisions that linked to changes in the service delivery
arrangements which are in progress.

10.6

The indicative investment for 30-years will have a significant impact on the
Council’s future revenue budgets and the analysis showed that the Council’s
property portfolio in its current form is unaffordable. The estimated impact of
the indicative capital projections for the 30-year investment requirements at
the point the surveys were completed is detailed below:

SMDC Estimated Revenue Consequences - Cumulative
Impact

Fit for Purpose Standard works - Cumulative Cost
Less Existing MTFP - Cumulative Cost
Potential Additional Budget Requirement

Page 67

2016-17 2019-20
(MTFP)

2020-21 2045-46 (26
Years)

TOTAL

£

£

£

115,959
(111,403)

943,653
-

1,059,612
(111,403)

4,556

943,653

948,210

10.7

The above analysis showed that providing the investment in the longer term to
maintain the Council’s property portfolio in its current form is unaffordable.

10.8

In order to address this, the Council agreed to a number of actions to reduce
the impact of the necessary capital spending. It was agreed that the following
are considered before investment in each of the assets is made:







Asset rationalisation
Shared use of assets
Reduction in specification and functionality
Generate additional capital receipts
Identify grants to support investment
Generate additional revenue from asset holdings

Review of Strategic Land Holdings
10.9

In order to address a number of the considerations above the Council agreed
to review the Council’s strategic land holdings with a view to developing
options to either generate additional capital receipts or opportunities to
generate ongoing financial returns. The outcome of this review is reflected in
the revised programme funding.
Leisure Centres

10.10 Given the age and condition of the leisure centres, significant capital
investment is required over the next 30 years in order that these assets
remain fit for purpose.
10.11 The Council commissioned a review of its leisure centre provision in the
context of its sports facility needs focusing on sports halls, swimming pools
and other indoor provision. The purpose of undertaking this review was to
inform the Council on options for future provision of council leisure centres
and other sports facility based services.
10.12 The outcome from this review in effect set out a position statement on the
suggested facility hierarchy and approach, along with recommendations for
the phasing of future facility developments and rationalisation. The aim is to
ensure that the Council can develop a more sustainable solution in relation to
meeting customer needs, affordability and partner aspirations, whilst
supporting the overall vision of the Council’s newly adopted Physical Activity
& Sports Strategy.
10.13 The effectiveness of the current leisure centre provision was also assessed.
This assessment considered current income and expenditure benchmarks.
The conclusion of the review was that the Council should consider the
following investment requirements:




Replacement of South Moorlands Leisure Centre with smaller community
pool and fitness offer.
Refurbishment and essential works at Biddulph Valley Leisure Centre;
Replacement pool at Brough Park Leisure Centre & 3G pitch development;

Page 68




Increased access to school sites for sports hall provision / club use; and
Development of 3G pitch provision – potentially linked to school sites

10.14 The indicative capital cost for these investments would be in the region of
£19.25m. At this stage the investment costs are significantly in excess of
revenue savings, and consequently it will be necessary for the Council to
identify additional sources of capital investment to deliver these
improvements. Options are currently being explored in the on-going future
Leisure Provision review.
Operational Depot Provision
10.15 In 2017 established Alliance Environmental Services (AES) which was
created jointly with High Peak Borough Council and ANSA (a company owned
by Cheshire East Council) to deliver the Council’s waste collection, street
cleansing and grounds maintenance services. The Council’s waste collection
service was transferred to the company in July 2018 with the rest of functions
transferred in April 2019.
10.16 Major investments in the operational depot facilities which have been leased /
licensed to AES has been deferred until the opportunity has been taken to
review the requirements of the new company in light of widening of the base
of the services provided.
11

Debt, Borrowing & Treasury Management

11.1

Effective treasury management is critical to the safeguarding and
management of the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Investment
and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the Council’s formally
adopted Treasury Management Strategy.
The Treasury Management
Strategy is presented annually and approved by Full Council.

11.2

There are key prudential indicators set in respect of the impact of capital
expenditure. The report details the forecast borrowing requirement over a
four year period, the consequential borrowing costs and the impact of the
Council’s capital financing requirement (CFR). The CFR is total outstanding
capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for either from revenue or
capital resources, essentially the Council’s underlying borrowing need.

11.3

The table below summarises the impact of the Council’s capital expenditure
plans on the CFR:-

Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR)

CFR – service investments

Movement in CFR

2020/21
Actual

2021/22
Estimate

2022/23
Estimate

2023/24
Estimate

2024/25
Estimate

2025/26
Estimate

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

18,082

10,832

12,541

14,315

14,956

17,620

1,254

(7,250)

1,709

1,774

641

2,664

Page 69

Represented by:
Net financing need for the
year

1,313

(7,164)

1,931

2,035

942

2,984

(59)

(86)

(222)

(261)

(301)

(320)

1,254

(7,250)

1,709

1,774

641

2,664

Less Minimum Revenue
Provision*
Movement in CFR

11.4

Where a borrowing requirement is identified, an assessment takes place on
the most cost effective way to fund this. This could result in ‘external
borrowing’ from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB), other Local
Authorities, direct from the market or by utilising lease arrangements.

11.5

Alternatively, ‘internal borrowing’ – the use of cash balances – could be used
temporarily, particularly in the current interest rate climate where investment
returns remain low. However, this needs to be carefully reviewed to avoid
incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when the Council may not be
able to avoid new borrowing to finance capital expenditure and/or the
refinancing of maturing debt.

11.6

The Council’s forward debt projections are shown in the table below in relation
to the CFR:March ’21
Actual
£000

External Borrowing

March ‘22
Estimate
£000

March ‘23
Estimate
£000

March ‘24
Estimate
£000

March ‘25
Estimate
£000

March
‘26Estimate
£000

15,000

12,604

10,104

11,104

11,104

14,104

0

0

0

0

0

0

15,000

12,604

10,104

11,104

11,104

14,104

5,000

(2,396)

(2,500)

1,000

0

0

Capital Financing
Requirement

18,082

10,832

12,541

14,315

14,956

17,620

(Under) / over borrowing

(3,082)

1,772

(2,437)

(3,211)

(3,852)

(3,516)

Other long-term liabilities*
Gross Debt at 31st March
Change in Debt position

*Other long-term liabilities will include Right-of-Use assets under accounting standard IFRS16 to be adopted
from 2022/23. These are assets formerly k nown as operating leases which will be included on the balance
sheet and therefore increase the CFR, similar to the former treatment of Finance Leases. The impact is
expected to be immaterial therefore is not included at this stage. Should any changes be significant, the CFR
limit and forecast will be revised during the year.

12

Risk Management

12.1

There are a number of key risks that will impact upon the successful
implementation of the Council’s Capital Strategy

12.2

The Council operates effective risk management through its Risk
Management Framework. Risk management is the process of identifying
risks, evaluating their potential consequences and determining the most
effective methods of managing them and/or responding to them. It is both a
means of minimising the costs and disruption to the Council caused by

Page 70

undesired events and of ensuring that the element of risk in all activities is
properly understood.
12.3

In order to manage risk effectively, the risks associated with each capital
project need to be systematically identified, analysed, influenced and
monitored. It is important to identify the appetite for risk by each scheme and
for the capital programme as a whole, especially when investing in capital
assets held primarily for financial returns.

12.4

An assessment of risk should therefore be built into each individual capital
project and the major risks that identified should be recorded in the Projects
Risk Register which is reported to the Council’s Audit & Accounts Committee.

12.5

The risks associated with the Capital Strategy are detailed below with the
mitigating actions:

Risk
Diminishing Resources

Mitigating Actions




Project Delivery





Commercial Investments



VAT Partial Exemption




The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) carefully monitored
and managed
New grant / funding opportunities explored
Partnership opportunities explored to share investment
Spending / Funding closely monitored
Projects managed through the Council’s project management
methodology
Major projects reported through the council’s performance
framework
Exposure to non-repayment carefully managed through the
contract management arrangements
Disinvestment potential will be regularly considered
Each capital investment will be closely reviewed to assess its
VAT implications.

Page 71

This page is intentionally left blank

Environmental Health

Animal Boarding Establishments (Kennels &
Cateries) including Domestic Day Care & Over
Night Licence (initial or renewal, excluding vet
fees). Vets fees are charged in addition to
these fees based on full cost recovery:

2022/23
Charge

% increase

Fair charging

Officer Time

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£300.00

£300.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£250.00

£250.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£400.00

£400.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

Charging
Category

1-10 animals

Non Business VAT (-%)

25 Plus Animals
Animal boarding (Crèche Facility) Commercial
Commercial Home Boarding (Host franchise)
upto 5 Households
Commercial Home Boarding (Host franchise)
upto 5 - 10 Households
Commercial Home Boarding (Host franchise)
upto 10 Plus
Re-Rate Inspection
Interim Inspection (Commercial)
Interim Inspection (Domestic)
Approved Food Premises
Camping Site Registration
Caravan & Camping Site Registration
New application
Fee per additional
pitch
Licence amendment
Transfer of Licence
Annual fee
Deposit of site rules
Contaminated Land Enquiry:

2021/22
Current
Charge

VAT

11 + animals

Park Homes:

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Unit

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

(Initial Enquiry 2 Hours
Minimum Charge )

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Each subsequent
hour or part thereof

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Cooling Tower Notification
Dangerous Wild Animals Licence (initial or
renewal, excluding vet fees). Vets fees are
charged in addition to these fees based on full
cost recovery

£600.00

£600.00

0.00%

Price on
Request
£100.00
£100.00
£50.00

Price on
Request
£100.00
£100.00
£50.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£350.00

£350.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Fair charging

£180.00

£180.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£120.00

£120.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£190.00

£190.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£110.00

£110.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

Officer Time

£400.00

£400.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

Officer Time

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£300.00

£300.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£350.00

£350.00

0.00%

Re-Rate Inspection

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Interim Inspection

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

£20.00

£20.00

0%

Dog Breeding Establishments Licence (initial
or renewal, excluding vet fees). Vets fees are
charged in addition to these fees based on full
cost recovery:

1-4 dogs

5 - 10 dogs
10 Plus

Environmental Health Pre-Application advice
(minimum 2 hours)

(Initial Enquiry 2 Hours
Minimum Charge)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Each subsequent
hour or part thereof

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Environmental Permit

Fees Set by DEFRA

Copy of Register of Authorisations (Permits):
Copying Charge Plus officer time charged for
photocopying per hour or part thereof.

per side of A4 (or
equivalent electronic
format)

Officer Time (EIR)
Export Health Certificate

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Statutory

Cost recovery

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£130.00

£130.00

0.00%

Page 73

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

% increase

£1,600.00

£1,600.00

0.00%

£3,000.00

£3,000.00

0.00%

Price on
Request

Price on
Request

Officer Time

£65.00

£65.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£600.00

£600.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Officer Time

£65.00

£65.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£15.00

£15.00

0.00%

VAT

Charging
Category

Export Health Certificate Unlimited Yearly (Max
25 Certificates)
Export Health Certificate Unlimited Yearly (Max
50 Certificates)
Export Health Certificate Unlimited Yearly (50
Plus)
Export Health Certificate for Brewery/Artisan
Products

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Export Health Certificate Unlimited Yearly
Brewery/Artisan Products (Max 25 Certificates)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Export Health Certificate (Samples/ Low Value
goods up to £500 per consignment)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Environmental Health

Unit

Amendment to Health Certificate
Amendment to Health Certificate
(Artisan/Brewery Products)
Food Hygiene Rating Scheme - Re-Rate within Price On Application
3 Months of Inspection
Officer Time hourly
Enhanced Food Registration & Advice Visit
with Safer Food Better Business Pack (upto 2
hours)
Enhanced Food Registration & Advice Visit
with Safer Food Better Business Pack (upto 3
hours)

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes
Officer Time

Fair charging

Officer Time

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

Officer Time

£125.00

£125.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£175.00

£175.00

0.00%

£20.00

£20.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£175.00

£175.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£15.00

£15.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£75.00

£75.00

0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Safer Food Better Business Pack Incl 2 Year
Diary
Copy of Food Register (Full Copy of database)

Full Register

One Copy of Any Entry in the Register
List of Food Premises In a Particular Category
Food Premises Registration
House in Multiple Occupation Licence:

First application

Fair charging

£385.00

£385.00

0.00%

Subsequent
Non Business VAT (-application/renewal by
%)
same landlord

Fair charging

£310.00

£310.00

0.00%

Change of ownership
application

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£310.00

£310.00

0.00%

Statutory

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

per application

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

£55.00

£55.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£180.00

£180.00

0.00%

£100.00
£100.00

£100.00
£100.00

0.00%
0.00%

Improvement Notice Fee
Immigration Housing Certificate
Hypnotism Registration
Land Drainage/Culvert Maintenance for
Private Individuals or Companies

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Full Price On
Application inc. Officer
Time hourly

Pet Shop Licence (initial or renewal) (excluding
vet fees. Vets fees are charged in addition to
these fees based on full cost recovery):
Interim Inspection
Re-Rate Inspection
Pleasure Boats & Pleasure Vessels to be let
for hire or used for carrying passengers for
hire (Exemption for such boats on any inland
waterway owned or managed by the British
Waterways Board)

Officer Time

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

£120.00

£120.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£175.00

£175.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Re-Rate Inspection

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Interim Inspection

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Riding Establishments Licence (initial or
renewal, excluding vet fees). Vets fees are
charged in addition to these fees based on full
cost recovery: (Annual Vet Inspection
required)

1-10 animals

11-20 animals
21+ animals

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Page 74

Environmental Health

Sex Shop & Cinema Licence (including Sexual
Entertainment Venues of any type):

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

% increase

Fair charging

£3,100.00

£3,100.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1,700.00

£1,700.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£700.00

£700.00

0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£105.00

£105.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£90.00

£90.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

£1,250.00

£1,250.00

0.00%

Second & subsequent Non Business VAT (-(6 year licence)
%)

Statutory

£1,250.00

£1,250.00

0.00%

Interim periodical

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Vet fees as
applicable
only

Vet fees as
applicable
only

Renewal periodical

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Vet fees as
applicable
only

Vet fees as
applicable
only

Informal inspections

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

Vet fees as
applicable
only

Vet fees as
applicable
only

Full commercial

£110.00

£110.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£110.00

£110.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£215.00

£215.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£315.00

£315.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Free

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£65.00

£65.00

0.00%

£32.50

£32.50

0.00%

£65.00

£65.00

0.00%

£32.50

£32.50

0.00%

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

New Application

Non Business VAT (-%)

Renewal
Transfer
Special Treatments Registration (Premises)
including: Massage; Manicure; Other Special
Treatments e.g. Vapour, Sauna or Other Bath
Treatments
Statement of Officers Opinion:

Non Business VAT (-%)
Initial Enquiry 2 Hours
subsequent hour or
part thereof

Home/Mobile Tattooing, Piercing, Acupuncture
Including 1 person
Tattooing, Piercing, Acupuncture, Electrolysis
Licence (initial or renewal):

Premises/ Person
Premises
Person
Guest Tattooist

Ear Piercing Only:

Premises
Person
Amendment (e.g.
Change of address)

Zoo Licence (excluding vet fees). Vets fees
are charged in addition to these fees based on
full cost recovery:

Zoo Licence:

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

First (4 year licence)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Officer Time/ Pesticides/ Transport

Pest Control
Contract Work (Commercial)
treatments in addition to contract agreement:

Per hour Per officer
Single treatment
up to 3 treatments
up to 5 treatments

Non Contract Work (Commercial)

Per hour Per officer

Rodents (Rats) (Domestic) - up to three visits
to treat:
Wasps Nest (Domestic Treatment):
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
Rodents (Mice) (Domestic) - up to three visits
to treat:
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
Bed Bugs:
2 bed house

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Page 75

50% reduction

50% reduction

Environmental Health

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

% increase

50% reduction

£62.50

£62.50

0.00%

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

£250.00

£250.00

0.00%

£125.00

£125.00

0.00%

£400.00

£400.00

0.00%

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

£125.00

£125.00

0.00%

£62.50

£62.50

0.00%

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

£75.00

£75.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£250.00

£250.00

0.00%

Full commercial

£70.00

£70.00

0.00%

£35.00

£35.00

0.00%

£70.00

£70.00

0.00%

£35.00

£35.00

0.00%

Price on
Application

Price on
Application

£25.00

£25.00

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

3 bed house
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
4 bed house
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
>4 bed house
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
Fleas:
2 bed house
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
3 bed house
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
4 bed house
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

>4 bed house
Ants
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Other insect pests (domestic):
Recipients of Means
Tested Benefits
(Housing Benefit/
LCTRS) & Vulnerable
Adults
Moles (Commercial Only)

Subsidised

50% reduction

50% reduction

50% reduction

50% reduction

50% reduction

50% reduction

50% reduction

Benchmark with other Derbyshire
Full commercial Districts where info. Available on
website

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Subsidised

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Full commercial

Appointment Missed/Cancelled (Site)

50% reduction

0.00%

Private Water Supply Charges
Risk Assessment:

Upto 2 properties

Including Officer Time on Site

3-5 Properties
5 Plus Properties
Large Commercial
Officer Time per
Sample

Sampling

Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

Fair charging

Page 76

£300.00

£300.00

0.00%

£400.00
£500.00
£500.00

£400.00
£500.00
£500.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£60.00

£60.00

0.00%

Environmental Health

Investigation

Unit

Per investigation

Analysing a sample under regulation 10

Re-Charge

Analysing a check monitoring sample
Regulation 9

Re-Charge

Analysing an audit monitoring sample

Re-Charge

Request from Search Company for Data
relating to Private Water Supplies in a
particular area.

Hourly Rate

Stray Dogs

Statutory fee
Admin fee

Charging
Category

VAT

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

% increase

0.00%

£120.00

£120.00

Laboratory
Charge
Laboratory
Charge
Laboratory
Charge

Laboratory
Charge
Laboratory
Charge
Laboratory
Charge

Fair charging

£60.00

£60.00

0.00%

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging

Kennel fee per day or
part thereof

Fee set by
Fee set by
kennel owner kennel owner

Page 77

Licensing

Unit

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

%
increase

Statutory

£2,500.00

£2,500.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,000.00

£1,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,500.00

£1,500.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£2,000.00

£2,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Statutory

£2,000.00

£2,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,000.00

£1,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,000.00

£1,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£2,000.00

£2,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,500.00

£1,500.00

0.00%

Statutory

£750.00

£750.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,000.00

£1,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£950.00

£950.00

0.00%

Statutory

£950.00

£950.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,600.00

£1,600.00

0.00%

Statutory

£950.00

£950.00

0.00%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Statutory

£2,000.00

£2,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£600.00

£600.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,300.00

£1,300.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Charging
Category

VAT

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Gambling Act
Bingo - New Application
Annual Fee
Application to Vary
Application to Transfer
Application for Reinstatement
Application for Provisional Statement
Application in respect of Provisional Statement
Holder
Notification of Change
Copy of Licence

Adult Gaming Centre - New Application
Annual Fee
Application to Vary
Application to Transfer
Application for Reinstatement
Application for Provisional Statement
Application in respect of Provisional Statement
Holder
Notification of Change
Copy of Licence

Family Entertainment Centre - New Application
Annual Fee
Application to Vary
Application to Transfer
Application for Reinstatement
Application for Provisional Statement
Application in respect of Provisional Statement
Holder
Notification of Change
Copy of Licence

Betting Premises (excluding Tracks) - New
Application
Annual Fee
Application to Vary
Application to Transfer
Application for Reinstatement

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Page 78

Licensing

Unit

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Application for Provisional Statement
Application in respect of Provisional Statement
Holder
Notification of Change
Copy of Licence

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Race Tracks - New Application
Annual Fee
Application to Vary
Application to Transfer
Application for Reinstatement
Application for Provisional Statement
Application in respect of Provisional Statement
Holder
Notification of Change
Copy of Licence

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

%
increase

Statutory

£2,000.00

£2,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,200.00

£1,200.00

0.00%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Statutory

£2,000.00

£2,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,000.00

£1,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£1,250.00

£1,250.00

0.00%

Statutory

£950.00

£950.00

0.00%

Statutory

£950.00

£950.00

0.00%

Statutory

£2,000.00

£2,000.00

0.00%

Statutory

£950.00

£950.00

0.00%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Charging
Category

VAT

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Gambling Act Permit Fees set by the
Secretary of State
Licensed Premises Automatic Notification
Process: Payable on Notification

Up to 2
machines

Non Business VAT (-%)

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Small society Lotteries Application

Application

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£40.00

£40.00

0.00%

Small Society Lotteries Annual Renewal

Renewals

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£20.00

£20.00

0.00%

Annual Rate

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£3,100.00

£3,100.00

0.00%

Annual Rate

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£1,600.00

£1,600.00

0.00%

Daily rate

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£40.00

£40.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Yearly

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£180.00

£180.00

0.00%

Per
Plate/Badge

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£10.00

£10.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

£75.00

£75.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

£105.00

£105.00

0.00%

Charges for Annual Licences (unless
stated)

Street Trading Consent
Street Trading Consent - Upto 2 Days
Daily Street Trading consent
Street Trading Change of Name & Address
Taxi Licences - Hackney Carriage & Private
Hire Vehicles
Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Licence (new &
renewal) Including Brackets & Plates/Decals
(The fee includes 10% for enforcement duties)
Replacement Driver Badge or Vehicle Plate
Hackney Carriage Decals - Provided by 3rd
party company
Change of Vehicle Including Plate/Card
New Licensed Driver/Renewal: Including
Knowledge Test and Resit, Safeguarding
Training & Driver Badge (The fee includes
10% for enforcement duties)

Annual

3 years
Private Hire Operators Licence (The fee
includes 10% for enforcement duties)

1 Year

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Page 79

Licensing

Private Hire Operators Licence (The fee
includes 10% for enforcement duties)
Document Identification Check (Fee set by
Crown Post Office

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

5 years

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Statutory

DBS Check by 3rd Party Company
Re-Sit Knowledge Test

Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

%
increase

£315.00

£315.00

0.00%

Price on
Application
Price on
Application

Price on
Application
Price on
Application

£20.00

£20.00

Price on
Application

Price on
Application

Statutory

£245.00

£245.00

0.00%

Statutory

£95.00

£95.00

0.00%

Statutory

£390.00

£390.00

0.00%

£115.00

£115.00

0.00%

Statutory

£32.00

£32.00

0.00%

Statutory

£15.00

£15.00

0.00%

Taxi Test (Paid Directly to Garage)

0.00%

Scrap Metal Dealers
Collectors Licence
Variation to Collectors Licence
Site Licence
Variation to Site Licence
Variation to licence Change of Name or
Address
Copy of Licence

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licences and Club Premises
Certificates - First Year Fee:
Band A

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Band B

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£190.00

£190.00

0.00%

Band C

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£315.00

£315.00

0.00%

Band D

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£450.00

£450.00

0.00%

Band E

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£635.00

£635.00

0.00%

Band A

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£70.00

£70.00

0.00%

Band B

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£180.00

£180.00

0.00%

Band C

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£295.00

£295.00

0.00%

Band D

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£320.00

£320.00

0.00%

Band E

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£350.00

£350.00

0.00%

Personal Licence (Application or Renewal)

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£37.00

£37.00

0.00%

Temporary Event Notice

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£21.00

£21.00

0.00%

Permitted Temporary Activities, Personal
Licences and Miscellaneous:
Theft/ Loss, etc. of Premises Licence or
Summary
Application for a Provisional Statement where
premises being built etc.

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£315.00

£315.00

0.00%

Notification of change of name or address

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Application to vary licence to specify individual
as premises supervisor

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£23.00

£23.00

0.00%

Application for transfer of premises licence

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£23.00

£23.00

0.00%

Interim authority notice following death etc. of
licence holder

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£23.00

£23.00

0.00%

Theft, loss etc. of certificate or summary

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Premises Licences and Club Premises
Certificates Annual Fee:

Page 80

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

%
increase

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Theft, loss etc. of temporary event notice

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Theft, loss etc. of personal licence

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Duty to notify change of name or address

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£10.50

£10.50

0.00%

Right of freeholder etc. to be notified of
licensing matters

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£21.00

£21.00

0.00%

Minor Variation

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£89.00

£89.00

0.00%

Grant

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£150.00

£150.00

0.00%

Existing Operator Grant

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Variation

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Transfer

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Annual Fee

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Change of Name

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Grant

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Grant (Club Premises Certificate Holder)

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Existing Operator Grant

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Variation

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Renewal

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Renewal (Club Premise Certificate Holder)

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Annual Fee

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Grant

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Grant (Club Premises Certificate Holder)

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Existing Operator Grant

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Variation

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Renewal

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£200.00

£200.00

0.00%

Renewal (Club Premise Certificate Holder)

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Annual Fee

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

VAT

Charging
Category

Notification of change of name or alteration of
rules of club

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Change of relevant registered address of club

Licensing

Unit

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permit

Club Gaming Permits

Club Machine Permits

Page 81

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

%
increase

Statutory

£300.00

£300.00

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Renewal

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£300.00

£300.00

0.00%

Change of Name

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Free

No Cost

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

Appropriate Fee Structure

£55.00

£55.00

0.00%

VAT

Charging
Category

Grant

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Existing Operator Grant

Licensing

Unit

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Family Entertainment Centre Gaming
Permits

Copies of all Permits

Each

Other Licences
Street Collection Licence

Registrations
Statement of Officers Opinion

Page 82

Land Charges

Unit

LLC1

Residential

LLC1 Additional Parcels

Residential

Con 29R

Residential
(plus SCC fee incurred)

Con 29R Additional Parcels

Residential

Full Standard Search (LLC1 + Con 29R) Part
Con 29 (Inc. Vat)

Residential
(plus SCC fee incurred)

Full Standard Search Additional Parcels Part
Con 29 (Inc. Vat)

Residential

Con 29O - Each

Residential

Each Additional Enquiry

Residential

Personal Search of the Land Charges
Register

Residential

VAT

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

%
increase

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£27.80

£27.80

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£10.00

£10.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£39.60

£39.60

0.00%

Cost recovery

(plus recovery of SCC fee)

TBC

TBC

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£26.00

£26.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£67.40

£67.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

(plus recovery of SCC fee)

TBC

TBC

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£36.00

£36.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£9.00

£9.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£18.00

£18.00

0.00%

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Charging
Category

Statutory

A search on each individual part of the Local
Land Charges Register:
Parts 5, 7, 8 & 12

Residential - each

Parts 1, 2, 6, 9, & 11

Residential - each

Parts 4 & 10

Residential - each

Part 3

Residential - each

LLC1

Commercial

LLC1 Additional Parcels

Commercial

Con 29R

Commercial
(plus SCC fee incurred)

Con 29R Additional Parcels

Commercial

Full Standard Search (LLC1 + Con 29R) Part
Con29 (Inc. Vat)

Commercial
(plus SCC fee incurred)

Full Standard Search Additional Parcels Part
Con29 (Inc. Vat)

Commercial

Con 29O - Each

Commercial

Each Additional Enquiry

Commercial

Personal Search of the Land Charges
Register

Commercial

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Free
Officer Time

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£4.00

£4.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£12.00

£12.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£40.00

£40.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£24.00

£24.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£82.80

£82.80

0.00%

Cost recovery

(plus recovery of SCC fee)

TBC

TBC

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£42.00

£42.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£122.80

£122.80

0.00%

Cost recovery

(plus recovery of SCC fee)

TBC

TBC

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£66.00

£66.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£9.00

£9.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£18.00

£18.00

0.00%

Statutory

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Free

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

£1.50

£1.50

0.00%

A search on each individual part of the Local
Land Charges Register:
Parts 5, 7, 8 & 12

Commercial - each

Parts 1, 2, 6, 9, & 11

Commercial - each

Parts 4 & 10

Commercial - each

Part 3

Commercial - each

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery

Officer Time

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£4.50

£4.50

0.00%

Cost recovery

Officer Time

£18.50

£18.50

0.00%

Cost recovery

£4.80

£4.80

0.00%

Cost recovery

£4.80

£4.80

0.00%

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

SCC

SCC

Fees for access to individual Con 29R
questions:
Con 29R Q1.1 a-j

Residential Block

Con 29R Q1.1 j-l

Residential Block

Con 29R Q1.2
Con 29R Q2

Residential Block

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Residential - request direct
to SCC

Page 83

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

Con 29R Q3.1

Residential

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

Con 29R Q3.2

Residential - request direct
to SCC

Land Charges

Con 29R Q3.3 a-c
Con 29R Q3.4
Con 29R Q3.5 a & b
Con 29R Q3.6
Con 29R Q3.7 (a-d, f)
Con 29R Q 3.7 e

Residentail Block

Residential Block

Residential Block

Residential Block

Con 29R Q3.10 a-h

Residential Block

Con 29R Q3.11 a & b

Residential Block

Con 29R Q3.12

Residential Block

Con 29R Q3.13 a-c

Residential Block

Con 29R Q3.14

Residential Block

Con 29R Q3.15 a & b

Residential Block

Con 29R Q1.1 a-l

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q1.1 j-l

Commercial Block
Commericla Block

Commerical Block

Con 29R Q3.2

Commercial - request direct
to SCC

Con 29R Q3.3 a-c
Con 29R Q3.4
Con 29R Q3.5 a & b
Con 29R Q3.6
Con 29R Q3.7 a-d, f
Con 29 R Q 3.7 e

Commercial Block

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q3.9 a-n

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q3.10 a-h

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q3.11 a & b

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q3.12

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q3.13 a-c

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q3.14

Commercial Block

Con 29R Q3.15 a & b

Commercial Block

0.00%

SCC

SCC

£1.20

£1.20

SCC

SCC
£1.20

SCC

SCC

£2.40

£2.40

SCC

SCC

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

Cost recovery

£1.20

£1.20

0.00%

Cost recovery

£10.80

£10.80

0.00%

Cost recovery

£1.20

£1.20

0.00%

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£1.20

£1.20

0.00%

Cost recovery

£1.20

£1.20

0.00%

Cost recovery

£1.20

£1.20

0.00%

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£12.00

£12.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

£12.00

£12.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

£5.40

£5.40

0.00%

SCC

SCC

£2.40

£2.40

SCC

SCC
£2.40

Cost recovery

0.00%

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

£2.40
SCC

SCC

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

SCC

SCC

£5.40

£5.40

SCC

SCC

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£18.00

£18.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£5.40

£5.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£2.40

£2.40

0.00%

Cost recovery

£5.40

£5.40

0.00%

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

Commercial Request direct
to SCC

Con 29R Q3.8

£1.20

Cost recovery

Commercial - request direct
to SCC
Commercial Block

£1.20

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Commercial - request direct
to SCC
Commercial Block

%
increase

£1.20

Commercial - request direct
to SCC

Con 29R Q3.1

2022/23
Charge

Cost recovery

Residential request direct
to Staffordshire County

Residential Block

2021/22
Current
Charge

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Residential - request direct
to SCC

Con 29R Q3.9 a-n

Con 29R Q2

Cost recovery

Residential - request direct
to SCC

Con 29R Q3.8

Con 29R Q1.2

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Page 84

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

Planning Enforcement

Unit

Charging
Category

VAT

Justification for Charging Category

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

%
increase

£40.00

£40.00

0.00%

£80.00

£80.00

0.00%

Charges do not apply to alleged breaches of planning
regulations which are provided free of charge
Desk-based history check requested by
member of the public
Site visit requested by member of the public

Per check
Per visit

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Cost recovery
Service benefits applicant
Cost recovery

Page 85

Planning

Unit

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Householder PD check
Listed Building enforcement check

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

%
increase

Fair charging

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£67.00

£67.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£47.00

£47.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£31.00

£31.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£7.00

£7.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£18.50

£18.50

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£13.50

£13.50

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£8.25

£8.25

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£370.00

£370.00

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£51.25

£51.25

0.00%

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£32.00

£32.00

0.00%

Charging
Category

VAT

COPYING
Decision Notice

Per notice

A4 OS maps

4 Copies

Planning Applications (Current & Historic):

First page
Additional
pages

Planning Applications Plans - AO size

Per copy

Planning Applications Plans - A3 size

Per copy

Planning Applications Plans - A4 size

Per copy

Weekly Planning List

Per year

Informal or history Searches:

First hour
Additionals

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost of
Postage

Charge not VAT-able

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

Admin Charge

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Cost recovery

Freeze - justification - in excess of costs

£8.25

£8.25

0.00%

Strategic major applications

Over 50
dwellings or
10,000sqm
commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Freeze - Fees currently make profit ; do
not want to deter applications

£1,130.00

£1,130.00

0.00%

Major proposals

Between 10
and 50
dwellings or
1,00010,000sqm
commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Freeze - Fees currently make profit ; do
not want to deter applications

£845.00

£845.00

0.00%

Between 1 and
9 dwellings or
under
1,000sqm
commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Freeze - Fees currently make profit ; do
not want to deter applications

£570.00

£570.00

0.00%

Strategic major applications

Over 50
dwellings or
10,000sqm
commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Freeze - Fees currently make profit ; do
not want to deter applications

£565.00

£565.00

0.00%

Major proposals

Between 10
and 50
dwellings or
1,00010,000sqm
commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Freeze - Fees currently make profit ; do
not want to deter applications

£425.00

£425.00

0.00%

Minor proposals

Between 1 and
9 dwellings or
under
1,000sqm
commercial

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Fair charging

Freeze - Fees currently make profit ; do
not want to deter applications

£285.00

£285.00

0.00%

Postage:

Postage Cost Postage Cost

PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE
Meetings

Minor proposals and other
structures/developments not in the above
categories

Written Advice

Statutory Planning Fees

Statutory

Page 86

See Planning See Planning
Portal
Portal

Street Naming

New Properties, small developments
New Properties, large developments
New Street Name
Renaming Existing Properties
Confirmation of Postal Address

Unit

1-5 Properties
(each)
6+ Properties
(each)

Non Business
%)
Non Business
%)
Non Business
%)
Non Business
%)
Non Business
%)

-Rationale
2021/22
-Benchmarking
Current
-Reason for changes/ freezes Charge

2022/23
Charge

% increase

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

£42.00

£42.00

0.00%

£215.00

£215.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£46.00

£46.00

0.00%

Charging
Category

VAT

VAT (-VAT (-VAT (-VAT (-VAT (--

Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging

Page 87

Benchmarked against other
LAs and service providers

Waste

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/
freezes

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

% increase

£31.00

£31.50

1.61%

Trade Waste & Recycling
To ensure that the Council remains competitive and is
commercially focused, rates levied for trade waste and trade
recycling collections will be calculated based upon volumes
and demand ensuring at all times that they do not fall below the
cost of service provision to the authority.

All benchmarked to other
LAs

Domestic Waste
Charge for supply & delivery of new or
replacement waste or recycling bin of any size
or colour for use at a single domestic
dwelling.

per bin

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Cost recovery

Charge for supply & delivery of new or
replacement 140l, 180l or 240l bin for use by
multiple domestic dwellings or for a trade
premise to replace a bin damaged by the
customer.

per bin

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Cost recovery

£43.50

£44.00

1.15%

Charge for supply & delivery of new or
replacement 360l bin for use by multiple
domestic dwellings or for a trade premise to
replace a bin damaged by the customer.

per bin

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Cost recovery

£69.00

£70.00

1.45%

Charge for supply & delivery of new or
replacement 660l bin for use by multiple
domestic dwellings or for a trade premise to
replace a bin damaged by the customer.

per bin

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Cost recovery

£280.00

£285.00

1.79%

Charge for supply & delivery of new or
replacement 1100l bin for use by multiple
domestic dwellings or for a trade premise to
replace a bin damaged by the customer.

per bin

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Cost recovery

£315.00

£320.00

1.59%

Full commercial

£3.95

£3.95

0.00%

service charge is over and
Full commercial
above cost to authority

£0.70

£0.70

0.00%

Full commercial

£75.00

£75.00

0.00%

Purchase of one roll of blue sacks

roll of 16

Purchase of a paper garden waste sack

Each

Supply and delivery of additional Garden
Waste Bin and ongoing collection

Each

Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)

Page 88

to recover cost of service

Cemeteries

Unit

Charging
Category

VAT

Burial Plots Exclusive right of burial &
issue of certificate

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/
freezes

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

% increase

All benchmarked to other
LAs

Purchase Fee
New Coffin Grave - Leek parish resident

per grave

New Coffin Grave (all other SMDC residents)

per grave

New Coffin Grave (residents from outside
SMDC area)
New Cremated remains Grave - Leek parish
resident
New Cremated remains Grave (all other
SMDC residents)
New Cremated remains Grave (residents from
outside SMDC area)

Pre-purchased new coffin grave

Pre-purchased cremated remains grave

per grave
per grave
per grave
per grave

Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)

per grave

Non Business
VAT (--%)

per grave

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

Single fees

£700.00

£700.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Double fees

£1,400.00

£1,400.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Triple fees

£2,100.00

£2,100.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Single fees

£350.00

£350.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Double fees

£700.00

£700.00

0.00%

Fair charging

Triple fees

£1,050.00

£1,050.00

0.00%

Fair charging

10% uplift on costs to
discourage pre purchases
which are using up valuable
grave space

£770.00

£770.00

0.00%

Fair charging

10% uplift on costs to
discourage pre purchases
which are using up valuable
grave space

£385.00

£385.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£954.00

£954.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£822.00

£822.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£734.00

£734.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£241.00

£241.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£154.00

£154.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£180.00

£180.00

0.00%

Interment/burial Fees
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)

Coffin grave for three (Leek Cemetery only)

per grave

Coffin grave for two

per grave

Coffin grave for one

per grave

Cremated remains casket burial

per grave

Lawn burial of ashes

per grave

Cremation Casket in Garden of Remembrance

per grave

Out of area fees:

per grave

Leek Parish residents only

per grave

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

Single fees

Single fees

per grave

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

Double fees

Double fees

per grave

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

Triple fees

Triple fees

Child's grave or ashes grave

per grave

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Free

Free

Free

Child's new full size grave

per grave

Child's reopened Grave

per grave

Out of SMDC area child's interment fee

per grave

Re-opened graves for those not residing in the
Leek Parish and
New graves for SMDC residents not residing in
Leek Parish
Outside Staffs. Moorlands (newly dug graves
only)

Interment/burial of a child (aged 0-15 years)

Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)

Free in line with
recommended best practice
nationally

Subsidised

Half fee

£411.00

£411.00

0.00%

Subsidised

Half fee

£367.00

£367.00

0.00%

£241.00

£241.00

0.00%

Nominal

We have separated out
permits from memorials to
aid the VAT query

Memorial permits

Page 89

Cemeteries

Permit for a new upright memorial including 1st
inscription
Permit for a memorial desk tablet/ vase
including 1st inscription
Permit for a replacement memorial
Permit for an additional inscription on
memorial/ tablet/ vase etc.
Permit for a child's "single use" memorial on
any grave type

Unit

per permit
per permit
per permit
per permit
per permit

Memorial items
Cast Bronze/ Granite memorial plaque (up to
75 letters)
Cast bronze sponsored tree plaque (existing
tree only)
Sponsored memorial bench & bronze plaque

per plaque
per plaque

VAT

Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/
freezes

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

% increase

Full commercial This is a permit

£165.00

£165.00

0.00%

Full commercial This is a permit

£117.00

£117.00

0.00%

Full commercial This is a permit

£117.00

£117.00

0.00%

Full commercial This is a permit

£70.00

£70.00

0.00%

Free

Free

0.00%

£390.00

£390.00

0.00%

£390.00

£390.00

0.00%

£1,356.00

£1,356.00

0.00%

£49.00

£49.00

0.00%

£27.00

£27.00

0.00%

£27.00

£27.00

0.00%

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

£72.00

£72.00

0.00%

Charging
Category

Free

Policy

We have separated out
permits from memorials to
aid the VAT query
Standard Rated
This is for a memorial
Full commercial
VAT (20%)
plaque
Standard Rated
This is for a memorial
Full commercial
VAT (20%)
plaque

50% deposit
Standard Rated
This is for a memorial
required before
Full commercial
VAT (20%)
plaque and bench
order

Other Charges
Replacement or transfer of grave deed
Search fee
Grave selection requiring Cemetery Officer
attendance
Large coffin (both dimensions over 6' 5" and
25")
Cancellation of funeral within 72 hours of burial
Coffin size not confirmed within 48 hours of
burial
Headstone not removed from grave when
requested
Paperwork not received in cemetery office
before burial
Late arrival of funeral at cemetery (>30
minutes)

Per half hour

Non Business
VAT (--%)
Standard Rated
VAT (20%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)
Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging

Page 90

min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand
min increase proposed due
to lack of demand

Horticulture

Copy of Tree Preservation Order

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

Per hard copy

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

Standard Rated
VAT (20%)

Fair charging

Fishing Tickets (Biddulph Grange Country
Park)

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

%
increase

Changed from 25 to 0.Have not supplied
a charged for copy for a couple of years

£41.00

£41.00

0.00%

Benchmarked to compare prices at
neighbouring fishing locations

£7.00

£7.10

1.43%

£1,050.00

£1,050.00

0.00%

£1,050.00

£1,050.00

0.00%

£550.00

£550.00

0.00%

£510.00

£510.00

0.00%

£6.90

£7.00

1.45%

Memorial Bench in a countryside park

Purchase &
Installation

Standard Rated
VAT (20%)

Full commercial

costs should be comparative with bench
in open space

Memorial bench purchase and installation in a
public open space

Purchase &
Installation

Standard Rated
VAT (20%)

min increase proposed due to lack of
Full commercial
demand

Adoption of an existing memorial bench
located in a public open space

Purchase &
Installation

Standard Rated
VAT (20%)

Fair charging

min increase proposed due to lack of
demand

Per complaint

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

Per session

Non Business
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£56.50

£58.50

3.54%

Commercial Fairs - Small (< 10 items)

Day Rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£225.50

£230.00

2.00%

Commercial Fairs - Large (> 10 Items)

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£115.00

£120.00

4.35%

Day Rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£430.00

£445.00

3.49%

Commercial Circus - Small (1- 300)

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£56.50

£58.50

3.54%

Commercial Circus - Small (1- 300)

Day Rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£137.50

£143.00

4.00%

Commercial Circus - Large (300 +)

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£112.50

£117.00

4.00%

Commercial Circus - Large (300 +)

Day Rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£370.00

£385.00

4.05%

Commercial Event - Small (1-500)

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£57.00

£58.50

2.63%

Commercial Event - Small (1-500)

Day Rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£132.50

£140.00

5.66%

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£85.00

£88.00

3.53%

Commercial Event - Medium (A) (500 - 1000)

Day Rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£260.00

£270.00

3.85%

Commercial Event - Medium (B) (1000 - 2000)

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£110.00

£115.00

4.55%

Day Rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£385.00

£400.00

3.90%

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£220.00

£230.00

4.55%

High Hedges
High Hedge Complaints
Parks & Open Space Concession
Sport / Fitness Classes

min uplift to encourage phsical activity

Park /Open Space Event Charges
Commercial Fairs - Small (< 10 items)

Commercial Fairs - Large (> 10 Items)

Commercial Event - Medium (A) (500 - 1000)

Commercial Event - Medium (B) (1000 - 2000)
Commercial Event - Large (2000 - 5000)

Day Rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£520.00

£535.00

2.88%

Commercial Event - Very Large (5000 10,000)

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£272.50

£285.00

4.59%

Commercial Event - Very Large (5000 10,000)

Day Rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£670.00

£700.00

4.48%

Commercial Event - Major (+ 10,000)

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£545.00

£560.00

2.75%

Commercial Event - Major (+ 10,000)

Day Rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£980.00

£1,000.00

2.04%

Commercial Event - Large (2000 - 5000)

Charitable Event - Some Commercial
Activity<1500

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Subsidised

£28.50

£29.50

3.51%

Charitable Event - Some Commercial
Activity>1500

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Subsidised

£82.50

£85.00

3.03%

Community Event -Some Commercial Activity
<1500

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Subsidised

£28.50

£29.50

3.51%

Page 91

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

%
increase

£82.50

£85.00

3.03%

maintains current charging position

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

maintains current charging position

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

£57.50

£58.50

1.74%

£80.50

£83.00

3.11%

Full commercial

£645.00

£665.00

3.10%

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£57.50

£58.50

1.74%

Half Day Rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£325.00

£335.00

3.08%

Discretionary Commercial Event

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£57.50

£58.50

1.74%

Discretionary Commercial Event

Day Rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£66.00

£68.00

3.03%

Educational Establishments

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Free

£0.00

£0.00

0.00%

Catering concessions - leisure sites

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£57.50

£58.50

1.74%

Day Rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£26.00

£27.00

3.85%

New sites for concessions - amusements

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£57.50

£58.50

1.74%

New sites for concessions - amusements

Day Rate / Per
Item

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

£36.00

£37.00

2.78%

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

Community Event - Some Commercial Activity
>1500

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Subsidised

Charitable Event - No commercial activity

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Free

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Free

Admin Fee

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

Hour rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Full commercial

Day Rate

Exempt from
VAT (--%)

Admin Fee

Horticulture

Community Event -No Commercial Activity
Commercial Filming
NEW - Commercial Filming
Commercial Filming
Commercial photo shoot
Commercial photo shoot

Catering concessions - leisure sites

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

New fee created as a result of demand
for shorter filming

Page 92

Car Parks

Unit

VAT

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/
freezes

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

% increase

Fair charging

£370.00

£370.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£190.00

£190.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£320.00

£320.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£170.00

£170.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£90.00

£90.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£250.00

£250.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£130.00

£130.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£70.00

£70.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£350.00

£350.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£55.00

£55.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£220.00

£220.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£10.00

£10.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£2.40

£3.50

45.83%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£2.40

£3.50

45.83%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£2.40

£3.50

45.83%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Charging
Category

Season tickets (long stay car parks)
Leek:

Per annum
Half yearly
Quarterly

Cheadle:

Per annum
Half yearly
Quarterly

Biddulph:

Per annum
Half yearly
Quarterly

Smithfield Centre
California Car Park (proven Leek workers &
Residents)
Buxton Road Car Park (proven Leek workers
only)

Per annum
Per annum
Per annum

Replacement Passes

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Pay and Display
Leek: Brook Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Buxton Road

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 10 hours

Leek: High Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 10 hours

Leek: Joliffe Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 10 hours

Leek: Market Place

Up to 1 hour

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Page 93

Car Parks

Unit

Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Market Street East

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Market Street West

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Moorlands House

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Queen Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Regent Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Silk Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Smithfield South

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Stockwell Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: St Edward Street

Up to 1 hour

VAT

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/
freezes

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

% increase

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Charging
Category

Page 94

Car Parks

Unit

Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Leek: Vicarage Road/ California

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 10 hours

Leek: West Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 10 hours

Cheadle:Tape Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours

Cheadle:Well Street

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 10 hours

Biddulph: Wharf Road

Up to 1 Hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 10 hours

VAT

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/
freezes

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

% increase

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£2.40

£3.50

45.83%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.20

20.00%

Fair charging

£1.50

£1.90

26.67%

Fair charging

£1.90

£2.80

47.37%

Fair charging

£2.40

£3.50

45.83%

Fair charging

£0.90

£1.00

11.11%

Fair charging

£1.40

£1.70

21.43%

Fair charging

£1.80

£2.50

38.89%

Fair charging

£0.90

£0.00

-100.00%

Fair charging

£1.40

£1.50

7.14%

Fair charging

£1.80

£2.30

27.78%

Fair charging

£2.20

£3.00

36.36%

Fair charging

£0.60

£0.00

-100.00%

Fair charging

£0.80

£1.20

50.00%

Fair charging

£1.00

£1.80

80.00%

Fair charging

£1.80

£2.50

38.89%

Statutory

£50.00

£50.00

0.00%

Statutory

£25.00

£25.00

0.00%

Statutory

£70.00

£70.00

0.00%

Statutory

£35.00

£35.00

0.00%

Statutory

£15.00

£15.00

0.00%

Statutory

£15.00

£15.00

0.00%

Charging
Category

Penalty Charge Notices Off Street: Two tier
system depending on the seriousness of the
offence
Tier one:

Tier two:

Non Business VAT (-%)
If paid within 14 Non Business VAT (-days
%)
Non Business VAT (-Per fine
%)
If paid within 14 Non Business VAT (-days
%)
Per fine

Charge levied for grant of parking waiver

Vehicle per day

Charge levied for grant of parking waiver

Bay per day

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Page 95

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

%
increase

Fair charging

£20.00

£20.00

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£10.00

£10.00

0.00%

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£23.50

£23.50

0.00%

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£21.50

£21.50

0.00%

- Regulars - non attendance

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£10.75

£10.75

0.00%

- Casual Traders

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£23.50

£23.50

0.00%

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£16.00

£16.00

0.00%

- Regular Traders

Per quarter

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£192.00

£192.00

0.00%

- Casual Traders

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£20.00

£20.00

0.00%

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£17.50

£17.50

0.00%

- Per Stall

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£26.00

£26.00

0.00%

- Per Stall

Per day
(payment in
advance)

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£21.00

£21.00

0.00%

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

Fair charging

£20.00

£20.00

0.00%

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

- Regular Traders

Per day

Exempt from VAT (--%)

- Regulars - non attendance

Per day

- Casual Traders

Per day

- Regular Traders

Markets

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

LEEK RETAIL MARKETS
Wednesday Outdoor (General Retail):

Wednesday Trestle (General Retail):

Friday Trestle (Franchised Archer Fairs)
- Per Stall
Saturday Trestle (General Retail)

Saturday Outdoor Craft (Franchised Archer
Fairs)
- Per Pitch
Festival of Fine Food

CHEADLE MARKETS
Cheadle Outdoor Market - Friday

Page 96

Lettings

Unit

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

% increase

Fair charging

£121.00

£123.42

2.00%

Fair charging

£175.00

£178.50

2.00%

Fair charging

£189.00

£192.78

2.00%

Fair charging

£278.00

£283.56

2.00%

Fair charging

£62.00

£63.24

2.00%

Fair charging

£89.00

£90.78

2.00%

Fair charging

£109.00

£111.18

2.00%

Fair charging

£124.00

£126.48

2.00%

Fair charging

£174.00

£177.48

2.00%

Fair charging

£97.00

£98.94

2.00%

Fair charging

£122.00

£124.44

2.00%

Fair charging

£151.00

£154.02

2.00%

Fair charging

£196.00

£199.92

2.00%

Fair charging

£49.00

£49.98

2.00%

Fair charging

£62.00

£63.24

2.00%

Fair charging

£109.00

£111.18

2.00%

Fair charging

£99.00

£100.98

2.00%

Fair charging

£122.00

£124.44

2.00%

Fair charging

£109.00

£111.18

2.00%

Fair charging

£157.00

£160.14

2.00%

Fair charging

£170.00

£173.40

2.00%

Fair charging

£251.00

£256.02

2.00%

Fair charging

£57.00

£58.14

2.00%

Fair charging

£81.00

£82.62

2.00%

Fair charging

£109.00

£111.18

2.00%

Fair charging

£111.00

£113.22

2.00%

Fair charging

£157.00

£160.14

2.00%

Fair charging

£47.00

£47.94

2.00%

Fair charging

£27.00

£27.54

2.00%

Fair charging

£50.00

£51.00

2.00%

Charging
Category

VAT

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

All Room Booking fees exclude optional extra Facilities (Bar,
Kitchen etc) - Charitable and Non Profit Making organisations
subject to 20% discount - Bookings outside hours stated and
commercial events by special arrangement
Moorlands House Leek
Churnet Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - MondayFriday
Churnet Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) Saturday
Churnet Room Full Day + Evening (9am 10pm) - Monday-Friday
Churnet Room Full Day + Evening (9am 10pm) - Saturday
Churnet Room Monday - Friday half day
charge
Churnet Room Saturday (9am-12noon)
Churnet Room Saturday (1pm-5pm)
Churnet Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) Monday-Friday
Churnet Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) Saturday
Trent Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - MondayFriday
Trent Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - Saturday
Trent Room Full Day + Evening (9am - 10pm) Monday-Friday
Trent Room Full Day + Evening (9am - 10pm) Saturday
Trent Room Monday - Friday half day charge
Trent Room Saturday (9am-12noon)
Trent Room Saturday (1pm-5pm)
Trent Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) - MondayFriday
Trent Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) - Saturday
Dove Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - MondayFriday
Dove Room Full Day (9am - 5pm) - Saturday
Dove Room Full Day + Evening (9am - 10pm) Monday-Friday
Dove Room Full Day + Evening (9am - 10pm) Saturday
Dove Room Monday - Friday half day charge
Dove Room Saturday (9am-12noon)
Dove Room Saturday (1pm-5pm)
Dove Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) - MondayFriday
Dove Room Evening (6pm - 10pm) - Saturday
Dove Room Excess Hours - 10pm - Midnight
Rooms in the One Stop Shop: Tean,
Rudyard, etc
Monday-Friday (Half day) between 9am and
5pm
Monday-Friday (Full day) 9am-5pm

Per hour

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Moorlands House Other Facilities for Hire:

Page 97

Lettings

Unit

Kitchen

Per booking

Piano

Per booking

Bar

Per booking

Portable Drinks Machine:

Per session

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

% increase

Fair charging

£23.00

£23.46

2.00%

Fair charging

£18.00

£18.36

2.00%

Fair charging

£35.00

£35.70

2.00%

Fair charging

£35.00

£35.70

2.00%

Fair charging

£23.00

£23.46

2.00%

Fair charging

£16.00

£16.32

2.00%

Fair charging

£16.00

£16.32

2.00%

Charging
Category

VAT

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

Audio Visual Equipment: NB All prices are per
booking/ session - am or pm. Whole day usage
will be 2 x per item hired.
- Overhead Projector
- OHP Screen
- Nobo Flipchart Easel with Paper (provide own
markers)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)
Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Page 98

Finance

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

2021/22
Current
Charge

Cost recovery

no subsidy as document
available on line

£21.60

£21.60

0.00%

Cost recovery

no subsidy as document
available on line

£10.00

£10.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£60.00

£60.00

0.00%

Fair charging

£65.00

£65.00

0.00%

£35.00

£35.00

0.00%

£35.00

£35.00

0.00%

£310.00

£310.00

0.00%
0.00%

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

Per copy (plus
postage)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

Per copy (plus
postage)

Standard Rated VAT
(20%)

2022/23 Charge % increase

Financial Services
Statement of Accounts

Committee Services
Agenda

Recovery Services - Summons costs
recharged
Application for summons re Liability Order:

Council Tax
Non-Domestic
Rates

Issue of Liability Orders:

Council Tax
Non-Domestic
Rates

Committal summons
Arrest warrants
Committal to prison

Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)
Non Business VAT (-%)

Fair charging
Fair charging
Fair charging

Fee charged as a preventative
measure for non-payment of
CTAX/NNDR. Income should
cover costs of Recovery team

Fair charging

£150.00

£150.00

Fair charging

Reasonable
charge

Reasonable
charge

Page 99

2021/22
Current
Charge

2022/23
Charge

% increase

Nominal

£138.50

£138.50

0.00%

Non Business VAT (-%)

Nominal

£193.50

£193.50

0.00%

1.00

Non Business VAT (-%)

Nominal

£23.00

£23.00

0.00%

Purchase of Full Register (Paper)

1.00

Non Business VAT (-%)

Nominal

£405.00

£405.00

0.00%

Purchase of Rolling Register Alterations
(Paper)

1.00

Non Business VAT (-%)

Nominal

£135.00

£135.00

0.00%

Purchase of list of overseas voters (Paper)

1.00

Non Business VAT (-%)

Nominal

£20.00

£20.00

0.00%

Elections

Unit

VAT

Charging
Category

Purchase of Full Register (Data)

1.00

Non Business VAT (-%)

Purchase of Rolling register Alterations (Data)

1.00

Purchase of list of overseas voters (Data)

Page 100

-Rationale
-Benchmarking
-Reason for changes/ freezes

APPENDIX D

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

PROCUREMENT FORWARD
PLAN 2022/23

Page 101

1.

Introduction

1.1

The Procurement Procedure Rules, which support the Joint Procurement
Strategy (to be updated and presented for approval shortly), are essential to
the achievement of the Alliance Procurement Objectives and set out the
processes that must be followed.

1.2

A revised version of the Procurement Procedure Rules were presented and
approved by full Council on 11th October 2017. The Rules were updated to
reflect recent changes for example:
the service review process has resulted in a fully resourced central
procurement unit incorporating the whole purchase to pay stream
(procurement activity through to the payment of supplier invoices)

Processes have been reviewed and electronic systems implemented
with the procurement process now utilising online procurement webforms and an e-tendering system, removing paper records and
improving efficiency.

1.3

The opportunity was also taken to review the Rules as a whole, with specific
amendments made to:
Sourcing thresholds – advertising periods updated

Process for applying Performance Bonds / Parent Company Guarantees

Applying extensions/variations to contracts

Updated processes to include technology now utilised (for example, ewebform platform and e-tendering system)

Additional references where necessary – for example, the requirements
of the Transparency Code

Expansion of Contract Management responsibilities / processes

1.4

In addition, consideration was given to how the authority to procure and award
procurement activities is undertaken - with the aim of simplifying and ensuring
the process is as efficient as possible.

2.

Authorisation to Procure and Award

2.1

It was proposed within the Rules that the Procurement Forward Plan would be
reported as part of the Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan in February
each year.

2.2

This would identify all potential procurement activity to be completed in the
following financial year (subject to business case), with approval sought to
commence procurement of all activity listed. Performance and activity
(including confirmation of award) against the forward plan would then be
monitored and reported within the Quarterly Procurement Report to
Committee.

2.3

The approval limits to be applied to then authorise the award of contracts and
apply exemptions are in line with Public Contract regulations supplies and
service thresholds which are refreshed every two years. The latest revision to
thresholds were implemented in 01 January 2022, this will therefore instigate

Page 102

a change to the levels of authorisation included within the Council’s
Procurement Procedure Rules.
2.4

Notification of the new threshold values to apply for the purposes of the Public
Contracts Regulations 2015, Utilities Contracts Regulations 2016, Concession
Contracts Regulations 2016 and the Defence and Security Public Contracts
Regulations 2011. The threshold values are refreshed every two years and it
is mandatory for public sector contracting authorities to adhere to these
regulations.

2.5

The new procurement threshold values will apply to contracts advertised on
and after 1 January 2022 and are detailed as follows:

2.6

The revised thresholds below are exclusive of VAT and relate to the full life of
the Contract:
PUBLIC CONTRACT THRESHOLDS
2022 & 2023
Works Contracts
Small Lots
Supply, Services and Design Contracts
Small Lots
Social and other specific Services
Light Touch Regime
Subsidised services contracts
Concession Contracts

2.7

£
5,336,937
884,720
213,477
70,778
663,540
213,477
5,336,937

The Council’s Procurement Procedure Rules for Authorisation to procure and
award contracts are requested to be updated to reflect the changes in the new
thresholds. For procurements which commence after 1 st January 2022 the
revised thresholds as detailed in Annex C (see below table) of the
Procurement Procedure Rules will apply (these values are not inclusive of
VAT).
Award and Exemptions Authorisation Limits:

Total Contract Value
<25,000

(£)

Authorisation
Head of Service
Executive Director

>25,000 - <213,477
(EU Service Threshold)

Executive Director
Chief Executive

>213,477 (EU Service
Threshold) - <1,000,000

Delegated
Decision

>1,000,000*

Cabinet SMDC

/

/

Member

Page 103

Authorisation By
Procurement Webform
Procurement Webform

Delegated Member
Report (Portfolio
Holder for
Procurement and the
relevant service area)
Committee Report

* Committee reports may b e presented where the total contract value is less than £1,000,000 - where considered
appropriate due to the nature of the procurement or where it relates to a key decision

2.8

Any procurement activity undertaken during the year which was not included
on the forward plan will also follow the authorisation rules (to procure/award) as
detailed above - and detail will be included within the Quarterly Procurement
Report.

2.9

Irrespective of the total contract value, Committee reports may be presented
to Executive to obtain authority to procure and award where considered
appropriate due to the nature of the procurement or where it relates to a key
decision.

3.

Procurement Forward Plan 2022/23

3.1

The Procurement Forward Plan, detailing all anticipated higher value
procurement activity during 2022/23, is detailed at ANNEX A. This includes
activity specific to Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. and also any joint
procurement activity with Alliance partner High Peak B.C. Procurements
which have already had approval in 2021/22 but not yet completed, will be
progressed in addition to the programmed 2022/23 schedules.

4.

Procurement undertaken by Agent

4.1

In addition to procurement activity commissioned by the Council, there may
also be procurement activity commissioned via an agent on behalf of the
Council where appropriate to do so. For example, the new Leisure Centre
contract will allow provision for capital works required on the Leisure centres
to be commissioned by the Contractor, but funded by the Council. In this
case, the Council would complete due diligence to ensure compliancy and
value for money has been achieved.

4.2

Similarly, ANSA on behalf of Alliance Environmental Services will be procuring
fleet required by specific services, but this will be funded by the Council and
appropriate due diligence undertaken.

4.3

Agents delegated to procure contracts on behalf of the Council, where the
Council
is the
Contracting Authority, will be required to procure in
compliance to Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCRs15) for above
threshold contracts and for contracts for lower values demonstrate that their
procurement practice is as robust and transparent as that the Council would
apply.

Page 104

ANNEX A
PROCUREMENT FORWARD PLAN 2022/23 – SMDC

Page 105

Ref

Auth

Contract Title

Brief contract description

Capital /
Revenue

Service Area

Total est.
value of
contract [£]

731

SMDC

Moorlands House Flat Roof / Air
Handling

Works contract

Capital

Assets

185,000

1359

SMDC

Moorlands House Insultation

Works contract

Capital

Assets

50,000

121
450

SMDC

Car Parks Pay and Display
machine upgrades

Supply and Installation

Capital

Assets

200,000

1360

SMDC

EV Charging Points SMDC Car
Parks

Supply and Installation

Capital

Assets

200,000

1361

SMDC

Biddulph Grange County Park
Drainage

Works Contract

Capital

Assets

64,900

1013

SMDC

Public Conveniences
Refurbishments

Works Contract
Wetton
Milldale

Capital

Assets

99,640

933

SMDC

Fowlchurch Depot works

Works Contract

Capital

Assets

650,000

5

1094

SMDC

Upgrade to cttee audio / visual
systems

Equipment upgrade

1348

SMDC

Fleet purchases (AES)

Replacement vehicles

Revenue

Capital

Democratic
Services
Service

TBC

320,000

Commissioning

1345
1346
1066

SMDC

Play Area refurbishments / Out
Door sports developments 22/23
(Subject to feasibility and approval)

Various projects :
Hot Lane Biddulph MUGA
Birchall Leek Improvement project
Glebeville Leek Play Area
Church Road Biddulph Play Area

Capital

Service
Commissioning

310,000
(combined)

Page 106

PROCUREMENT FORWARD PLAN 22/23 – JOINT (HPBC/SMDC)
Ref

Auth

239

JOINT

Contract Title

Civils Groundworks Contractor
Framework

Brief contract description

Capital /
Revenue

Service Area

Total est.
value of
contract [£]

Works contract framework
(2 yr – local small contractor
opportunity)

Revenue /
Capital

Assets /
Service

150,000 (est)

Revenue /
Capital

704

JOINT

Structural and Civil Engineer
Framework

Professional Services

980

JOINT

Electricity Supply Council Buildings

Utility Supply contract
(Framework sourced – 4 yr term)
(Climate Change: Review
alternative options)

Commissioning

Revenue

/ Housing
Assets

Assets

150,000 (est)

700,000

6

523

JOINT

Architectural Services for HPBC &
SMDC

Professional Services

Revenue /
Capital

Assets

400,000 (est)

Recurring fixed term framework 4
yrs
374

JOINT

Collection and Banking of Income
and Internal Mail Courier Services

1258

JOINT

522

Service Contract
(Fixed term 3 + 2 yrs)
(Under Review)

Page 107

Revenue

Customer
Services

190,000

Hybrid Mail and Annual billing (Bulk Hybrid Mail Printing and
mailings)
Distribution services
Annual Billing Council Tax

Revenue

Customer
Services /
Income

200,000 (est)

JOINT

Elections Printing / Stationery /
Annual Canvass

Supply and support service
contract
(5 yr fixed term)

Revenue

Legal and
Elections

800,000 (est)

351

JOINT

External Legal Professional
Services

Access to East Midlands Law
Share – legal professional
framework
(4 yr term)

Revenue

Legal and
Elections

200,000 (est)

975

JOINT

Committee Management and
Reporting System (Modern Gov)

Licence renewal for new fixed term
Recurring

Revenue

Democratic
Services

40,000

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7.2
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Audit & Accounts Committee
11th February 2022

TITLE:

Treasury Management Update

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Ralphs - Council Leader SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER:

Keith Pointon – Head of Finance
Emily Bennetts – Finance Business Partner

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-specific

Appendices Attached – Appendix A – Treasury Management Mid-Year
Update Report to 31st December 2021
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s
Treasury Management performance in 2021/22 in compliance with the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of
Practice on Treasury Management and generally accepted good practice.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That Members note the current Treasury Management position as at 31 st
December 2021.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management was adopted by the
Council in February 2010. This Council fully complies with its requirements,
one of which is to produce at least one mid-year operational report.

3.2

This report comprises the following:






3.3

The latest interest rate forecast and comment on the impacts of Covid-19;
Investment income earned to date and projected for the year;
The current investment portfolio;
An update to the approved capital programme; and the projected borrowing
requirements with associated borrowing costs for the year; and
Compliance against prudential and treasury indicators set in the Treasury
Management Strategy 2021/22.
The main headlines are:

Page 109



The Bank of England base rate increased from 0.10% to 0.25% in December
2021.



A small surplus of £6,450 is forecast against investment income interest.



Upon cessation of the Ascent Housing LLP Joint Venture company at the end
of January 2022, the associated loan and impaired debenture is expected to
be returned to the council. Due to the early repayment there is an interest
shortfall of £93,870.



The borrowing costs budget forecasts a total saving of £89,550, including an
anticipated net income from the new loan arrangement with Your Housing
Limited.



The average return on investments during the period October to December
was 0.14%, this was boosted by the notice account investments, whereas
instant access accounts earn interest at 0.02%.



The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £18.7million spread across eight
separate institutions as at 31 st December 2021.



The Council’s average external debt is forecast to be £11.9million at an
average annual borrowing rate of 0.89%.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal.
Sufficient financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the
Council’s main priorities.

5.

Alternative Options

5.1

This report sets out the Treasury Management position for Staffordshire
Moorlands District Council for 2021/22 to date and the projected outturn. As
such it is a statement of fact and there are no options.

John Betts
Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits
Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

‘Treasury Management – Governance & Scrutiny
Arrangements’ (Audit & Accounts Committee September
2009)

Keith Pointon
Head of Finance
Keith.Pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
emily.bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

‘Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2021/22’ (Audit &
Accounts Committee February 2021)

Page 110

Appendix A

Treasury Management Update
31st December 2021
1. Introduction
2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates
3. Covid-19 Impact on Treasury Management
4. Investment Income
5. Investment Portfolio
6. Borrowing Position
7. Prudential Indicators

Page 111

1.

Introduction

1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities;
and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”.
1.2. The Council has adopted CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice for Treasury
Management which recommends that Members should be updated on Treasury
Management activities at least twice a year.
1.3. The Audit & Accounts Committee has delegated responsibility for scrutinising
the treasury function. The Committee’s role includes approval of the annual
treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational treasury
management reports. Decisions taken by the Audit & Accounts Committee are
reported to full Council.
1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2021/22 was
approved by Council on 12th February 2021. This report details treasury
management performance up to the 31st December 2021 and projects forward
for the remainder of the financial year.
2.

Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

2.1. The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services (‘Link’), provide the latest
bank rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast:
%

Mar22

Jun22

Sep22

Dec22

Mar23

Jun23

Sep23

Dec23

Mar24

Jun24

Sep24

Dec24

Mar25

Bank Rate

0.25

0.50

0.50

0.50

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.25

5yr PWLB
rate

1.50

1.50

1.60

1.60

1.70

1.80

1.80

1.80

1.90

1.90

1.90

2.00

2.00

10r PWLB
rate

1.70

1.80

1.80

1.90

1.90

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.10

2.10

2.10

2.20

2.30

2.2. The Bank of England base rate increased from 0.10% to 0.25% in December
2021. Investment returns may therefore see a small increase during the last
quarter of the year. Further base rate increases are anticipated over the
medium term. PWLB rates are also forecast to increase slowly over the same
time period.
3.

Covid-19 impact on Treasury Management

3.1. High volumes of income and expenditure continued to flow through the
Council’s instant access accounts throughout the year while the Council acted
as an agent of central government in the delivery of the various Business Grant
schemes. The counterparty limits in the 2021/22 Treasury Management
Strategy Statement were set to be flexible to respond to this situation
specifically; since the last report, the current account balance exceeded the limit
by 11% for 4 days during October.

Page 112

4.

Investment Income

4.1. Interest earned on investment deposits up to 31st December totalled £20,960.
The Council has budgeted to receive £20,710 in investment income in 2021/22.
The budget was set with an expectation of very low interest rates of near zero.
A small surplus of £6,450 is anticipated against the budget at end of the year.
4.2. The average interest rate achieved on the Council’s investments is boosted by
the better rates achieved in the Council’s notice accounts compared to the
instant access average.
Average interest rate period
Overall
Long-term fixed (>364 days)
Short-term fixed/ notice accounts (<364
days)
Instant access

Average
Rate
Apr-Jun
0.14%
n/a

Average
Rate
Jul-Sept
0.14%
n/a

Average
Rate
Oct-Dec
0.14%
n/a

0.35%

0.37%

0.32%

0.01%

0.01%

0.02%

0.10%

0.10%

0.25%

Bank of England Base Rate

Ascent Joint Venture
4.3. The Council has a debenture of £5million paying 2% and loan of £14million
paying an average 3.02% with Ascent, the joint venture company established to
deliver affordable housing across the District.
4.4. These are expected to be returned to the council at the end of January upon the
cessation of Ascent Housing LLP: £14million loan and £3.15million impaired
debenture.
4.5. The investment income budget was based on the original investments
continuing for the full year: £100,000 income from the debenture and £422,880
from the loan. Therefore there will be a shortfall against the budget of £12,000
for the debenture and £81,870 for the loan.
5.

Investment Portfolio

5.1. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial
institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria. The Council’s
investment portfolio at 31st December totalled £18,708,000, as shown in the
table below:
Country
of
Domicile

Amount

Maximum
recommended lending
duration

Interest
rate at end
of period

Average
Maturity

Bank of Scotland

UK

£4,500,000

RED (6 months)

0.15%

Instant access

Santander

UK

£3,100,000

RED (6 months)

0.58%

180 day notice

Aberdeen MMF

UK

£2,600,000

WHITE (12 months)

0.05%

Instant access

NatWest Bank

UK

£2,308,000

BLUE (12 months)

0.01%

Instant access

Santander

UK

£1,400,000

RED (6 months)

0.40%

95 day notice

Financial Institution

Page 113

Federated MMF

UK

£1,300,000

WHITE (12 months)

0.03%

Instant access

Standard Chartered
Sustainable

UK

£1,000,000

RED (6 months)

0.08%

6 months fixed

Lloyds Bank

UK

£1,000,000

RED (6 months)

0.05%

95 day notice

Barclays ‘Green’

UK

£1,000,000

RED (6 months)

0.10%

65 day notice

Barclays ‘Green’

UK

£500,000

RED (6 months)

0.30%

95 day notice

TOTAL

£18,708,000

MMF = Money Market Fund

5.2. The average balance of funds available for investment for the year up to 31st
December was £19.7million. Both average balances for the year and the total
portfolio are larger than usual due to Covid 19 grants being held whilst business
grant schemes are administered. The net balance of funds held at the end of
December was £1.7million.
Ethical investing
5.3. The Council currently holds £2,500,000 in financial investments with
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) links, sometimes known as
Ethical Investing and encompassing the Climate Change agenda. These are
included in the investment portfolio table above, but are also highlighted here:
Product

Amount

Barclays ‘Green’
(95 day notice
account)

£500,000

Barclays ‘Green’
(65 day notice
account)

£1,000,000

ESG merits

Linked to Barclays’ Green Bond Purchasing Programme which
covers ‘a variety of thematic projects including energy efficiency,
renewable energy, green transport, sustainable food, agriculture
and forestry, waste management and greenhouse gas emission
reduction’.

Standard Chartered
‘Sustainable’ Deposit
(6 month fixed term)

£1,000,000

Standard Chartered operate this product under their 'Green and
Sustainable Product Framework', which includes 'No poverty; zero
hunger; good health and well-being; quality education; gender
equality; clean water and sanitation; affordable and clean energy;
decent work and economic growth; industry, innovation and
infrastructure; reduced inequalities; sustainable cities and
communities; responsible consumption and production; climate
action; life below water; life on land; peace, justice and strong
institutions; partnerships for the goals'.

TOTAL

£2,500,000

13.36% of total portfolio

6.

Borrowing Position

6.1. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of the
Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow.
Therefore, the Council establishes ‘affordable borrowing limits’ as part of the

Page 114

prudential indicators within the approved TMSS.
6.2. The Council’s external borrowing at the start of the year was £15million.
£7million of local authority borrowing has matured during the year; none has
been refinanced.
6.3. A new capital loan (service investment) to Your Housing Limited of £10million is
anticipated as part of the capital programme at the end of January 2022. This is
expected to be funded in part by capital receipts; external borrowing from the
PWLB and the remainder through internal borrowing. Costs associated with this
are offset by income resulting in an overall net income of £40,020.
6.4. Refinancing and other new borrowing will be kept under review during the year
as the capital programme is carried out, alongside views about cash flow and
opportunities to take borrowing at cheap levels vs internal borrowing in the low
interest income environment.
6.5. Average borrowing during the year is anticipated to be £11.9million with interest
at 0.89%. There is an overall saving forecast of £89,550 against the borrowing
cost budget of £224,580.
6.6. The ‘operational boundary’ (£33,049,000) and ‘authorised limit’ (£34,549,000)
indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing to fund the capital
programme, plus any short-term liquidity requirements. They were set through
the Treasury Management Strategy Statement to account for the general fund
borrowing requirement; an allowance for borrowing to cover short-term liquidity;
and funding of the loan to the Joint Venture Company, Ascent. The current level
of borrowing is well within prudential limits.
6.7. The maturity profile of the loans is considered when undertaking external
borrowing to ensure maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not
exposed to a substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest
rates could be high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans.

Maturity Profile
£6,000,000
£5,000,000
£4,000,000
£3,000,000
£2,000,000
£1,000,000
£0
Less than 1 year

1 - 2 years

Page 115

2 - 5 years

6 - 10 years

6.8. The treasury team, along with Link, monitors opportunities to reschedule debt, i.e.
reorganise existing debt in such a way as to amend the debt repayments, reduce
the principal sum borrowed, alter the degree of volatility of debt or vary the
interest payable, in order to manage risk and achieve overall financial benefit to
the Council taking account of the premium the Council would expect to pay on
early redemption compared to the potential interest savings. No debt
rescheduling has taken place during the year.
7.

Prudential Indicators

7.1. The Council complies with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices and has
operated within the treasury management and prudential indicators set in its
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2021/22.

Page 116

Agenda Item 7.3
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Audit & Accounts Committee
11th February 2022

TITLE:

Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Ralphs - Council Leader SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER:

John Betts – Interim Chief Finance Officer
Emily Bennetts - Finance Business Partner

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-specific

Appendices Attached – Appendix A - Treasury Management Strategy Statement
2022/23

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of the report is to allow members of the Committee to consider
and endorse the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2022/23,
ensuring that its capital and treasury activities for the next four years are
affordable and properly managed.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 2022/23
is recommended to Council for approval.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Council is required, in accordance with the Local Government Act 2003,
to produce an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement before the
commencement of each financial year.

3.2

The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations require the
Council to ‘have regard to’ the Chartered Institute of Public Finance &
Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code of
Practice. The Council is required to set prudential and treasury indicators for
the next four years to ensure that the Council’s capital investment plans are
affordable, prudent and sustainable.

3.3

The 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy Statement comprises three
principal areas:

Page 117

a. Capital Programme (section 6)
 The capital plans and the prudential indicators
 The minimum revenue provision (MRP) Policy
b. Treasury Management (section 7)
 Current Treasury position
 Treasury Indicators
 Prospects for Interest Rates
 The Borrowing Strategy
c. The Annual Investment Strategy (section 8)
 Investment Policy
 Creditworthiness Policy
 Investment Income
3.4

Members are asked to note the controls that have been put in place to
manage the Council’s treasury management risks and activities and to
endorse the Treasury Management Strategy for 2022/23.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

Effective treasury management is critical to the safeguarding and
management of the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient
financial resources are required to deliver and underpin the Council’s
corporate priorities.

5.

Alternative Options

5.1

This report sets the proposed treasury management approach based upon the
Council’s financial plans.

John Betts
Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits
Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details
Keith Pointon
Head of Finance
Keith.Pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
emily.bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 118

APPENDIX A

Treasury Management Strategy
Statement
Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue
Provision Policy Statement

2022/23

Page 119

1.

Introduction

1.1.

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly
means that cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of
the treasury management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is
adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed. Surplus
monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments
commensurate with the Council's low risk appetite, providing adequate
liquidity initially before considering investment return.

1.2.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the
funding of the Council's capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide
to the borrowing need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow
planning to ensure that the Council can meet its capital spending
obligations. The management of longer term cash may involve arranging
long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses. On
occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council
risk or cost objectives.

1.3.

The contribution the treasury management function makes to the authority
is critical, as the balance of debt and investment operations ensure
liquidity or the ability to meet spending commitments as they fall due,
either on day-to-day revenue or for larger capital projects. The treasury
operations will see a balance of the interest costs of debt and the
investment income arising from cash deposits affecting the available
budget. Since cash balances generally result from reserves and balances,
it is paramount to ensure adequate security of the sums invested, as a
loss of principal will in effect result in a loss to the General Fund balance.

1.4.

Whilst any commercial initiatives or loans to third parties will impact on the
treasury function, these activities are generally classed as non-treasury
activities (arising usually from capital expenditure) and are separate from
the day-to-day treasury management activities.

1.5.

Treasury Management is defined by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) as “The management of the local
authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its banking, money
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance
consistent with those risks.” The Council’s Treasury Management Policy
Statement is included at Annex 1.

Page 120

2.

Reporting Requirements
Capital Strategy

2.1.

The CIPFA 2017 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes require all
local authorities to prepare an additional report - a capital strategy - which
will provide the following:
 A high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital
financing and treasury management activity contribute to the
provision of services.
 An overview of how the associated risk is managed.
 The implications for future financial sustainability.

2.2.

The aim of the Capital Strategy is to ensure that all elected Members fully
understand the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting capital
strategy requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite. This is a
separate document presented alongside the Medium Term Financial Plan.
Treasury Management Reporting

2.3.

The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main
reports each year:
a. Treasury Strategy, which looks forward at least three years and
includes:
 Treasury Management Strategy, explaining how the investments
and borrowings are to be organised, including treasury indicators;
 The Council’s capital plans, including prudential indicators;
 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy, stating how residual
capital expenditure is charged to revenue over time; and
 Investment Strategy, stating the parameters on how investments
are to be managed.
b. Mid-Year Treasury Management Report, which updates members on
treasury activities during the financial year and provides for revisions to
the Treasury Strategy and indicators as necessary.
c. Annual Treasury Report, which provides the outturn for the previous
financial year, summarises the treasury activity for that year and
includes a full listing of actual prudential indictors.

2.4.

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement contained in this Appendix
addresses the first of these requirements.

2.5.

The Audit & Accounts Committee has delegated responsibility for
scrutinising the treasury function prior to reports being formally approved
at Council.

Page 121

2.6.

The respective roles & responsibilities of the Council, its Audit & Accounts
Committee and the Section 151 Officer are noted in Annex 2.

3.

Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2022/23

3.1.

The 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy Statement comprises the
following principal elements:
Capital Programme
(section 6)

Capital plans and the prudential indicators
Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy

Treasury Management
(section 7)

Current treasury position
Treasury indicators
Prospects for interest rates
The borrowing strategy
Policy on borrowing in advance of need
Debt rescheduling

The Annual
Investment Strategy
(section 8)

Investment policy
Creditworthiness policy
Investment income

3.2.

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement meets the requirements of the
Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA Prudential Code, DLUHC MRP
Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and DLUHC Guidance.

4.

Training

4.1.

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer (the Chief Finance Officer) to
ensure that Members and Officers with responsibility for treasury management
receive adequate training. Training is particularly important for Members who
are responsible for the scrutiny of the Council’s treasury management.

4.2.

A skills assessments is completed by Members of the Audit Committee
periodically. The outcomes of these assessments will be incorporated into a
training plan – including any treasury management training needs and training
events organised as required.

5.

Treasury Management Consultants

5.1.

The Council has appointed Link Group: Treasury solutions as its external
treasury management advisor, providing the Council with access to specialist
skills and resources. The Council recognises that the responsibility for treasury
management decisions remains with the organisation at all times and will
ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon our external service providers.

Page 122

All decisions will be undertaken with regards to all available information,
including, but not solely, our treasury advisors.
5.2.

6.

It also recognises that there is a value in employing external providers of
treasury management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills
and resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of appointment of
treasury advisors and the methods by which their value will be assessed are
properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review.
The Capital Programme & Prudential Indicators
Capital Expenditure

6.1.

The capital expenditure prudential indicator comprises a summary of the
Council’s capital programme, which is a key driver of treasury
management activity.

6.2.

The table below summarises the Council’s capital expenditure plans and
how these plans are to be financed. Any shortfall of resources results in a
funding borrowing need:
2020/21
Actual
£’000

Capital Expenditure
Financed by:
External Contributions
Capital Receipts
Earmarked Reserves
Capital Reserves
General Fund Balances
Net Financing Need for Year

2021/22
Estimate
£’000

2022/23
Estimate
£’000

2023/24
Estimate
£’000

2024/25
Estimate
£’000

2025/26
Estimate
£’000

3,097

13,957*

3,501

3,552

2,453

4,485

949
94
0
741
0

1,520
3,216
1,185
0
1,200

1,500
71
0
0
0

1,500
16
0
0
0

1,500
11
0
0
0

1,500
0
0
0
0

1,313

6,836

1,930

2,036

942

2,985

* Includes £10m loan to a Housing Company (Your Housing Limited) as a capital service
investment; part funded b y £3.1m capital receipts; £1.1m reserve; with the remaining £5.8m b eing
part of the net financing need for the year.

The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement)
6.3.

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR). The CFR is the total outstanding capital expenditure
which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources.
This is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing need.

6.4.

The CFR increases each time the Council procures capital expenditure
that it does not immediately pay for (i.e. the CFR increases when its
expenditure is financed through borrowing).

Page 123

6.5.

Local authorities are required each year to set aside some of their
revenues as provision for debt repayment. This is known as the Minimum
Revenue Provision (MRP). The CFR is reduced each year by this MRP;
each year’s borrowing need is divided by the life of the assets for which
borrowing was undertaken, resulting in an annual charge to revenue, thus
reducing the Council’s CFR.

6.6.

The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. leases held on the
balance sheet). Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the
Council's borrowing requirement, these types of scheme include a
borrowing facility and so the Council is not required to separately borrow
for these schemes. The Council had £0 of these schemes within the CFR
at 1st April 2021.

6.7.

A new accounting standard, IFRS16, is being implemented in the CIPFA
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom and
therefore the Council’s accounts from 2022/23. This standard relates to
‘Right-of-Use’ assets and effectively replaces the former accounting
standard for Leasing. The value of the Right-of-Use assets will similarly
increase the CFR. The estimated impact of this change is expected to be
immaterial, therefore is not included at this stage. Should any changes to
the CFR be significant, this will be revised during the year.

6.8.

The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement is shown in the table below:

Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR)

2020/21
Actual

2021/22
Estimate

2022/23
Estimate

2023/24
Estimate

2024/25
Estimate

2025/26
Estimate

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

18,082

10,832

12,541

14,315

14,956

17,620

1,254

(7,250)

1,709

1,774

641

2,664

1,313

6,836

1,930

2,036

942

2,985

(59)

(86)

(221)

(262)

(301)

(321)

Reduction in CFR*

0

(14,000)

0

0

0

0

Movement in CFR

1,254

(7,250)

1,709

1,774

641

2,664

Movement in CFR
Represented by:
Net financing need for
the year
Less Minimum Revenue
Provision

*Full repayment of £14m Ascent Loan previously unfunded.

Page 124

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement
6.9.

The Council is required each year to set aside some of its revenues as
provision for debt repayment. This essentially allows to Council to “pay off”
an element of the Capital Financing Requirement annually through a
revenue charge known as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). The
Council is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary payments if
required (voluntary revenue provision, VRP).

6.10. DLUHC regulations require the full Council to approve an MRP Statement
in advance of each year. A variety of options are provided to councils, so
long as there is a prudent provision. The Council is recommended to
approve the following: for capital expenditure incurred from 1 April 2008,
i.e. all unsupported borrowing (including finance leases) the Council will
apply the ‘Asset Life Method’ under which MRP is based on the estimated
life of the asset for which the borrowing is undertaken. This provides a
reduction in the borrowing need over the asset’s life.
6.11. The DLUHC MRP Guidance allows any charges made in excess of the
statutory minimum revenue provision, i.e. voluntary revenue provision
(VRP) or overpayments to be reclaimed in later years if deemed
necessary or prudent. In order for these sums to be reclaimed for use in
the budget, this policy must disclose the cumulative overpayment made
each year. Up until 31st March 2021, the total VRP overpayments were
£0.
Use of the Council’s Resources and Investment Position
6.12. The Council builds up capital and revenue reserves as necessary for
future application. The application of these resources to either finance
capital expenditure or to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing
impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year
from new sources (for example, asset sales, revenue surpluses).
Reserves are invested, pending application, to earn a return which
supplements the revenue budget.

Page 125

6.13. An estimate of the amount available at year end for core investment
including revenue and capital reserves and balances is shown in the table
below:
Year End
Resources

2020/21
Actual
£’000

2021/22
Estimate
£’000

2022/23
Estimate
£’000

2023/24
Estimate
£’000

2024/25
Estimate
£’000

2025/26
Estimate
£’000

Total Core funds

16,077

16,682

16,820

16,621

16,597

16,624

Working capital *

(6,509)

0

0

0

0

0

(Under)/over
borrowing**

(3,082)

1,772

(2,437)

(3,211)

(3,852)

(3,516)

6,486

18,454

14,383

13,410

12,745

13,108

Expected
investments

* Working capital at year end 31

st

March 2021 elevated related to covid grant funding reconciliation
payments accrued. Shown as ‘0’ for future year estimation purposes as dependent on the value of
creditors/deb tors at year end
**sub ject to considerations around whether to externally/ internally b orrow

Affordability Prudential Indicators
6.14. The previous sections outline the Council’s capital expenditure plans and
funding requirements. This section assesses the affordability of capital
investment plans and the impact on the Council’s overall finances.
Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream
6.15. This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing costs net
of investment income) as a percentage of the Council’s net revenue
stream (Council Tax and Business Rates receipts & Government funding).

Ratio Net Financing Costs
to Net Revenue Stream

2020/21
Actual

2021/22
Estimate

2022/23
Estimate

2023/24
Estimate

2024/25
Estimate

2025/26
Estimate

(3.18%)*

(3.06%)

0.18%

(0.13%)

(0.35%)

(0.08%)

* where (negative), net financing costs are a net income.

Interest payable & interest receivable
6.16. Given the capital projections above, interest payable & interest receivable
budgets for the next four years are forecast as follows:

Borrowing Costs
Investment Income

2022/23
Estimate

2023/24
Estimate

2024/25
Estimate

2025/26
Estimate

£99,310

£160,780

£186,470

£254,500

(£79,390)

(£175,360)

(£225,110)

(£263,300)

Page 126

7.

Treasury Management

7.1.

The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is
organised in accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that
sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity and the Council’s
capital strategy. This will involve both the organisation of the cash flow
and, where capital plans require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing
facilities. This strategy covers the relevant treasury and prudential
indicators, the current and projected debt and investment positions and
the annual investment strategy.

Current Debt Position
7.2.

The Council’s debt position at 31st March 2021 and its forward projections
are summarised below. The table shows the actual external debt against
the underlying borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement)
highlighting any under or over borrowing.
March ‘21
Actual
£’000

External Borrowing

March ‘22
Estimate
£’000

March ‘23
Estimate
£’000

March ‘24
Estimate
£’000

March ‘25
Estimate
£’000

March ‘26
Estimate
£’000

15,000

12,604

10,104

11,104

11,104

14,104

0

0

0

0

0

0

15,000

12,604

10,104

11,104

11,104

14,104

5,000

(2,396)

(2,500)

1,000

0

3,000

Capital Financing
Requirement

18,082

10,832

12,541

14,315

14,956

17,620

(Under)/ over borrowing**

(3,082)

1,772

(2,437)

(3,211)

(3,852)

(3,516)

Other long-term liabilities*
Gross Debt at 31st March
Change in Debt position

* Other long-term liab ilities will include Right-of-Use assets under accounting standard IFRS16 to b e
adopted from 2022/23. The impact is expected to b e immaterial therefore is not included at this stage.
Should any changes b e significant, the CFR limit and forecast will b e revised during the year.
** Sub ject to considerations around whether the externally/ internally b orrow

7.3.

The Council is required to ensure that its Gross Debt does not, except in
the short term, exceed the total of the Capital Financing Requirement
(CFR) in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for
the current year and the following two financial years. This allows some
flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but ensures that
borrowing is not undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes.

7.4.

There is an estimated over borrowing of £1,772,000 in 2021/22, but a
return to an under borrowed position in the following year, therefore the
Council is complying with this indicator and does not envisage any

Page 127

difficulty in complying over the life of the Medium Term Financial Plan.
This view takes into account current budget and future proposals with
regard to the capital programme.
Treasury Indicators - Limits to Borrowing Activity
7.5.

The Council sets limits to ensure that the revenue consequences of the
capital programme on external borrowing remain affordable.
Operational Boundary

7.6.

This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally expected to
exceed. This represents the Capital Financing Requirement plus an
additional allowance to cover short-term liquidity requirements.
2021/22
Set
£’000

Operational boundary

2022/23
Estimate
£’000

2023/24
Estimate
£’000

2024/25
Estimate
£’000

2025/26
Estimate
£’000

Capital Financing Requirement

21,228

12,541

14,315

14,956

17,620

Service Investment Facility

6,000*

10,000**

0

0

0

5,821

5,867

6,080

6,301

6,530

33,049

28,408

20,395

21,257

24,150

Allowance for borrowing to
cover short-term cash flow***
Total Gross Debt

* Ascent Housing LLP loan remaining facility
** Your Housing Limited Incremental Facility availab le in 2022/23, not included in the Capital
forecast
*** Amount required in short-term to cover precepts (the highest cash outflow)

Authorised Limit for External Debt
7.7.

This indicator represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing – a
legal limit beyond which external debt is prohibited. This limit needs to be
set or revised by the full Council. It is the statutory limit determined under
Section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003. The Government retains
an option to control either the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a
specific council, although this power has not yet been exercised.

Authorised limit
Operational Boundary
‘Headroom’
Total Gross Debt

2020/21
Set
£’000
33,049

2021/22
Setting
£‘000
28,408

2022/23
Estimate
£‘000
20,395

2023/24
Estimate
£‘000
21,257

2024/25
Estimate
£‘000
24,150

1,500

1,500

1,500

1,500

1,500

34,549

29,908

21,895

22,757

25,650

Page 128

Prospects for Interest Rates
7.8.

This table, provided by Link, presents forecasts for short term Bank of
England base rate and PWLB borrowing rates:

%

Mar22

Jun22

Sep22

Dec22

Mar23

Jun23

Sep23

Dec23

Mar24

Jun24

Sep24

Dec24

Mar25

Bank
Rate

0.25

0.50

0.50

0.50

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.25

5yr PWLB
rate

1.50

1.50

1.60

1.60

1.70

1.80

1.80

1.80

1.90

1.90

1.90

2.00

2.00

10r PWLB
rate

1.70

1.80

1.80

1.90

1.90

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.10

2.10

2.10

2.20

2.30

7.9.

The Bank of England took emergency action in March 2020 to cut bank
rate to 0.25% then 0.10%; it returned to 0.25% in December 2021 and is
forecast to increase again several times over the medium term, as shown
in the table above. Borrowing rates are also forecast to increase over this
period.

7.10. The investment income budget therefore anticipates some increases to
the return on investments which have mostly been extremely low, close to
zero, over the last year.
Borrowing Strategy
7.11. The Council’s capital financing requirement is currently funded in the
majority by external borrowing but also and maintains an under-borrowed
position over the medium term financial plan period.
7.12. As highlighted above, the Council has an estimated total net financing
requirement of £7,893,000 over the four years ending March 2026. The
Treasury Strategy assumes that this will be funded in part via external
borrowing. Options for internal borrowing will be considered against any
changes to forecast capital spend and forecast interest rates.
7.13. ‘New’ borrowing and some refinancing of maturing borrowing is
anticipated during 2022/23, 2023/24 and 2025/26 (shown in the Change in
debt position in the table at paragraph 7.2) to support the general fund
capital programme net financing need. The capital financing requirement
will be closely monitored in order to make a decision on any necessary
financing. Interest rate forecasts will also be monitored to identify any
opportunities to refinance maturing debt in advance to reduce interest
charges in the long-term.

Page 129

Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need
7.14. The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its need purely to
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed.
7.15. The Council however may consider borrowing in advance to protect it from
higher borrowing costs within approved Capital Financing Requirement
estimates to finance new capital expenditure or refinance existing loans.
7.16. This will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.
Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to
prior appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year reporting
mechanism.
Debt Rescheduling
7.17. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as
to amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter
the degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing
the risk. The treasury team, supported by the Council’s treasury advisors,
will monitor prospects for debt rescheduling to achieve overall financial
benefit to the Council.
Maturity Structure of Borrowing
7.18. These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s exposure to large fixed
rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for upper and lower
limits. The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators
and limits:
Maturity Structure of Borrowing* 2022/23
Fixed Interest Rates
Under 12 months
12 months to 2 years
2 years to 5 years
5 years to 10 years
10 years and above

Lower
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

Upper**
70%
60%
60%
60%
60%

0%
0%
0%

100%
50%
0%

Variable Interest Rates
Under 12 months
12 months to 2 years
Greater than 2 years
*external debt only (excludes Leases)

Page 130

Control of Interest Rate Exposure
7.19. The Council reviews and manages the interest rate exposure of both
borrowing and investments through the borrowing and investment
strategies included in this document. Officers will monitor the balance
between variable and fixed interest rates to ensure the Council is not
exposed to adverse fluctuations in fixed or variable interest rate
movements.
8.

Annual Investment Strategy
Investment Policy

8.1.

The DLUHC (formerly MHCLG) and CIPFA have extended the meaning of
‘investments’ to include both financial and non-financial investments. This
report deals solely with financial investments (as managed by the treasury
management team). Non-financial investments, essentially the purchase
of income yielding assets, are covered in the Capital Strategy document.

8.2.

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the DLUHC’s Guidance on
Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”), the CIPFA Treasury
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral
Guidance Notes 2017 (“the CIPFA TM Code”) and the CIPFA Treasury
Management Guidance Notes 2018.

8.3.

The Council’s principal investment priorities are the security of capital and
the liquidity of its investments. In addition to this, the Council will aim to
achieve the optimum return on its investments commensurate with proper
levels of security and liquidity.

8.4.

The above guidance from the DLUHC and CIPFA place a high priority on
the management of risk. This authority has adopted a prudent approach to
managing risk and defines its risk appetite by the following means:




Minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a
list of highly creditworthy counterparties. This also enables
diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. The key
ratings used to monitor counterparties are the short and long-term
ratings.
Ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution;
it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on
both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and
political environments in which institutions operate. The assessment
will also take account of information that reflects the opinion of the
markets. To achieve this consideration, the Council will engage with its
advisors to maintain a monitor on market pricing such as ‘credit default
swaps’ and overlay that information on top of the credit ratings.

Page 131

8.5.

The investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are
listed in Annex 4 under the headings, ‘Specified’ and ‘Non-Specified’
Investments. ‘Specified’ investments are those with a high level of credit
quaity and subject to a maturity limit of one year. ‘Non-specified’
investments are more complex instruments, those with less high credit
quality, may be for periods of more than one year and should be subject to
greater consideration by members and officers before use.

8.6.

Counterparty limits will be set as part of the Treasury Strategy and
maintained as part of the Council’s treasury management practices.

8.7.

The Council will pursue value for money in treasury management and will
monitor the yield from investment income against appropriate benchmarks
for investment performance. Regular monitoring of investment
performance will be carried out and reported on during the year and at the
end of the financial year in its Annual Treasury Report.

8.8.

The above criteria on risk management are unchanged from last year.
Creditworthiness Policy

8.9.

This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Group.
This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit
ratings from three main credit rating agencies – Fitch, Moody’s and
Standard and Poor’s. The credit ratings of counterparties are
supplemented with the following overlays:




Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;
Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads to give early warning of likely
changes in credit ratings; and
Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most
creditworthy countries.

8.10. Credit watches and outlooks are issued by the ratings agencies. ‘Credit
watches’ are considered short-term actions, whereas ‘outlooks’ are
considered over a longer term time horizon. Link includes the release of a
negative or positive watch/outlook in its creditworthiness analysis.
8.11. A ‘Credit Default Swap’ is a contract between two counterparties in which
the buyer of the contract makes quarterly payments to the seller of the
contract in exchange for a payoff if there is a credit event of the reference
entity. The contract essentially gives protection or ‘insurance’. Therefore,
CDS spreads provide perceived market sentiment regarding the credit
quality of an institution and are also used in the creditworthiness analysis
to determine the durational band of investment with a financial institution.

Page 132

8.12. Link's creditworthiness model combines credit ratings, credit watches and
outlooks in a weighted scoring system, with an overlay of CDS spreads, to
produce a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative
creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour codes are then used to
determine the duration for investments.
8.13. Only counterparties that fall within a ‘durational band’ will be included on
the Council’s lending list. In conjunction with the recommended durational
limits, the Council has assigned corresponding investment limits to each
banding. The limits have been set separately for UK banks and
International banks.
UK Banks
Category
Yellow*
Purple
Orange
Red
Green
No Colour

Principal
Limit
£8.25m
£8.25m
£6.60m
£5.94m
£4.95m
-

Maximum
Length
Up to 5 years
Up to 2 years
Up to 1 year
Up to 6 months
Up to 100 days
Not to be used

Portfolio (% of
highest balance**)
25%
25%
20%
18%
15%
-

* UK Government debt instruments
**assumes highest balance is £33,000,000

International Banks
Principal
Category
Limit
Purple
£6.60m
Orange
£5.94m
Red
£4.95m
Green
£3.96m
No Colour
-

Maximum
Length
Up to 2 years
Up to 1 year
Up to 6 months
Up to 3 months
Not to be used

Portfolio (% of
highest balance*)
20%
18%
15%
12%
-

* assumes highest balance is £33,000,000

8.14. The Council’s lending list includes part and fully Nationalised UK
which have been assigned the ‘blue’ category as per
creditworthiness matrix. This category has been allocated a
durational period and higher investment limit since it has
Government support. The table below assigns investment limits:
Category
Blue
NatWest (the Council’s
main bank account)

banks,
Link’s
longer
strong

Principal
Limit
£8.25m

Maximum
Length
Up to 1 year

Portfolio (% of
highest balance*)
25%

£12.54m

Up to 1 year

38%

* assumes highest balance is £33,000,000

Page 133

8.15. The Council is alerted to changes in ratings and market movements
through its use of the Link creditworthiness service. If a downgrade results
in the counterparty no longer meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, it will
no longer be used for new investments. All ratings will be monitored prior
to any new investments being placed.
Group Limits
8.16. To reduce its risk further the Council has set a group limit for fixed term
deposits in institutions with the same parent. The group limit will increase
to the portfolio percentage of the colour band the institution is rated in at
the time by a further 50% where at least the additional amount is held in
an instant access account:
Category
Blue
Purple
Orange
Red
Green

Portfolio (%
of highest
balance*)
25%
25%
20%
18%
15%

Individual
Principal
Limit
£8.25m
£8.25m
£6.60m
£5.94m
£4.95m

Portfolio %
increased by
50%
38%
38%
30%
27%
23%

Group Principal
Limit
£12.54m
£12.54m
£9.90m
£8.91m
£7.95m

* assumes highest balance is £33,000,000

Money Market Funds
8.17. The Council has access to several Money Market Funds (MMF) - all of
which are ‘AAA’ rated. A ‘Money Market Fund’ is a pooled vehicle
investing in a number of investment instruments with varying maturity
periods in a number of different countries. Money Market Funds provide
an alternative option for the Council when placing short-term funds and
provide for diversification of the investment portfolio.
8.18. The Council has set an investment limit for each Money Market Fund:

Individual MMF
Total MMF investments**

Principal
Limit
£8.25m
£12.54m

Maximum
Length
Up to 1 year
Up to 1 year

Portfolio (% of
highest balance*)
25%
38%

* assumes highest balance is £33,000,000
** maximum held in MMF’s at any one time

Intra Local authority investing
8.19. In addition to financial investments in instant access accounts; notice
accounts; money market funds; fixed term deposits and Certificates of
Deposit, which are all with rated institutions (banks, building societies,

Page 134

money market funds), another option is to invest the Council’s funds in the
intra-local authority market. This type of investment is included in this
Investment Strategy for investments for up to 12 months at the
counterparty limit equivalent to ‘Yellow’ (relating to Government Debt
Instruments). The cap of investing for a maximum of 12 months is in line
with the Council’s current usual practices for financial investments. The
counterparty limit £8.25million would be treated as a total limit for all local
authority investments and the maximum to be invested in any individual
authority would be £2million.

Individual local authority
All local authorities**

Principal
Limit
£2.00m
£8.25m

Maximum
Length
Up to 1 year
Up to 1 year

Portfolio (% of
highest balance*)
25%

* assumes highest b alance in £33,000,000
** maximum held in all other Local Authorities at any one time

8.20. Link, the Council’s advisors, don’t have a suggested duration for local
authorities on their counterparty list, but as quasi UK Government and with
specific regulation protection for lenders they are comfortable with
deposits of up to 5 years. Furthermore, there is a general presumption of
public bodies being going concerns with an acceptance that should an
organisation fail financially, services provided would not be allowed to fail
and would be picked up by government or a successor body.
8.21. In selecting a local authority investment, the Council would decline any
counterparty under a s114 notice at the time of arranging the investment.
Under the Local Government Finance Act 1988, Section 114 (3) dictates
that: ‘The chief finance officer of a relevant authority shall make a report
under this section if it appears that the expenditure of the authority
incurred (including expenditure it proposes to incur) in a financial year is
likely to exceed the resources (including sums borrowed) available to it to
meet that expenditure’.
8.22. In order to make an investment, the treasury team would contact one of
the Council’s brokers and make them aware of the amount of investment,
duration and yield the Council would like to obtain; they then match this up
with other local authority counterparts who need to borrow funds. There is
no charge for this brokerage service when lending funds.
Extraordinary Limits
8.23. During 2020/21 and 2021/22 the Council has seen unprecedented levels
of cash flows due to the large grant funding payments from central
government which the Council was required to pay out to businesses
under the various grant schemes to respond to the Covid 19 crisis. This

Page 135

put pressure on the counterparty limits set. In setting the Investment
Strategy for 2022/23, rather than set limits at very high levels compared to
the normal trend of cash flow levels in order to accommodate such events
in the future, which would result in artificially high counterparty limits and
potentially increase counterparty risk, counterparty limits are set at normal
trend levels, with the facility to increase these by a reasonable percentage
temporarily according to any situation arising during the year. Such
increases and events would be reported at Audit Committees.
Country Limits
8.24. A sovereign credit rating is the credit rating of a sovereign entity i.e. a
country. The highest sovereign rating awarded is ‘AAA’. The evolving
regulatory environment, in tandem with the rating agencies’ new
methodologies, means that sovereign ratings are now of lesser
importance in the assessment process and the new regulatory
environment is attempting to break the link between sovereign support
and domestic financial institutions.
8.25. While the Council understands the changes that have taken place, it will
continue to use sovereign ratings of individual counties in addition to credit
ratings when making investment decisions. When investing with
institutions outside the UK, only banks and building societies located in
countries with a minimum sovereign rating of ‘AAA’ will be used.
8.26. This is in relation to the fact that the underlying domestic and, where
appropriate, international economic and wider political and social
background will still have an influence on the ratings of a financial
institution.
8.27. At the time of writing time (January 2022), there are 9 ‘AAA’ rated
countries approved for investments under the ‘International Banks’
counterparty limits: Australia, Denmark, Germany, Luxembourg,
Netherlands, Norway, Singapore, Sweden, and Switzerland.
Ethical investing
8.28. There is a growing interest in local authority investing around
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) issues; this is sometimes
referred to as Ethical Investing and encompasses considerations around
the Climate Change agenda.
8.29. With regards to the financial investments considered in this Investment
Strategy, investment guidance, both statutory and from CIPFA, makes
clear that all financial investments must adopt the ‘SLY’ principals,
whereby Security of investments is always the priority, followed by

Page 136

Liquidity, then Yield. Investment opportunities with positive ESG merits
would not be selected if the SLY criteria were not satisfied.
8.30. The ESG market accessible to the Council for financial investments is still
emerging and there are few opportunities at present. A financial
investment portfolio exclusively made up of ESG linked investments would
present a significant increase of Counterparty risk, concentrating the
Council’s funds in too few places. Therefore this cannot be pursued as a
criteria at least until such time as there are more ESG linked products
available to the Council. However, opportunities to invest in ESG products,
where they are on a par with non-ESG linked investments in terms of the
SLY criteria, will be selected as a priority.
8.31. In order to assess financial investments and entities for ESG merits, this
would require expert advice regarding ESG metrics and ESG scoring
systems. The Treasury team are aware that Link are engaging with
providers in order to develop a system which could overlay their
creditworthiness assessment service. Estimated timescales suggest this
could be available in 2022/23 and is likely to be at an additional cost.
Other providers (though not necessarily specific to local authority needs)
are emerging in the market and these would be assessed alongside,
should such a service be procured.
8.32. An ESG scoring system could provide an overall general rating to an entity
as a whole or, if possible, the Council’s particular priorities around ESG
could be factored in to the scoring system. If this were to become a viable
option, the Council and the Climate Change Working Group would need to
determine what those priorities were. It should be noted however, that if
particular criteria were set, this could mean a further reduction in the
already small number of ESG linked financial investment opportunities, as
many are broad at present. In addition, there is a risk of reducing the
overall number of counterparties available to the Council if ESG scoring
limits were set.
8.33. Wider than the financial investments considered in this Investment
Strategy are non-financial investments which include activities and
projects of the Council, for example 100% sustainable utilities, or electric
fleet and its infrastructure. As with all Council priorities and decisions,
these would need to be considered in the wider context including
reference to the corporate plan, full business cases and due diligence,
therefore this Investment Strategy is only concerned with cash based
financial investments.
8.34. Ethical investing is a standard item of business in the Treasury Team’s
regular review meetings with advisors Link and the Team keeps up to date
with relationship managers for various counterparties and brokers as to

Page 137

opportunities available. Developments in this particular area of financial
investing will be reported to the Audit Committee in the regular updates.
Investment income
8.35. The Council’s in-house managed funds are derived from a core balance
available for capital and revenue funding and day-to-day cash flows. At
31st March 2021 the core balances available for investment were
£16,077,000. Core balances are available for investment in line with the
profile of capital expenditure and requirements of the revenue budget.
Investments are therefore made with reference to the core balance and
cash flow requirements and the outlook for interest rates.
Investment Return Expectations
8.36. Based on expectations of movements in the Bank of England base rate,
average investment earnings are forecast by Link as:
Year
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
2025/26

Average earnings
0.50%
0.75%
1.00%
1.25%

8.37. Taking into account the accounts and investments the Council has access
to whilst ensuring the profile of liquidity suits the Council’s needs,
investment income is forecast over the medium term at:
Year
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
2025/26

£79,390
£175,360
£225,110
£263,300

Long-term Investments (greater than 365 days)
8.38. When placing long-term treasury management investments with
counterparties the Council’s liquidity requirements, availability of funds
and counterparty eligibility need to be taken into consideration. A full
review and selection process would take place with input from the
Council’s advisors, Link, in advance of entering in to any commitment to
fully ensure that it is appropriate for the Council. The table below sets the
limit for these investments:
Maximum principal sums invested
> 365 days

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

£3,500,000

£3,500,000

£3,500,000

£3,500,000

Page 138

ANNEX 1
Treasury Management Policy Statement
In accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management,
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council defines the policies and objectives of its
treasury management activities as follows:
1.

The Council defines its treasury management activities as: “The
management of the authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective
control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of
optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

2.

The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control
of risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury
management activities will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and
reporting of treasury management activities will focus on their risk
implications for the organisation, and any financial instruments entered
into to manage these risks.

3.

The Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will
provide support towards the achievement of its business and service
objectives. It is therefore committed to the principles of achieving value for
money in treasury management, and to employing suitable
comprehensive performance measurement techniques, within the context
of effective risk management.

Page 139

ANNEX 2
Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation
(i) Full Council


receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies,
practices and activities;



approval of annual strategy.

(ii) Audit & Accounts Committee


approval of/ amendments to the Council’s adopted clauses, treasury
management policy statement and treasury management practices;



reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making
recommendations to the responsible body;



budget consideration and approval;



approval of the division of responsibilities;



receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on
recommendations;



approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms
of appointment.

The treasury management role of the section 151 (responsible) officer


recommending clauses, treasury management policy/ practices for
approval, reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance;



submitting regular treasury management policy reports;



submitting budgets and budget variations;



receiving and reviewing management information reports;



reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;



ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and
the effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management
function;



ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit;



recommending the appointment of external service providers.

Page 140

ANNEX 3
Management Practices for Non-Treasury Investments
This Council recognises that investment in other financial assets and property
primarily for financial return, taken for non-treasury management purposes,
requires careful investment management. Such activity includes loans supporting
service outcomes, investments in subsidiaries, and investment property
portfolios.
This Council will ensure that all the Council’s investments are covered in the
capital strategy, investment strategy or equivalent, and will set out, where
relevant, the organisation’s risk appetite and specific policies and arrangements
for non-treasury investments. It will be recognised that the risk appetite for these
activities may differ from that for treasury management.
The Council will maintain a schedule setting out a summary of existing material
investments, subsidiaries, joint venture and liabilities including financial
guarantees and the organisation’s risk exposure.

Page 141

ANNEX 4
Specified and Non-Specified Investments
Specified Investments
All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to maximum
of 1 year*, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable.
Minimum ‘High’ Credit Criteria

Investment Instrument
Debt Management Agency
Deposit Facility (DMADF)

n/a

Investment Limit**
As per lending limits
Yellow UK
As per lending limits
Yellow UK for total LA
lending; max £2m per
LA

Term deposits – local
authorities

n/a

Term deposits – housing
associations

n/a

n/a

Third Party Loans

Decision made on individual basis
per Capital Strategy

n/a

UK sovereign rating

As per lending limits
Yellow UK

UK Government Gilts and
Treasury Bills
Certificates of deposits (CDs)
or corporate bonds with banks
and building societies
Term deposits – banks and
building societies
UK (Part-)Nationalised Banks
UK Instant Access Accounts

Based on Link Creditworthiness
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN
Sovereignty Rating –AAA (exc UK)
Based on Link Creditworthiness
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN
Sovereignty Rating –AAA (exc UK)
Based on Link Creditworthiness
analysis. Lowest Band – BLUE
Based on Link Creditworthiness
analysis. Lowest Band – GREEN

As per individual /
group lending limits
As per individual /
group lending limits
As per individual /
group lending limits
As per individual /
group lending limits

* If forward deposits are to be made, the forward period plus the deal period should not exceed
one year in aggregate
** must conform to both institution and group limits set
Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs):
Investments
Money Market Funds
(CNAV & LVNAV)

Minimum Credit
Criteria
AAA rated

Investment Limit/
Max. % of total investments
As per individual / group
lending limits

Page 142

Max. maturity
period
Liquid

Non-specified Investments
Non-specified investment instruments are assumed to take on greater risk and
should therefore be subject to greater scrutiny. They include investments that are
for a period of more than one year and instruments that the Council has very
limited experience and expertise in dealing with. A maximum of £10,000,000
(40% of the projected highest balance) will be held in aggregate in non-specified
investments.
Non-specified Investments

Minimum Credit Criteria

Investment Limit
/ Max. % of total
investments

Max. maturity period

Term deposits – UK government
(maturities in excess of 1 year)

UK Sovereign Rating

> 365 day limit

5 years

Third Party Loans (maturities in excess
of 1 year)

Decision made on individual
basis per Capital Strategy

n/a

n/a

Term & Callable deposits – banks and
building societies (maturities in excess
of 1 year)

Based on Link
Creditworthiness analysis.
Lowest Band – PURPLE
Based on Link
Creditworthiness analysis.
Lowest Band – GREEN
Sovereignty Rating AAA/ UK

> 365 day limit

2 years

£3,300,000 (10%
of highest
balance)

1 year

Commercial Paper

UK Government Gilts – all maturities

UK Sovereign Rating

Bonds issued by multilateral
development banks - all maturities

Long term AAA

Bonds issued by a financial institution
which is guaranteed by the UK
government – all maturities

UK Sovereign Rating

Sovereign bond issues (i.e. other than
the UK govt) – all maturities

Long Term AAA

Treasury Bills – all maturities

UK Sovereign Rating

Property Funds/ Multi Asset Funds

Full due diligence to select
appropriate fund

£3,300,000 (10%
of highest
balance)
£3,300,000 (10%
of highest
balance)
£3,300,000 (10%
of highest
balance)
£3,300,000 (10%
of highest
balance)
£4,950,000 (15%
of highest
balance)
> 365 day limit

2 years

6 months
2 years
2 years

2 years
n/a

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs):
Investments
Government Liquidity Funds –
all maturities
Enhanced cash funds –
all maturities
Gilt Funds – all maturities

Minimum Credit
Criteria
AAA rated
AAA rated
UK Sovereign Rating

Page 143

Investment Limit/
Max. % of total
investments
£4,950,000 (15% of
highest balance)
£3,300,000 (10% of
highest balance)
£3,300,000 (10% of
highest balance)

Max.
maturity
period
2 years
Liquid
2 years

ANNEX 5
Note: 2021 revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code and Prudential Code
changes which will impact on future TMSS reports and the risk
management framework
CIPFA published the revised codes on 20 th December 2021 and has stated that
formal adoption is not required until the 2023/24 financial year. This Council has
to have regard to these codes of practice when it prepares the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy, and also
related reports during the financial year, which are taken to Full Council for
approval.
The revised codes will have the following implications:


a requirement for the Council to adopt a new debt liability benchmark
treasury indicator to support the financing risk management of the capital
financing requirement;



clarify what CIPFA expects a local authority to borrow for and what they
do not view as appropriate. This will include the requirement to set a
proportionate approach to commercial and service capital investment;



address ESG issues within the Capital Strategy;



require implementation of a policy to review commercial property, with a
view to divest where appropriate;



create new Investment Practices to manage risks associated with nontreasury investment (similar to the current Treasury Management
Practices);



ensure that any long term treasury investment is supported by a business
model;



a requirement to effectively manage liquidity and longer term cash flow
requirements;



amendment to TMP1 to address ESG policy within the treasury
management risk framework;



amendment to the knowledge and skills register for individuals involved in
the treasury management function - to be proportionate to the size and
complexity of the treasury management conducted by each council;

Page 144



a new requirement to clarify reporting requirements for service and
commercial
investment,
(especially
where
supported
by
borrowing/leverage).

In addition, all investments and investment income must be attributed to one of
the following three purposes:
Treasury management
Arising from the organisation’s cash flows or treasury risk management
activity, this type of investment represents balances which are only held until
the cash is required for use. Treasury investments may also arise from other
treasury risk management activity which seeks to prudently manage the risks,
costs or income relating to existing or forecast debt or treasury investments.
Service delivery
Investments held primarily and directly for the delivery of public services
including housing, regeneration and local infrastructure. Returns on this
category of investment which are funded by borrowing are permitted only in
cases where the income is “either related to the financial viability of the
project in question or otherwise incidental to the primary purpose”.
Commercial return
Investments held primarily for financial return with no treasury management
or direct service provision purpose. Risks on such investments should be
proportionate to a council’s financial capacity – i.e., that ‘plausible losses’
could be absorbed in budgets or reserves without unmanageable detriment to
local services. An authority must not borrow to invest primarily for financial
return.
As this Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment
Strategy deals soley with treasury management investments, the categories of
service delivery and commercial investments will be dealt with as part of the
Capital Strategy report. However, as investments in commercial property have
implications for cash balances managed by the treasury team, it will be for each
authority to determine whether they feel it is relevant to add a high level summary
of the impact that commercial investments have, or may have, if it is planned to
liquidate such investments within the three year time horizon of this report, (or a
longer time horizon if that is felt appropriate).
Members will be updated on how all these changes will impact our current
approach and any changes required will be formally adopted within the 2023/24
TMSS report.

Page 145

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report to Council
23rd February 2022
TITLE:

Pay Policy Statement 2022/23

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Sybil Ralphs – Leader

CONTACT OFFICER:

Tanya Cooper – Head of OD and
Transformation

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A – Pay Policy Statement 2022/23
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of the report is to confirm the agreed policies for the
remuneration of the Council’s workforce and seek approval of the Pay Policy
Statement for 2022/2023 in compliance with the provisions of the Localism Act
(2011).

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the Council approves the Pay Policy Statement for 2022/2023.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

In accordance with Sections 38 to 43 of the Localism Act 2011 local
authorities are required to agree a Pay Policy Statement for each financial
year. In preparing this statement, they are also required to have regard to the
guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Section 40 of the Localism
Act 2011.

3.2

The Pay Policy Statement must be approved by a resolution of full Council by
the end of March and in each subsequent year. The Council must publish the
statement in such a manner as it thinks fit, which must include publication on
the website.

3.3

The proposed Pay Policy Statement attached at Appendix A seeks to comply
with the statutory requirements of the act and confirms the agreed policies

Page 147

of the Council.
4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

Production of a Pay Policy Statement is a statutory requirement.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

The report is a statement of fact. As such there are no options to consider.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
The proposed Pay Policy Statement confirms the policies
previously agreed by Council for remuneration of staff.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with Diversity and
Equalities policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
None arising directly from the report – the budget includes
provision for the payment and remuneration of its employees in
accordance with agreed policies.

6.5

Legal
The preparation of an annual Pay Policy statement is a statutory
requirement under the Localism Act (2011).
The statement also takes into account guidance: Openness and
accountability in local pay: Guidance under section 40 of the
Localism Act which was issued by the DCLG in February 2012 and
supplementary guidance issued in February 2013.

6.6

Sustainability
None.

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
None.

6.8

Risk Assessment
Not applicable.

Page 148

ANDREW P STOKES
Chief Executive
Web Links and
Background Papers
Localism Act (2011)

Location

Contact details

OD & Transformation Office/Legal Office

Lisa Bond
Lisa.bond@staffsmoorlands.
gov.uk

Openness &
accountability in local
pay: Guidance under
section 40 of the
Localism Act – DCLG
(Feb 2012)
Openness &
accountability in local
pay: Guidance under
section 40 of the
Localism Act –
Supplementary guidance
(Feb 2013)

Page 149

7.

Background and Introduction

7.1

Local authorities are required, in accordance with Sections 38 to 40 of the
Localism Act 2011 to prepare a Pay Policy Statement for each financial year.
In preparing this statement there is a requirement to have regard to the
guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Section 40 of the Localism
Act.

7.2

The Pay Policy must be approved by a resolution of full Council by the end of
March each year. Councils must publish the statement in such a manner as it
thinks fit, which must include publication on the website.

7.3

The statutory guidance confirms that nothing contained within the provisions
in the Act or guidance is intended to supersede existing responsibilities and
duties placed on authorities in their role as employers under relevant
employment legislation, and authorities are required to bear in mind these
responsibilities and duties when formulating their Pay Policy statement.

7.4

It is the expectation that any discussion in respect of Pay Policy Statements
should take place in meetings which are open to the public, in particular,
discussions should not engage the General Data Protection Regulations as
the policy does not concern data relating to a particular individual but rather
the Authorities’ policies towards a range of issues relating to the pay of its
workforce, particularly its senior staff and tis lowest paid employees.

8.

Required Content of the Statement

8.1

Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to set out its
policies for the coming financial year relating to:
a) The remuneration of its chief officers;
b) The remuneration of its lowest paid employees; and
c) The relationship between the remuneration of its chief officers and the
remuneration of its employees who are not chief officers.

8.2

The statement must also include the Council’s policies relating to:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

The level and elements of remuneration for each chief officer;
Remuneration of chief officers on recruitment;
Increases in addition to remuneration for each chief officer;
The use of performance related pay for chief officers;
The use of bonuses for chief officers;
The approach to the payments of chief officers on their ceasing to hold
office or to be employed by the Authorities; and
g) The publication of and access to information relating to the remuneration
of chief officers.

Page 150

8.3

The definition of a chief officer is not limited to the Head of Paid Service or
statutory chief officers (i.e. Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer). It also
includes those officers who report directly to them as a non-statutory and
deputy chief officers. This definition, therefore, covers the Councils’ Chief
Executive, Executive Directors, and Heads of Service and the relevant
policies relating to their remuneration, as previously agreed by Council, are
included within the attached Pay Policy Statement.

9.

Pay Policy Statement

9.1

The proposed Pay Policy Statement attached at Appendix A seeks to comply
with the statutory requirements and confirms the agreed policies of the
Councils’ and is recommended for approval on this basis.

10.

Strategic Alliance

10.1

It should be noted that the workforce is shared between High Peak Borough
Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council. The pay costs
identified in this statement are the overall levels of remuneration received by
the individual employees, the costs of which are shared between the two
authorities.

Page 151

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A

High Peak Borough Council &
Staffordshire Moorlands Distirct Council
PAY POLICY
2022 / 2023

1

Page 153

1. Introduction and Purpose
In accordance with Section 112 of the Local Government Act (1972) High Peak Borough
Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council have the “power to appoint officers on
such reasonable terms and conditions as the authorities thinks fit”. The Pay Policy
Statement sets out the Councils’ approach to pay in accordance with the Localism Act
(2011) (Section 38) and provides transparency to the setting of pay for its employees by
identifying:




the methods by which salaries of all employees are determined;
the detail and level of remuneration of its most senior staff i.e. ‘chief officers’, as
defined by the relevant legislation;
the committees responsible for ensuring the provisions set out in this statement are
applied consistently and recommending any amendments to the full Council.

The pay policy will be approved by full Council. This policy statement will come into
immediate effect and will be subject to review on an annual basis in accordance with the
relevant legislation in place at that time.
Strategic Alliance
High Peak Borough Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council work together as a
strategic alliance and the workforce is shared. The Chief Executive and Executive Directors
are employed by both Councils. The remaining Chief Officers are employed by one of the
Councils but are joint appointments and work across the two authorities. The majority of
employees work flexibly across both Councils. The terms and conditions of employment
have been harmonised across the two Councils and the costs are shared.
In determining the pay and remuneration of all its employees, the Councils will comply with
all relevant employment legislation. This includes legislation such as the Equality Act (2010);
Part Time Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations (2000); The
Agency Worker Regulations (2010) and where relevant the Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Earnings) Regulations. The Councils will ensure there is no pay discrimination
within its pay structures. Pay differentials are objectively justified through the use of equality
proofed job evaluation schemes which directly relate to the requirements, demands and
responsibilities of job role.

2

Page 154

2. Basic Pay
Green Book Employees
Most employees are subject to the National Joint Council for Local Government Services
(Conditions of Service) (“Green Book”). Pay and grading is determined by the Local
Government Single Status Job Evaluation Scheme.
A local grading structure has been adopted which makes use of broad banding pay ranges
and uses the basis of the nationally negotiated pay spine. The grading structure can be
found on the Council’s website.
Incremental progression throughout the pay range is unrestricted in the lower zone of the
pay scale. At present there is no incremental progression in the upper zone of the pay scale.
There is a commitment to review the local grading structure and implement a revised grading
structure in 2022.
Craft Employees
Some employees are subject to Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Authority Craft &
Associated conditions of service (Red Book). Red book employees are subject to set rates of
pay. All other pay related allowances are subject to either nationally or locally negotiated
rates having been determined from time to time in accordance with collective bargaining
and/or by Council policy.
Apprenticeships
Apprentices are paid in accordance with the national apprenticeship rates of pay.
Senior Management Pay “Chief Officer”
The posts falling within the statutory definition of a “Chief Officer” their basic salary is:
Position
Chief Executive
Deputy Chief Executive
Executive Directors
Heads of Service - Grade 2
Heads of Service - Grade 1

Pay Range
£161,032 - £174,625
£116,148 - £128,548
£96,880 - £107,890
£66,984 - £77,239
£54,164 - £64,420

Pay and grading is determined for Chief Officers by the Hay Job Evaluation Scheme. A local
grading structure has been adopted which has been previously approved by resolution of
Council. The grading structure for these positions can be found at the end of this document.
Incremental progression throughout the pay range is unrestricted and paid on 1st April each
year until the top of the pay scale is reached. Organisational structure identifying the
numbers and positions at a senior level can be found at website.
There is a continued commitment to adhere with national pay bargaining in respect of the
national pay spine and cost of living increases for employees.

3

Page 155

3. Additional Salary Payments - Chief Officers
Additional payments for Chief Officers are as follows:Chief Executive
Lease Car

Election Duties

Contribution of £6,824 per annum toward the cost of
providing a lease car. This comprises of:
£2,700 (fixed basic contribution to all lease car users)
£250 (further fixed basic contribution available to all
lease car users subject to meeting certain emissions
criteria)
£3,070 (Payable to Chief Executive only)
£804 (Business usage allowance).
Fees paid in respect of election duties in accordance with
agreed County fee scale.

Executive Directors – Other “Chief Officer” Payments
Section 151 Officer
Allowance
Monitoring Officer
Allowance
Election Duties
Lease Car (applicable to 1
postholder)

£5,353.44 per annum to an Executive Director in
recognition of their role of Section 151 Officer.
£5,353.44 per annum to an Executive Director in
recognition of their role of Monitoring Officer.
Fees paid in respect of election duties in accordance with
agreed County fee scale.
Contribution of £5,700 per annum toward the cost of
providing a lease car. This comprises of:
£2,700 (fixed basic contribution to all lease car users)
£250 (further fixed basic contribution available to all
lease car users subject to meeting certain
emissions
criteria).
£1,950 (Payable to Executive Directors only).
£800 (Business usage allowance).

4

Page 156

4. Car Mileage
Car mileage is payable to designated Essential Car Users who do not drive a lease car.
Payments are in accordance with the NJC mileage rates with the removal of the top banding
in accordance with locally agreed terms and conditions:
Essential User Payment
Lump Sum
Per mile (1st 8,500 miles)
Per mile (after 8,500 miles)

451-999cc range
£846
36.9 p
13.7p

1000 – 1199cc range
£963
40.9 p
14.4p

Casual User Payment
Per mile (1st 8,500 miles)

451-999cc range
46.9 p

1000 – 1199cc range
52.2p

5

Page 157

5. Recruitment of Chief Officers
The policy and procedures with regard to recruitment of Chief Officers is set out within the
Officer Employment Procedure Rules (part 4 of the constitution). When recruiting to all posts
the Councils will take full and proper account of their own equalities and other recruitment
policies. The determination of the remuneration to be offered to any newly appointed Chief
Officer will be in accordance with the pay structure and relevant policies in place at the time
of recruitment. Where we are unable to recruit to a post at the designated grade, the use of
temporary market supplements in accordance with relevant policies will be considered.
Where the Councils remain unable to recruit Chief Officers under a contract of service, or
there is a need for interim support to provide cover for a vacant substantive chief officer post,
the Councils will, where necessary, make use of ‘contracts for service’. These will be
sourced through a relevant procurement process ensuring the Councils are able to
demonstrate the maximum value for money benefits from competition in securing the
relevant service.

6

Page 158

6. Payment of Termination of Chief Officers
The approach to statutory and discretionary payments on termination of employment of
Chief Officers, prior to reaching normal retirement age are in accordance with agreed
policies at the time.
Any other payments falling outside the provision, or the relevant periods of contractual notice
shall be subject to a formal decision made by the full Council or relevant elected members,
committee or panel of elected members with delegated authority to approve such payments.
The Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments Regulations 2020 implemented a £95,000
cap on public sector exit payments however in February 2021 the Restriction of Public
Sector Exit Payments (Revocation) Regulations 2021 revoked the regulations with
immediate effect.
The guidance on the removal of the exit pay cap states “For the avoidance of doubt, it is still
vital that exit payments deliver value for the taxpayer and employers should always consider
whether exit payments are fair and proportionate. HM Treasury will bring forward proposals
at pace to tackle unjustified exit payments.” Therefore, it is anticipated the cap or similar will
be re-introduced in some form and related further reforms will be made to the LGPS and
local government redundancy terms.

7

Page 159

7. Re-employment /Re-engagement of former Chief Officers
It is policy not to re-employ former employees who have been granted voluntary redundancy,
including Chief Officers. In exceptional cases, and only where there is a clear benefit to the
Councils, such former employees may be re-engaged on a short-term contract for services.

8

Page 160

8. Relationship between the Highest Paid Employee and Lowest Paid Employee
At the point of this statement lowest paid employees employed under a contract of
employment are employed on full-time (37 hours) rate of pay - £18,562 per annum (£9.62
per hour). This is above the UK Living Wage (April 2022 - £9.50 per hour). Modern
apprentices are not included in this definition and are paid in accordance with national
apprenticeship rates of pay.
The relationship between the rate of pay for the lowest paid employee and Chief Officer is
determined by the processes used for determining pay and grading structures set out earlier
in this policy statement.
The statutory guidance under the Localism Act recommends the use of pay multiples as a
means of measuring the relationship between pay rates across the workforce and that of
senior managers, as included within the Hutton ‘Review of Fair Pay in the Public Sector’
(2010). The Hutton report was asked by Government to explore the case for a fixed limit on
dispersion of pay through a requirement that no public sector manager can earn more than
20 times the lowest paid person in the organisation. The report concluded that the
relationship to median earnings was a more relevant measure and the Government’s Code
of Recommended Practice on Data Transparency recommends the publication of the ratio
between highest paid salary and the median average salary of the whole of the Authorities’
workforce.
The current pay levels define the relationship between the lowest paid and the highest paid:
Lowest paid employee and Chief Executive
Category
Highest paid employee (Chief Executive)
Lowest paid employee

Ratio
1:8.8

Lowest paid employee and average Chief Officer
Category
Average Chief Officer
Lowest Paid

Ratio
1:3.8

Relationship between highest paid employees and median earnings
Category
Highest paid employee (Chief Executive)
Median full-time equivalent earnings

Ratio
1:6.3

Relationship between highest paid employees and median average Chief Officer
Category
Average Chief Officer
Median full-time equivalent earnings

Ratio
1:2.7

It is considered that the current pay multiples represent an appropriate, fair and equitable
internal pay relationship between the highest salary and that which applies to the rest of the
workforce. As part of its overall and ongoing monitoring of alignment with external pay
markets both within and outside the sector, the available benchmarking information will be
used as appropriate.
9

Page 161

9. Publication
Following approval of full Council, this statement will be published on the website. In
addition, for posts where the full-time equivalent salary is at least £50,000, the Councils’
Annual Statement of Accounts will include a note setting out the total amount of:






salary, fees or allowances paid to or receivable by the person in the current and
previous year;
any bonuses so paid or receivable by the person in the current and previous
year;
any sums payable by way of expenses allowance that are chargeable to UK
income tax;
any compensation for loss of employment and any other payments connected
with termination;
any benefits received that do not fall within the above.

The Councils’ already provide details on its website of the remuneration paid to, and the
duties of, the Chief Executive and Executive Directors.

10

Page 162

10. Accountability and Decision Making
In accordance with the agreed Constitution, the full Council is responsible for the
appointment of the Chief Executive, following a recommendation from the Joint
Appointments Sub-Committee.
The Joint Appointments Sub-Committee, which is made up of councillors from both High
Peak Borough Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, is responsible for
appointing Executive Directors and Heads of Service. Appointments below Heads of Service
level are the responsibility of the Chief Executive or his nominee.

11

Page 163

Appendix A
Senior Management Grading Structure
Head of Service – Grade 1
Spinal Column
Point (SCP)
51

Annual Salary

£54,164
£56,728
£59,292
£61,856
£64,420

52
53
54
55
Head of Service – Grade 2
Spinal Column
Point (SCP)
56
57
58
59
60

Annual Salary

£66,984
£69,548
£72,112
£74,676
£77,239

Executive Director
Spinal Column
Point (SCP)
71
72
73
74
75

Annual Salary

£96,880
£99,632
£102,385
£105,138
£107,890

Deputy Chief Executive
Spinal Column
Point (SCP)
81
82
83
84
85

Annual Salary

£116,148
£119,248
£122,348
£125,448
£128,548

12

Page 164

Chief Executive
Spinal Column
Point (SCP)
91

Annual Salary
£161,032

92

£164,430

93

£167,828

94

£171,226

95

£174,625

13

Page 165

This page is intentionally left blank

